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International Entertainment Corporation

Chairman’s Statement
FEHREE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
International Entertainment Corporation (the “Company”), | am pleased to
present the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively,
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2023 (the “Year").

During the Year, the principal activities of the Group are gaming operation
(leasing of investment properties equipped with entertainment equipment
to the Philippine Amusement and Gaming Corporation ("PAGCOR’) and
participation in the gaming operation), hotel operation, and live poker
events operation.

The Group's revenue for the Year was approximately HK$207.2 million,
representing an increase of approximately 142.3%, as compared with
approximately HK$85.5 million in the year ended 30 June 2022 (the
"Previous Year’). The Group reported a gross profit of approximately
HK$136.6 million for the Year under review, representing an increase of
approximately 520.9%, as compared with approximately HK$22.0 million in
the Previous Year.

The Group had a strong comeback for this Year in terms of financial
performance thanks to the return of the Philippines to one of the global
tourism and gaming hotspots following the reopening of its international
borders and the dropping of all capacity restrictions and lockdowns in the
first half of 2022. Business activities in the country have gradually picked up
since then. This Year, the economy of the Philippines has maintained a
robust growth trajectory to be on par with the pre-pandemic level and
proved itself among the fastest growing economies in Southeast Asia. We
look forward to seeing a surge of tourists arriving in the Philippines and
players in the gaming industry when we all leave the novel coronavirus
pandemic as a history behind. With the government of the Philippines
continuous efforts to push and promote the country as a global tourism
powerhouse and top gaming destination, the Group is prepared to capture
new opportunities and evolve in this post pandemic era where changes
are coming to challenge the norms from before.
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We are pleased to announce that subsequent to the Year end date, the
Group was granted the Provisional License which allows us to establish
and operate a casino and the development of an integrated resort in
Manila, the Philippines. The Group has gained its expertise in the operation
and management of casino as the Group has taken part in management of
the existing casino through its participation in the management
committee since the execution of the cooperation agreement in 2021. We
believe that the grant of the Provisional License is a milestone
development of the Group which denotes that the Group will be able to
operate and manage gaming business independently. It provides an
opportunity for the Group to participate in the gaming and entertainment
in addition to the existing hotel and hospitality markets in the Philippines
and will enhance future earning capability and potential of the Group.

As always, the Group is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices and will continue to enhance the risk
management and internal control systems to comply with the statutory
and regulatory requirements to maximise the values of the shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”).

The Group will continue to focus on its existing business operations and
investments in the Philippines riding on business environment to strive for
exploring potential business opportunities.

APPRECIATION

In conclusion, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincerest
gratitude to our directors of the Company, the management team and the
employees of the Group for their relentless commitment, efforts and
creative ideas during the year. | would also like to take this opportunity to
thank our Shareholders, customers and business partners for their
continued support.

Ho Wong Meng
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 28 September 2023
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International Entertainment Corporation

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEFNWR T

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The gaming and tourism industries in the Philippines have been gaining
strong momentum since the country reopened its international borders in
February 2022, followed by the dropping of all capacity restrictions and
lockdowns in the first half of 2022. According to the information released
by PAGCOR, it has recorded total income of PHP36.21 billion in the first half
of 2023, representing a 35.6% increase from the same period of last year.
That half year revenue was just PHP2.59 billion or 6.7% less than the first
half of 2019 of PHP38.8 billion, i.e. the pre-pandemic level. The biggest
contributor to the revenues in the first half of 2023 was the income from
gaming operations and regulatory fees from its licensees, which amounted
to PHP34.12 billion. Tourism sector has continued to show its resilience.
The number of foreign tourists that arrived in the Philippines in the first of
half of 2023 was approximately 2.47 million which has already exceeded
the approximately 2 million for the whole year of 2022.

Benefited from the recovery of the industries, the Group's total revenue for
the year ended 30 June 2023 (the “Year”") increased significantly from
approximately HK$85.5 million for the year ended 30 June 2022 (the
“Previous Year’) to approximately HK$207.2 million for the Year,
representing an approximately 142.3% increase. The Group reported a
gross profit of approximately HKS$136.6 million for the Year under review, as
compared to approximately HK$22.0 million in the Previous Year. Gross
profit margin for the Year was approximately 65.9%, as compared to gross
profit margin of approximately 25.7% for the Previous Year.

Other income of the Group for the Year was approximately HK$11.9 million,
representing an increase of approximately 158.7%, as compared with
approximately HK$4.6 million for the Previous Year. This was mainly due to
increase in interest income during the Year.

Other gain/(loss) of the Group mainly was represented by net foreign
exchange gain or loss. The Group recorded a net gain of approximately
HKS$1.7 million for the Year as compared to a net loss approximately
HK$18.0 million in the Previous Year.

The Group recorded a loss of approximately HK$3.1 million on change in
fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in the Year, as
compared to a loss of approximately HK$40.9 million in the Previous Year,
representing an approximately 92.4% decrease.

The Group also recorded a loss of approximately HK$4.3 million on change
in fair value of financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss for the
Year, as compared to a gain of approximately HK$3.2 million in the Previous
Year.
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International Entertainment Corporation

Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties has been arrived at
based on a valuation carried out by Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal
and Advisory Limited, an independent professional valuer not connected
to the Group. The fair value gain for the Year amounted to approximately
HK$3.0 million, as compared to a loss of approximately HK$120.7 million for
the Previous Year. Solid improvement on the Year's operating results plus
positive economic outlook support the expected strong future cash flow
from the Group's business.

General and administrative expenses of the Group increased by
approximately 25.5% to approximately HK$97.0 million for the Year from
approximately HK$77.3 million in the Previous Year. Included in these
expenses for the Year, approximately 33.2% and 17.4% were staff costs and
utilities expenses respectively. The staff costs for the Year was
approximately HK$32.2 million, representing an increase of approximately
1.9%, as compared with approximately HK$31.6 million in the Previous
Year. The utilities expenses for the Year was approximately HK$16.9 million,
representing an increase of approximately 53.6%, as compared with
approximately HK$11.0 million in the Previous Year. Overall expenses
increased in the Year to cope with improving business performance,
especially our hotel operation where average hotel room occupancy
increased from approximately 47% in the Previous Year to approximately
84% in the Year.

Finance costs of the Group for the Year was approximately HK$26.5 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 10.2% as compared with
approximately HK$29.5 million in the Previous Year. This was mainly due to
the full settlement of the bank loan in the Year.

The Group recorded income tax expenses of approximately HK$2.8 million
for the Year, as compared to a tax credit of approximately HK$6.8 million in
the Previous Year.

The Group recorded a profit of approximately HK$18.3 million for the Year
as compared with a loss of approximately HK$256.4 million for the Previous
Year.

The earnings per share for the Year amounted to approximately 1.34 HK
cents, as compared with the loss per share of approximately 18.73 HK cents
for the Previous Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEFNWR T

BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activities of the Group are gaming operation (leasing of

investment properties equipped with entertainment equipment to
PAGCOR and participation in the gaming operation), hotel operation and
live events.

1.

08

Gaming operation

The “Gaming Operation” segment represents leasing of investment
properties equipped with entertainment equipment to PAGCOR and
participation in the gaming operation.

The revenue derived from the gaming operation is based on an
agreed percentage of net gaming revenue generated from the local
gaming area operated by PAGCOR or a fixed amount, whichever is
higher.

The revenue derived from the gaming operation for the Year was
approximately HK$133.5 million, representing an increase of
approximately 152.4%, as compared with the gaming operation of
approximately HK$52.9 million in the Previous Year. Most anti-
pandemic measures such as border restriction and different levels of
community quarantine requirements had been lifted by the
government of the Philippines in 2022. Capacity restriction for
casinos in Manila has been dropped since March 2022. Performance
in the segment has shown a significant recovery since then. It
contributed approximately 64.4% of the Group's revenue during the
Year under review (the Previous Year: 61.8%).

At 30 June 2023 and 2022, there were tax disputes between MSPI, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and BIR in the
Philippines. Please refer to Note 11
statements in this report for more details and estimated contingent

to the consolidated financial

liabilities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

2.

Hotel operation

The revenue derived from the hotel operation mainly includes room
revenue, revenue from food and beverages and other hotel service
income. The hotel of the Group is located in Manila City which is a
tourist spot with churches and historical sites as well as various night
spots catered for tourists and is one of the major tourist destinations
in the Philippines.

The revenue derived from the hotel operation for the Year was
approximately HK$73.7 million, representing an increase of
approximately 126.1%, as compared with approximately HK$32.6
million in the Previous Year. Included in the total hotel revenue for
the Year was approximately HK$49.7 million or 67.4% contributed by
room revenue (Previous Year: HK$24.3 million or 74.5%). The increase
in total revenue was mainly due to increase in average hotel room
occupancy from approximately 47% in the Previous Year to
approximately 84% in the Year, plus the increase in revenue from the
food and beverages service.

Live events

The revenue represented income from sponsorship and entrance fee
of live poker events. However, there was no live poker event during
the Year.
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International Entertainment Corporation

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEWE D

FUTURE OUTLOOK

Following the reopening of the international borders and the lifting of
most of the anti-pandemic measures in the first half of 2022, the gaming
industry and tourism industry in the Philippines have gradually recovered.
Business environment in the Philippines has become more favourable and
economic activities are reaching pre-pandemic levels. With the
government's supportive policies to boost the economy, it is believed that
the growth momentum of gaming and tourism industries will be sustained
and even surpass the pre-pandemic levels in the near term.

However, challenges such as inflation, measures undertaken by other
countries to promote tourism recovery, and geopolitical tensions may have
an impact on the pace of recovery of economy in the Philippines. The
Group remains cautiously optimistic about the outlook for tourism and
gaming industry in the Philippines. The Group will continue to focus on its
existing business operations and investments in the Philippines riding on
business environment to strive for exploring potential business
opportunities.

Subsequent to the reporting period, the Group was granted the Provisional
License. We are pleased to announce that on 27 September 2023, MSPI
and New Coast Leisure Inc., a domestic corporation registered and
organized under the laws of the Philippines, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company in the Philippines as licensee (the “Licensee”)
and PAGCOR as licensor entered into the Provisional License Agreement
pursuant to which PAGCOR has granted the Provisional License to the
Licensee to establish and operate a casino and the development of an
integrated resort in the City of Manila, the Philippines. PAGCOR shall issue
the regular casino gaming license (the “Regular Casino Gaming
License”) upon completion of the project and upon approval by PAGCOR
of the Licensee’s compliance with the implementation plan in relation to
the actual total project cost. The Regular Casino Gaming License is
renewable subject to the same terms and conditions of the Provisional
License. The effectivity or term of the Provisional License and the Regular
Casino Gaming License shall be co-terminus with the franchise of PAGCOR
which shall be effective from the date of the Provisional License Agreement
until 11 July 2033.

The casino in the existing hotel is currently operated by PAGCOR. Pursuant
to the cooperation agreement dated 9 August 2021, MSPI has taken part in
management of the existing casino through its participation in the
management committee. The Group has gained its expertise in the
operation and management of casino. Upon the commencement of the
operation of the Provisional Licence, the operation and management of
the existing casino will be transferred to the Licensee to run the casino.
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International Entertainment Corporation

Management Discussion and Analysis

FUTURE OUTLOOK (Continued)

With most of the COVID-19 restrictions now lifted, there were approximately
1.3 million international tourist arrivals in the Philippines in the first quarter of
2023. The Philippines Department of Tourism revealed it is aiming to attract 5
million foreign visitors in 2023. The Directors consider that the influx of
tourists to the Philippines will boost the economy therein and benefits to the
gaming and entertainment industry. The Directors consider that the grant of
the Provisional License will provide an opportunity for the Group to
participate in the gaming and entertainment in addition to the existing hotel
and hospitality markets in the Philippines and will enhance future earning
capability and potential of the Group. The grant of the Provisional License
will be a milestone development of the Group which denotes that the Group
is able to operate and manage casino business and gambling activities
independently.

Regarding for the future development of an integrated resort, the Board
will consider different financing methods such as bank borrowing and/or
equity financing (as the case may be) in order to expand our business and
maintain the liquidity of the Group.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 30 June 2023, the Group’s net current assets amounted to
approximately HK$132.4 million (as at 30 June 2022: HK$97.0 million).
Current assets amounted to approximately HK$602.5 million (as at 30 June
2022: HK$564.6 million), of which approximately HK$492.5 million (as at 30
June 2022: HK$512.1 million) was bank balances and cash, approximately
HKS$14.3 million (as at 30 June 2022: HK$13.0 million) was trade receivables,
approximately HK$27.4 million (as at 30 June 2022: HK$29.0 million) was
other receivables, deposits and prepayments, approximately HK$1.2 million
(as at 30 June 2022: HK$1.2 million) was inventories, approximately HK$5.3
million (as at 30 June 2022: HK$8.2 million) was financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, approximately HK$0.5 million (as at 30 June 2022:
HKS$0.2 million) was contract assets, approximately HK$0.9 million (as at 30
June 2022: HK$0.9 million) was amounts due from associates, and
approximately HK$60.4 million (as at 30 June 2022: nil) was income tax
recoverable.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE (Continued)

As at 30 June 2023, the Group had current liabilities amounted to
approximately HK$470.1 million (as at 30 June 2022: HKS$467.6 million), of
which approximately HK$1.9 million (as at 30 June 2022: HK$2.1 million)
was trade payables, approximately HK$47.6 million (as at 30 June 2022:
HK$30.3 million) was other payables and accrued charges, approximately
HKS$1.5 million (as at 30 June 2022: HK$0.2 million) was contract liabilities,
bank borrowings was HKSNil (as at 30 June 2022: HK$31.2 million),
approximately HK$416.3 million (as at 30 June 2022: HK$400.3 million) was
promissory notes and approximately HK$2.7 million (as at 30 June 2022:
HKS$3.5 million) was lease liabilities.

The bank balances and cash of the Group as at 30 June 2023 was mainly
denominated in Peso, HKS and United States Dollars (“"USD”).

Net cash generated from operating activities of the Group for the Year
under review was approximately HK$6.7 million, while net cash used in
operating activities of the Group was approximately HK$0.7 million for the
Previous Year. Net assets attributable to the owners of the Company as at
30 June 2023 amounted to approximately HK$1,207.0 million, representing
an increase of approximately 0.9%, as compared with approximately
HKS$1,195.9 million as at 30 June 2022.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE (Continued)

On 27 July 2017, the Company entered into a placing agreement with a
placing agent (the “Placing Agreement”). The completion of the placing
took place on 10 August 2017. Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the
Placing Agreement, an aggregate of 190,000,000 ordinary shares of the
Company of HK$1.00 each as placing shares were successfully placed by
the placing agent at the placing price of HK$1.90 per placing share. Further
details are set out in the announcements of the Company dated 27 July
2017 and 10 August 2017. The net proceeds from the placing, after
deducting the placing commission and other related expenses payable by
the Company, were approximately HK$358.50 million. The net proceeds
from the placing were intended to be used as to (i) approximately
HKS$150.0 million for the renovation of a hotel of the Group in Manila City
(the "Hotel"); (ii) approximately HK$100.0 million for the development of
the parcels of land adjacent to the Hotel (the “New Hotel Land"), including
but not limited to the construction of a carpark and amenities of the Hotel,
and the provision of a facility to an independent third party for the
acquisition of the New Hotel Land; (iii) approximately HK$70.0 million for
the potential acquisition of, including but not limited to, lands in the
Philippines for the construction of hotel(s) and/or casino(s); and (iv) the
remaining proceeds for the general working capital of the Group.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE (Continued)

Set forth below is a summary of the utilisation of the net proceeds as at 30

nEEE. UBERRENGRE @)

TXERR - - =F A=+ HABREFHE

June 2023: BRI R
Amount of Balance of
the net proceeds the net proceeds
Intended use of utilised as at unutilised as at
the net proceeds 30June 2023 30June 2023
R=B=Zf RZBZ=f
AA=TH ~A=t1H
FigsE BEAMETE REAMEHE
RERTERE BHEEH R
(HKS million) (HKS million) (HKS million)
(RE#T) (BB#T) (REAT)
Renovation of the Hotel BERE 1500 1500 =
Development of the New Hotel Land, BB (REETERR 1000 526 474
including but not limited to the RRBENEESREN
construction of a carpark and amenities 3R 1) kR AR EE R R
of the Hotel, and the provision of BUE=RRERE (W)
afacility to an independent third party
for the acquisition of
the New Hotel Land (Note 1)
Potential acquisition (the “Potential AR (BEEARR) RS 700 - 700
Acquisition’) of, including but not E’]j:iﬁML BER/ iR
limited to, lands in the Philippines for 15 ([ T4 EE ST )
the construction of hotel(s) and/or
casino(s)
General working capital of the Group ~~ REEHI—REEES 385 385 =
Total st 3585 2411 174
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE (Continued)

Notes:

1. The HK$52.6 million utilised comprised HK$51.9 million loan to Harbor View
Properties and Holdings, Inc. for the acquisition of the New Hotel Land and HK$0.7
million for the payment of the design and consultancy services fees for the
development of the New Hotel Land. Priority will be given to the development of
the new lands to be acquired in the Potential Acquisition before the development
of the New Hotel Land.

2. Referring to the Company's announcement dated 27 September 2023 in relation
to the grant of the Provisional License by PAGCOR to the Group’s companies to
establish and operate a casino and the development of an integrated resort in the
City of Manila, the Philippines, the Group is aligning its plan for the Potential
Acquisition and the development of New Hotel Land with the master
development plan proposal for development of the integrated resort under the
Provisional License. The expected timeline for application of all the balance of the
net proceeds will be postponed to on or before 30 June 2024. Should there be any
material change in the intended use of the balance of the net proceeds, the
Company will make appropriate announcement in due course.

The gearing ratio, measured in terms of the carrying values of total
borrowings divided by total assets, was approximately 24.7% (as at 30 June
2022:25.3%).

The Group financed its operations including but not limited to internally
generated cash flows and the issuance of promissory notes.

During the Year, there were no changes in the capital structure of the
Company. Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the Capital
Reduction and the Share Sub-division were completed. Details of the
Capital Reduction and the Share Sub-division are set out in the Company's
announcements dated 2 May 2023, 22 May 2023, 6 July 2023 and 11
August 2023 and the Company’s circular dated 5 May 2023.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Owing to the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic since the early of 2020,
countries across the world are taking unprecedented measures to combat
the spread of the virus. Travel restriction, travellers quarantine and even
“lock down" policies have been impacting the global economy seriously.
Visitation to the Philippines decreased drastically since the outbreak.
Different degrees of community quarantine measures were imposed by
the Philippines government during the Year under review. The Group's
hotel and the casino in the hotel may be subject to temporary mandated
closures to comply with those anti-pandemic measures. All these may pose
a negative impact on the Group's revenue from its hotel and gaming
operations in the Philippines.
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RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Continued)

It is uncertain when this will end. The Group will closely monitor the
current market situation and make corresponding measures such as cost
control policy in order to sustain our business.

The Group continues to face significant risks and uncertainties from the
economic growth and the competition in the market that the Group
operates, and changes in economic, political and social conditions and
changes in the relevant laws and regulations in the places that the Group
operates.

The Group is also exposed to currency risk as the Group's assets and
liabilities are mainly denominated in HKS, USD, Peso and EURO and the
Group primarily earns its revenue and income in HKS, USD and Peso while
the Group primarily incurs costs and expenses mainly in HKS and Peso.

In addition, uncertainties exist with regard to the tax disputes between
certain subsidiaries of the Company operating in the Philippines and the
BIR in the Philippines.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for the Year
(for the Previous Year: nil).

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

Save as otherwise mentioned in this report, during the year ended 30 June
2023, there was no incidence of non-compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations of the places in which the Group operates that has a
significant impact on the business operations of the Group.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 30 June 2022, the bank loan was secured by the Group's investment
properties amounted to approximately HK$993 million.

In August 2022, the entire outstanding balance of the bank loan had been

settled. As at 30 June 2023, there was no charge created over the Group’s
assets.
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MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS AND
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

On 27 September 2023, the Group entered into a Provisional License
Agreement pursuant to which PAGCOR has granted the Provisional License
to the Group’s companies to establish and operate a casino and the
development of an integrated resort in the City of Manila, the Philippines.
The effectivity or term of the Provisional License and the Regular Casino
Gaming License shall be co-terminus with the franchise of PAGCOR which
shall be effective from the date of the Provisional License Agreement until
11 July 2033. Pursuant to the Provisional License Agreement, the Group will
make the total investment commitment of no less than US$1.0 billion
(equivalent to approximately HK$7.82 billion) and up to US$1.2 billion
(equivalent to approximately HK$9.38 billion) for the project under the
Provisional License. The total investment commitment comprises land
acquisition costs, costs related to securing development rights,
construction, equipment, development costs, financing costs and all other
expenses directly related to the completion of the project. Details of the
terms of Provisional License Agreement are set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 27 September 2023.

Based on preliminary assessment by management, the Group would
change the use of its properties interest held for rental income to held for
own use under the Provisional License Agreement, the “investment
properties” will be reclassified as “property, plant and equipment” with
corresponding deferred tax liabilities related to the investment properties
will also be derecognized at the date of change in use. After reclassification,
the properties will depreciate according to the accounting policy of the
Group.

In order to enhance the attraction of the entertainment equipment in the
Group's casino, our wholly owned subsidiary, MSPI as a purchaser and RGB
as vendor entered into the Sale and Purchase Agreements in relation to the
purchase of 382 various slot machines, related license and controllers for
the aggregate consideration of US$5,732,582 during the Year. For details,
please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 12 May 2023.

Save as disclosed above, there was no acquisition or disposal of subsidiary
and associated company or significant investments of the Group, which
would have been required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules for the
Year.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group will continue to explore the market and identify any business
opportunities which may provide its growth and development potential,
enhance the profitability, and strive for better return to the Shareholders.
The Group will also continue to consider a renovation plan to improve the
properties of the Group as well as the facilities therein so as to attract more
guests and enhance their experience during their stays.
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EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE
RATES AND ANY RELATED HEDGES

The functional currency of the Company is Peso, the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the Company’s major subsidiaries
operate. The consolidated financial statements of the Group are presented
in HKS as the Directors consider that it is an appropriate presentation for a
company listed in Hong Kong and for the convenience of the Shareholders.

The Group's assets and liabilities are mainly denominated in HKS, USD, Peso
and EURO. The Group primarily earns its revenue and income in HKS, USD
and Peso while the Group primarily incurs costs and expenses mainly in
HKS and Peso. Therefore, the Group may be exposed to currency risk.

The Group has not implemented any foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management of the Group will monitor foreign currency
exposure for each business segment and review the needs of individual
geographical area, and consider appropriate hedging policy in future when
necessary.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The total number of employees of the Group was 240 as at 30 June 2023
(as at 30 June 2022: 218). The staff costs for the Year was approximately
HK$33.8 million (the Previous Year: HK$33.0 million), among which, HK$32.2
million (the Previous Year: HK$31.6 million) was included in the general and
administrative expenses, and HKS$1.6 million (the Previous Year: HKS1.4
million) was included in cost of sales. The remuneration policy of the
Company is recommended by the remuneration committee of the
Company. The remuneration of the Directors and the employees of the
Group is based on the performance and experience of the individuals and
is determined with reference to the Group’'s performance, the
remuneration benchmark in the industry and the prevailing market
conditions. In addition to the salaries, the employees of the Group are
entitled to benefits including medical, insurance and retirement benefits.
Besides, the Group regularly provides internal and external training courses
for the employees of the Group to meet their needs.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of events after the reporting period is set out in Note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ho Wong Meng (“Mr. Ho"), aged 51, joined the Company in
September 2020, and is an executive Director, the chairman of the Board
and the chief executive officer of the Company. He is also a member and
the Chairman of the executive committee and a member of the
nomination committee of the Company. He is also the directors of various
subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Ho possesses more than 23 years of extensive experience and
exceptional expertise in the gaming and hospitality industry. He also has a
vast knowledge and experience in the establishment and operation of
casinos and integrated resorts throughout the industry. Mr. Ho specialises
in and has deep understanding of the Asian gaming and hospitality
industries. Mr. Ho is the executive chairman and director of Frontier Capital
Group Limited, which was previously listed on the Australian Securities
Exchange (ASX code: FCG).

Excite Opportunity Fund L.P. is an exempted limited partnership
established in accordance with the Exempted Limited Partnership Law of
Cayman Islands. The general partner of Excite Opportunity Fund L.P. is
Excite Investments Holdings Limited, an exempted company established
under the law of Cayman Islands and is solely owned by Mr. Ho. As such,
Mr. Ho is deemed to be interested in 260,000,000 Shares of the Company
(the “Shares”) held by Excite Opportunity Fund L.P. under the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), representing approximately 18.99% of the issued share capital of the
Company.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Ho was not a director in any other listed
companies for the last three preceding years.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Aurelio Jr. Dizon Tablante ("Mr. Tablante”), aged 57, joined the
Company in April 2022, and is an executive Director of the Company. He is
also a member of the executive committee of the Company, and a director
of various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Tablante has been with the
Group since 2018, overseeing the strategic planning, overall operations
and corporate management affairs in the Subsidiaries Group in the
Philippines.

Mr. Tablante holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Industrial Management
Engineering from De La Salle University (DLSU), Manila, Republic of the
Philippines in 1986. He possesses more than 20 years of senior
management experience in hospitality industry.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Tablante was not a director in any other listed
companies for the last three preceding years.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lau Ka Ho (8|5 = 5t 4) ("Mr. Lau”), aged 45, joined the Company as
an independent non-executive Director in June 2020. He is also a member
and the chairman of the remuneration committee and a member of the
audit committee of the Company.

Mr. Lau holds a Master's degree in business administration from The
University of lowa and a Master's degree in corporate governance from
Hong Kong Metropolitan University. He is a fellow member of both The
Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute and The Chartered Governance
Institute. He is also a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Directors and holds a Diploma in Company Direction.

Mr. Lau has more than 15 years of experience in corporate management,
corporate finance and corporate secretarial areas. Mr. Lau is an executive
director and the company secretary of Gain Plus Holdings Limited (stock
code: 9900). He is also an executive director and the chief executive officer
of Prosperous Future Holdings Limited (“Prosperous Future”) (stock code:
1259).

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Lau was not a director in any other listed
companies for the last three preceding years.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Mr. Cheng Hong Wai (B8EE{Z5E4) (‘Mr. Cheng’), aged 44, joined the
Company as an independent non-executive Director in January 2021. He is
also a member and the chairman of the audit committee and a member of
each of the nomination committee and the remuneration committee of
the Company.

Mr. Cheng holds a Bachelor's Degree of Commerce in Accounting from
Macquarie University in Australia. He is a Hong Kong Certified Public
Accountant and a member of CPA Australia who has over 15 years of
managerial experience in auditing, finance and accounting. Mr. Cheng has
extensive experience in financial and accounting as well as assurance and
advisory services in Hong Kong and Australia, where he has gained
expertise to a range of industries, including financial services, food and
beverage, software houses, hospitality, manufacturing and not-for-profits
organisations. He is also well experienced in internal auditing in various
leading financial institutions, including those related to internal controls
over financial reporting as well as daily operation procedures.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Cheng was not a director in any other listed
companies for the last three preceding years.

Mr. Leung Wai Tai (R/EZ % 4) (‘Mr. Leung’), aged 41, joined the
Company as an independent non-executive Director in June 2023. He is
also a member and a chairman of the nomination committee of the
Company and a member of each of the audit committee and remuneration
committee of the Company.

Mr. Leung obtained a bachelor of arts degree in Accountancy in the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in 2003, and obtained his postgraduate degree
in Accounting from the School of Accounting & Finance of Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in 2006. Mr. Leung is a fellow Certified Public
Accountant (Practising) in Hong Kong and the managing director of
Blossoming Certified Public Accountants Limited. He has nearly over 20
years of experience in the accountancy profession. Mr. Leung is an
executive director of Simplicity Holding Limited, the issued shares of which
are listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock Code:8367). He is also an executive
director of Goldway Education Group Limited, the issued shares of which
are listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock Code:8160).

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Leung was not a director in any other listed
companies for the last three preceding years.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chan Chun Lam (FRBR5E4) (‘Mr. Chan’), aged 51, joined the
Group in August 2021. Mr. Chan holds a bachelor degree of Business
Administration in Accounting with honors from Hong Kong Baptist
University. Mr. Chan is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He is also a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Chan
worked for an international accounting firm and a number of listed
companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Chan has over 28 years of professional
experience in auditing, and financial management. He also has extensive
experience in hotel and gaming business.
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The Directors present this annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2023.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands and its principal place of business in Hong Kong is Units 2109-10,
21st Floor, Wing On House, No. 71 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities of its
principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2023 are set out in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on pages 142 to 143 of
this annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for the year
ended 30 June 2023 (for the year ended 30 June 2022: nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2023 is set
out in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages
6 to 18 of this annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentage of sales attributable to the Group's largest customer and
five largest customers accounted for approximately 64% (for the year
ended 30 June 2022: 62%) and 75% (for the year ended 30 June 2022: 67%)
respectively of the Group's total revenue for the year.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers
were less than 30% of the Group's total purchases for the Year.

At no time during the Year did a Director, a close associate (as defined in
the Listing Rules) of a Director or a Shareholder (which to the knowledge of
the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital)
has an interest in any of the Group's five largest suppliers or customers.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five
financial years is set out on page 267 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment and
investment properties of the Group during the year are set out in Notes 14
and 15 respectively to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report.

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES OWNED BY THE GROUP

Particulars of the principal properties of the Group are set out on page 268
of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during the Year are
set out in Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The reserves of the Company available for distribution to the Shareholders
as at 30 June 2023, which is calculated in accordance with the Companies
Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands (the “Cayman Islands Companies Law") and the Company’s
Articles of Association, amounted to HKSNil (2022: HKSNIl).

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on page 146 of this annual report and note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

DONATIONS

During the Year, no charitable donations were made by the Group (2022:
HKSNil).
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this annual report are
as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Ho Wong Meng (Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Aurelio Jr. Dizon Tablante

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Lau Ka Ho

Mr. Cheng Hong Wai

Mr. Leung Wai Tai (appointed on 16 June 2023)
Mr. Chung Dan (passed away on 7 April 2023)

Pursuant to article 83(3) of the Articles of Association of the Company,
Mr. Leung Wai Tai, who has been appointed with effect from 16 June 2023,
shall hold office only until the next following general meeting of the
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.

Pursuant to article 84 of the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Ho
Wong Meng and Mr. Lau Ka Ho shall retire from office by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting (the “AGM") of the Company and
shall then be eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive Director
a confirmation of his independence pursuant to the independence
guidelines under the Listing Rules, and considers that all independent
non-executive Directors are independent.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a service
contract which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Biographical information of the Directors is set out in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 19 to
22 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2023, the interests or short positions of the Directors and
chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provision of the SFO) or which were required to be
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO
or which were required, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 (the “Model Code”), were

ESZNTETBRASREKRM. BERG
RARSF Z AL RR R

RZZB_=FRA=1+H BEEREARREET
BABRARBREBEEE(EEREHFLPE
RBIFEXVED) Z B tn - RO REST - #E
BREZESRBEGIEXVBE7RFESHFAM
SARFNMBRAZ ERmSIAR (BRREZES R
HIERPIE BIEOOR EFRGF R 2 s S0k
B SIREESF RHE RPISE 352 RAR N A
FEZERMZBRIRE  FAREME+FIE
EHBETAESETEARZNRETA((HRE
SADAMEARNRR] LB EmSORRIT ¢

as follows:
Long positions in the Shares and underlying shares of the RAEATROREERAZEHE :
Company:
Number of Shares
ROEE
Approximate
percentage
of the issued
Personal Corporate share capital of
Name of Director interest interest Total the Company Note2
HARATE BITRE
EEpns PN £ DR et B "ot wE2
Mr. Ho Wong Meng = 260,000,000 260,000,000 18.99%

Ho Wong Meng 7t 4

Notes:

(1) These Shares were held by Excite Opportunity Fund L.P., an exempted limited
partnership established in accordance with the Exempted Limited Partnership Law
of Cayman Islands, and managed by Excite Investments Holdings Limited (as
general partner) which was wholly-owned by Mr. Ho, an executive Director.

) The percentage is calculated on the basis of 1,369,157,235 Shares in issue as at
30 June 2023.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2023, none of the Directors or chief
executives of the Company had or was deemed to have any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which were required to be recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2023, the following persons or corporations (other than
Directors or chief executives of the Company) were interested in 5% or
more of the issued share capital of the Company which were recorded in
the register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO, or to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and the Listing Rules:
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TERRREG. HBRRRDRESFZE
BRRE

RIZZ=FRA=TH BEARFAREESFR
HERPISE 336 (R BAFENRR B LMATR - 3R
B METE GRBIE XVERSE 2 M3 0 B2 IR K
EHRBNARBEHES AR RD EITIRA 5% 3 A
FRENATIEE (EFHARREETHRAR
RSN ZAE

Long positions in the Shares and underlying shares of the REATRGEHEBERG ZFE -
Company:
Approximate
percentage
of the issued
Number of share capital of
Name of Shareholder Nature of Interest/Capacity Shares held the Company Mete3)
EERATERITRE
REHSE, £ BT 56 AR HHE B E 5 b v
Excite Opportunity Fund LP. Beneficial owner 260,000,000 18999 (Motestand2)
Excite Opportunity Fund LP. ERER A (1 22)
Excite Investments Holdings Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 260,000,000 18999, (Metel
Excite Investments Holdings Limited TP AR 2 S i)
Glorious Future Fund SPC Interest of a controlled corporation 260,000,000 18.99% (Mete?)
Glorious Future Fund SPC SIS A R Z (Hiz2)
AG Investment Management Company Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 260,000,000 18.99% (ore?
AG Investment Management Company Limited Sz VNG S (it2)
Mr.Tang Yuk Fan Interest of a controlled corporation 260,000,000 18.99% More?
Tang Yuk Fan 54 SR NG - 2y (Wi322)
Eriska Investment Fund Ltd Beneficial owner 131,800,000 9.63%
Eriska Investment Fund Ltd ERBBA
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (Continued)

Long positions in the Shares and underlying shares of the
Company: (Continued)

Notes:

(1) These Shares were held by Excite Opportunity Fund L.P., an exempted limited
partnership established in accordance with the Exempted Limited Partnership Law
of Cayman Islands, and managed by Excite Investments Holdings Limited (as
general partner). Accordingly, Excite Investments Holdings Limited was deemed to
be interested in the Shares held by Excite Opportunity Fund L.P. under the SFO.

(2) Glorious Future Fund SPC was the limited partner of Excite Opportunity Fund L.P.,
whose management shares were held by AG Investment Management Company
Limited in its capacity as investment manager. AG Investment Management
Company Limited was wholly-owned by Mr. Tang Yuk Fan. Accordingly, each of
Glorious Future Fund SPC, AG Investment Management Company Limited and
Mr. Tang Yuk Fan was deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Excite
Opportunity Fund L.P. under the SFO.

(3) The percentage is calculated on the basis of 1,369,157,235 Shares in issue as at
30 June 2023.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2023, the Company had not been
notified by any person or company, other than Directors or chief executives
of the Company whose interests are set out in the section headed
“DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS OR SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES” in this report, who had
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were
recorded in the register to be kept by the Company under section 336 of
the SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Share Option Scheme’)
was conditionally adopted by the Shareholders on 1 November 2017 and
became unconditional on 2 November 2017. A summary of the principal
terms of the Share Option Scheme are as follows:

Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives and/or
rewards to eligible participants for their contributions to, and continuing
efforts to promote the interests of, the Company.

Participants of the Share Option Scheme

The eligible participant(s) of the Share Option Scheme is/are full time or
part time employees of the Group (including any directors, whether
executive or non-executive and whether independent or not, of the
Group); and any business or joint venture partners, contractors, agents or
representatives, consultants, advisers, suppliers, producers or licensors,
customers, licensees (including any sub-licensee) or distributors, landlords
or tenants (including any sub-tenants) of the Group or any person who, in
the sole discretion of the Board, has contributed or may contribute to the
Group.

Maximum number of Shares available for issue

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options which may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company must not, in aggregate,
exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of the approval of the
Share Option Scheme.

Maximum entitlement of each eligible participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted to each eligible participant or grantee (including exercised
and outstanding options) in any twelve (12)-month period up to the date
of grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
Time of exercise of options

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, an option may be
exercised in whole or in part at any time during the period to be
determined and notified by the Directors to the grantee thereof at the time
of making an offer provided that such period shall not exceed the period of
ten (10) years from the date of the grant of the particular option but
subject to the provisions for early termination but subject to the early
termination of the Share Option Scheme.

There is no specified minimum period under the Share Option Scheme for
which an option must be held or the performance target which must be
achieved before an option can be exercised under the terms of the Share
Option Scheme.

Acceptance of options

An offer of the grant of an option shall be made to eligible participants in
writing (@and unless so made shall be invalid) in such form as the Board may
from time to time determine and shall remain open for acceptance by the
eligible participant concerned for a period of twenty-one (21) days
inclusive of, from the date upon which it is made provided that no such
offer shall be open for acceptance after the earlier of the date falling 10
years after the adoption date or the termination of the Share Option
Scheme.

A non-refundable nominal consideration of HK$1.00 is payable by the
grantee upon acceptance of an option. An option shall be deemed to have
been accepted when the duplicate letter comprising acceptance of the
option duly signed by the eligible participant together with the said
consideration of HK$1.00 is received by the Company.

Exercise price

The subscription price for Shares under the Share Option Scheme may be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion but in any event will not
be less than the highest of: (i) the closing price of the Shares on the Stock
Exchange as shown in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on
the offer date, which must be a business day; (i) the average of the closing
prices of the Shares as shown in the daily quotations sheets of the Stock
Exchange for the five (5) business days immediately preceding the offer
date; and (iii) the nominal value of the Share on the offer date.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
Duration of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme shall continue in force for the period
commencing from the adoption date and expiring at the close of business
on the date which falls ten (10) years after the adoption date, after such
period no further options will be granted but the provisions of the Share
Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect in respect of any
options granted before its expiry or termination but not yet exercised.

Movements relating to the share options granted during the year ended
30 June 2023 were as follows:
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Number of share options
BRER
Closing
At1July At30June Exercise Vesting price
Capacity Date of grant 2022 Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled 2023 Validity period price period  (per share)
R R
kSt -3 it okt 3 W E
af RHEH tA-H ERi iy d BAH B ~A=tH ByE i ol K (8R)
Business partners 4 December 2017 54,766,288 - - - - 54766288 4 December 2017 to HKS1.94 No HKS1.88
3 December 2027
E ZE-tfF **—tﬁ ABAZ  1wETL & 1%%R
+-AmA T-HET-A=H
Advisor 9July 2018 13691572 - - - - 13691572 9 July 2018 to 8 July 2028 HKS1.57 No HKS1.57
B “E)\E Z2-\FtANRE  157%R & 15787
tANA ZZZ\F+ANR
68457860 = = - - 68457860
During the Year, no option of the Company was granted, exercised, F R W HEKXAGEBRECERLE ~ 17(# - #HiT

cancelled or lapsed. As at 30 June 2023, the Company had 68,457,860
accumulated total outstanding share options under the Share Option
Scheme at an exercise price of HK$1.94 and HK$1.57 per Share. Save for the
aforementioned share options, the Company does not have any other
outstanding share option. The total number of shares available for grant by
the Company under the Share Option Scheme was 68,457,863 shares as
1 July 2022 and 30 June 2023, which represents approximately 5% of the
Company's issued shares as at 1 July 2022 and 30 June 2023 and the
number of Shares that may be issued in respect of options and awards
granted under all schemes of the Company during the period of 1 July
2022 to 30 June 2023 (i.e. 68,457,860 Shares under the Share Option
Scheme) divided by the weighted average number of Shares in issue for
the year ended 30 June 2023 (i.e. 1,369,157,235 Shares) is approximately
5%.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, every Director shall
be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which he/she shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any
act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of the duty of
his/her office.

The Company has taken out directors’ liability insurance throughout the
year, which provides appropriate cover for the Directors and the directors
of the subsidiaries of the Company.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme and the convertible bond as disclosed
in Note 31 to the consolidated financial statements, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Group, or existed during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed, no transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director or the Director's connected entity had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the Year.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE WITH A
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

Save as disclosed, there were no other contracts of significance between
the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, and a controlling Shareholder or
any its subsidiaries subsisting at the end of the year or at any time during
the Year.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the Year, as far as the Company is aware, there was no material
breach of non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations by the
Group that has a significant impact on the business and operations of the
Group.
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CHANGE IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes in the

information of the Directors are as follows:

(1) Mr.Chung Dan has passed away on 7 April 2023;

(2)  Mr. Leung Wai Tai has been appointed as the independent non-
executive Director, a member and the chairman of the nomination
committee and a member of each of the audit committee and
remuneration committee of the Company, all with effect from 16
June 2023.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the Year, the following Director is considered to have interests in
the business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group pursuant to the Listing Rules,
particulars of which are set out below:
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Name of entity which business
is considered to compete or
likely to compete with the business

Name of Director of the Group
HEBWABELEBMELER
EEnE FARERRECERER

Mr. Ho Wong Meng Frontier Capital Group Limited and
its subsidiary

Frontier Capital Group Limited
REMBAR

Ho Wong Meng %t 4

Description of business of
the entity which is
considered to compete or
likely to compete with the
business of the Group
WRBEAEEMERER
RARERRF2ERZ
EBHE

Gaming

B¥

Nature of interest in
the entity

REERzEZME

Executive chairman and
director

HITESERES

Note: Mr. Ho is interested in 41,443,500 shares of Frontier Capital Group Limited,

representing 15% of the number of issued shares of Frontier Capital Group Limited.

As the Board is independent of the boards of the above-mentioned entities
and the above Director cannot control the Board, the Group is therefore
capable of carrying on its business independently of, and at arm’s length
from, the business of these entities.

For the year ended 30 June 2023, save as disclosed above and as so far as is
known to the Directors, no Directors or their respective associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) had any interest in a business which competes
or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group.

Bfat © Ho %t 4 M Frontier Capital Group Limited Z 41,443,500
BRBROHFPHEEER  BE
Limited 2 21T A {7 15% °

74 Frontier Capital Group
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
and any substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into
or in existence during the Year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Company did not have any connected transactions which were
subject to the reporting requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules for the year ended 30 June 2023.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES
During the year ended 30 June 2023, neither the Company nor any of its

subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to
shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Full details on the Company's corporate governance practices are set out
on pages 36 to 59 of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established with written terms of reference
which are in line with the Code on Corporate Governance Practices as set
out in the Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and the Audit Committee
comprises three independent non-executive Directors.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group's consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 30 June 2023.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this report of annual
results, the Company has maintained the sufficient public float as required
under the Listing Rules during the Year.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no pre-emptive rights provisions in the Articles of Association of
the Company, or under the Cayman Islands Companies Law, which would
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing
Shareholders.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2023
have been audited by BDO Limited who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment in the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company.

By order of the Board

Ho Wong Meng
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 28 September 2023
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

During the year ended 30 June 2023, the Company has applied the
principles and complied with the applicable code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code that were in force during the year as set out
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules as its code of corporate governance
(the "CG Code") except for the deviation from the code provisions which
are explained below.

Code Provision C.2.1

Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separated and should not be performed by
the same individual.

Mr. Ho Wong Meng (“Mr. Ho") currently assumes the roles of both the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer. The Board believes that vesting
the roles of both Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in the same person
provides the Company with strong and consistent leadership, allows for
effective and efficient planning and implementation of business decisions
and strategies, and is beneficial to the business prospects and
management of the Group. Although Mr. Ho performs both the roles of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, the division of responsibilities
between the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer is clearly established.
These two roles are performed by Mr. Ho distinctly.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as
the code of conduct for securities transactions by directors (the “Model
Code").

All Directors have confirmed, following the specific enquiry by the
Company, that they complied with the Model Code throughout the year
ended 30 June 2023 and up to the date of this report of annual results.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The principal duty of the Board is to ensure that the Company is properly
managed in the interest of the Shareholders.

Composition of the Board of Directors

The Board currently comprises five Directors, of whom two are executive
Directors and three are independent non-executive Directors. The names
of the Directors during the Year and up to the date of this annual report are
set out below:

Executive Directors
Mr. Ho Wong Meng (Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Aurelio Jr. Dizon Tablante

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Lau Ka Ho

Mr. Cheng Hong Wai

Mr. Leung Wai Tai (appointed on 16 June 2023)
Mr. Chung Dan (passed away on 7 April 2023)

The Board possesses a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the businesses of the
Group. Biographical information of the Directors and the relationship
among the members of the Board are set out in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” in this
annual report. Updated list of Directors identifying their role and
function are maintained on the websites of the Stock Exchange at
http://www.hkexnews.hk and the Company at http://www.ientcorp.com.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Chairman and Chief Executive

The Chairman takes primary responsibility for ensuring that good corporate
governance practices and procedures are established, and is responsible
for the management of the Board and ensures that all Directors receive
adequate, complete and reliable information in a timely manner and
appropriate briefing on issues arising at Board meetings. The Chief
Executive Officer is primarily responsible for the overall management of the
Group and oversight of the management. The management is responsible
for the day-to-day operations of the Group. The roles and division of
responsibilities between the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are
clearly established. In addition, the Company has established the executive
committee, the audit committee, the nomination committee and the
remuneration committee with respective terms of reference to assist the
Board in focusing on specific matters, fulfill their roles and functions
delegated by the Board, and make any necessary recommendations of the
Board.

Presently, Mr. Ho Wong Meng assumes the roles of both the Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer. The reasons for the deviation of the code
provision C.2.1 under the CG Code are set out in the section headed
“Compliance with the Corporate Governance Code”.

Board Independence

All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business
experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient
and effective functioning. Independent non-executive Directors are invited
to serve on the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee.

The Board has established mechanisms to ensure that independent views
are available to the Board. During the Year, the Board also reviewed and
considered the mechanisms in place to ensure independent views and
input are available to the Board. These mechanisms include:

the Board ensures the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive Directors and at least one-third of its members being
independent non-executive Directors (or such higher threshold as
may be required by the Listing Rules from time to time), with at least
one independent non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise. Further, independent non-executive
Directors will be appointed to Board Committees as required under
the Listing Rules and as far as practicable to ensure independent
views are available;
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Board Independence (Continued)

the Nomination Committee strictly adheres to the Nomination Policy
(as defined below) and Board Diversity Policy (as defined below) with
regard to the nomination and appointment of independent non-
executive Directors, and is mandated to assess annually the
independence of independent non-executive Directors to ensure
that they can continually exercise independent judgments;

the Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) are
entitled to obtain further information from the management on the
various matters to be discussed at Board meetings and, where
necessary, independent advice from external professional advisers at
the Company’s expense; and

the Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
from each of the independent non-executive Directors. The
Company is of the view that all of the independent non-executive
Directors meet the guidelines for assessing independence as set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers them to be
independent.

The independent non-executive Directors are considered by the Board to
be independent of the management and free of any relationship that
could materially interfere with the exercise of their independent
judgments. The Board considers that each of the independent non-
executive Directors brings his own relevant expertise to the Board and its
deliberations. None of the independent non-executive Directors has any
business or financial interests with the Group nor has any relationship with
other Directors.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Appointment, Re-election and Retirement of the Directors

By virtue of article 83(3) of the Articles of Association of the Company, the
Directors shall have the power from time to time and at any time to
appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board
or as an addition to the existing Board. Any Director appointed by the
Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting
of Shareholders after his appointment and be subject to re-election at such
meeting and any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the
existing Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.

In compliance with the code provision in B.2.2 of the CG Code all Directors
are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
Furthermore, pursuant to the article 84(1) of the Articles of Association of
the Company, at each annual general meeting one-third of the Directors
for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three (3), the
number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by
rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an
annual general meeting at least once every three years.

Each of Mr. Lau Ka Ho, Mr. Cheng Hong Wai and Mr. Leung Wai Tai, who
were appointed as independent non-executive Directors, entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three years
commencing on the date of his appointment and is subject to retirement
by rotation in accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company.

Appropriate liability insurance for the Directors has been arranged for
indemnifying their liabilities arising out of corporate activities.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Board Meetings

Board meetings are held regularly and at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals to approve, among other things, the
financial results of the Company. Regular Board meetings are scheduled in
advance to give the Directors an opportunity to attend. All Directors are
invited to include matters in the agenda for regular Board meetings. For all
other Board meetings, reasonable notices are given to Directors. Directors
can attend Board meetings either in person or by electronic means of
communication.

If a substantial Shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest in a
matter to be considered by the Board which the Board has determined to
be material, the matter will be dealt with by a physical Board meeting
rather than by a written resolution. Independent non-executive Directors
who, have no material interest in the transaction will be present at such
Board meeting.

The company secretary of the Company is responsible for taking minutes
of all Board and Board committee meetings. Draft minutes are circulated to
Board or Board committee members unless a conflict of interest arises and
the final version of minutes are open for inspection by the Directors upon
reasonable notice.

For the year ended 30 June 2023, five Board meetings, one annual general
meeting and one extraordinary general meeting were held.

The external auditor attended the AGM held on 2 December 2022 to
answer questions about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and
content of the auditor’s report, the accounting policies and auditor
independence and the Chairman also held a meeting with the
independent non-executive Directors without the presence of other
Directors during the Year.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued) EEg @)
Board Meetings (Continued) -84 1C-)

Details of the attendance of directors are set out below. The attendance of BB F & 7 FIBEHIWO T - FREFERNRRE
a Director is stated by reference to the number of meetings held during his  ZEMEEM s @ EHEZE LB ETRE

TN

tenure if he was appointed part way during the Year. TZedREMI L -

Number of meetings during the Year

FREZIRE
Attended/Eligible to attend
BHE SEKRLE
Annual Extraordinary
General General
Meeting Meeting
held on held on
Board 2 December 22 May
Meetings 2022 2023

R-ZB-—-F R=-ZT—-=
+=A=H HEA=t+=H
BITHKRR BTHRRE
BEEeed BEXE BRIKE

Executive Directors HITESE
Mr. Ho Wong Meng (Chairman of the Board  Ho Wong Meng 5t 4

and Chief Executive Officer) (BEESEEHFTEAER) 5/5 11 11
Mr. Aurelio Jr. Dizon Tablante Aurelio Jr. Dizon Tablante 5t 4 5/5 1/1 171

Independent non-executive Directors B EEHTESE

Mr. Lau Ka Ho BIRFFKE 5/5 11 1/1

Mr. Cheng Hong Wai BB R4 5/5 1/1 1/1

Mr. Leung Wai Tai Mo ZNE IR ofe B (M) 1/1 N/A N/A
T EA T EA

Mr. Chung Dan (et $B R S H (W) 3/3 /1 N/A

T EA
Notes: Kzt -
(1 Mr. Leung Wai Tai was appointed as independent non-executive director on 16 (1) REREER_E_=F A+ NBEZTAEBIIHE
June 2023. BiTESE -
(2)  Mr.Chung Dan passed away on 7 April 2023. Q EBREENR-ZZT-=FMA LA -
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INDUCTION AND CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Newly appointed Directors are provided with induction training. Each of
them will receive a Director’s Handbook which contains the terms of
reference of the Board’s committees, the information on the duties and
responsibilities of directors under statutory regulations and the Listing
Rules, and other information on corporate governance matters. They will
also receive the materials on the operations and business of the Group.

The Directors should participate in continuing professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. The Company
has provided the Directors with the monthly updates on the Group's
performance, position and prospects, and the latest development of the
Listing Rules, and the relevant laws, rules and regulations relating to the
Directors’ duties and responsibilities.

All Directors have provided the Company with their training records for the
year ended 30 June 2023 and all of them had participated in continuing
professional development activities by attending the training courses,
seminars, workshops and/or training on corporate governance, regulatory
development or other relevant topics during the year ended 30 June 2023.

For the year ended 30 June 2023, the Directors have participated in the
following continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills:

HITES
Ho Wong Meng 7t 4

Executive Directors
Mr. Ho Wong Meng
Mr. Aurelio Jr. Dizon Tablante

Independent non-executive Directors BIFHITES
Mr. Lau Ka Ho BARZHE
Mr. Cheng Hong Wai BER{Z S A&
Mr. Leung Wai Tai BRI A

Aurelio Jr. Dizon Tablante 4& 4

TREGHRE

ARRFHEERER

MR TEFHEREAREI - SLEFHKE
EETRTH ETFHAEZTCRE e RESR
CBERREERRETRAT ZBEER -
ARCEEREEHRBZEMER - RET K
NEBARE EEREBH -

EER2ESBEXERUBRITHENZR
Wi MREBBEABEAMRIAMENER
THEFSFELER - AARIEEARESREM
BRAAKREZRR HREMBZEFER I
RUEBALEMARAAMEEE BERETHAH
ZHRRRAR  RAIRMRO 2 S BERBN

EREFHERAARARERENBE_ZT =
FRAZTHLEFEMEZFIIZER - BEZ
TE_=FRA=THULEFE FFHEL2EEE
BEXEREY BRLFEIRE  Hiag T
ET R,/ RBEREEER AR BERIEMA
B AR 2 A o

BE_ZT_=-F/ A=1TBHLHFE EFC2H
THREERER  AERREFREFZNEN
e

Type of continuous professional development

FEEXBRER
Attending seminars or Reading materials
giving talks relevant to the
of seminars/webinars/  directors’ duties and
conference/forums responsibilities
HEBERERNE
HEmNg '8 FHRESHER
i E B REAE BEZREMH
= v
= v
4 v
v v
v v
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BOARD COMMITTEE
Executive Committee

The executive committee of the Company (the “Executive Committee’)
comprises two executive Directors as at the date of this annual report,
namely Mr. Ho Wong Meng (Chairman of the Executive Committee) and
Mr. Aurelio Jr. Dizon Tablante.

The primary duties of the Executive Committee are, inter alia, to advise the
Board in formulating policies in relation to the business operations of the
Group, supervise the management to implement the policies laid down by
the Board, make recommendations to the Board as to the Group's business
plans, and oversee the management and the daily operations of the Group.

Audit Committee

The Company has established an Audit Committee in compliance with
Listing Rules and written terms of reference in compliance with code
provision D.3.3 of the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules.

As at the date of this annual report, the audit committee of the Company
(the “Audit Committee”) comprises all three independent non-executive
Directors namely, Mr. Cheng Hong Wai (Chairman of the Audit Committee),
Mr. Lau Ka Ho and Mr. Leung Wai Tai, with written terms of reference which
are available on the website of the Stock Exchange and the website of the
Company. At least one of the members of the Audit Committee possesses
appropriate professional accounting qualification as defined under the
Listing Rules.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are, inter alia, to oversee the
relationship with the external auditor, to review the financial information of
the Group, and to review and supervise the financial reporting process,
internal controls and risk management functions of the Group.

The Audit Committee also met with the external auditor not less than twice
to discuss the financial reporting process and internal controls of the Group
during the Year and had reviewed the interim report of the Company for
the six months ended 31 December 2022 and the annual report of the
Company for the year ended 30 June 2022. The Audit Committee also
received the terms of reference of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board the re-appointment

of BDO Limited as the Company’s external auditor subject to the
Shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming AGM.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)
Audit Committee (Continued)

During the Year, the Audit Committee held four meetings to review the
financial reporting process, internal controls and risk management systems
of the Group, the effectiveness of the internal audit function of the Group,
the Company’s reports and accounts including the interim and annual
results of the Group, the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor, and provide advice and recommendations to the Board.

The attendance records of the members of the Audit Committee are set
out below:

Members of the Audit Committee

EREEENE

Mr. Cheng Hong Wai (Chairman) BB (E)
Mr. Lau Ka Ho BN

Mr. Leung Wai Tai Mete? BTt e (Wi 1)
Mr. Chung Dan "2 4% % 4 A (Wi2)
Notes:

(1) Mr. Leung Wai Tai was appointed as a member of Audit Committee on 16 June
2023.

) Mr. Chung Dan passed away on 7 April 2023.
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Committee meetings Attended/
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)
Nomination Committee

The Company has established a Nomination Committee in compliance
with Listing Rules and written terms of reference in compliance with code
provision B.3.1 of the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules.

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) comprises two independent non-executive Directors and
one executive Director as at the date of this annual report, namely
Mr. Leung Wai Tai (Chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr. Cheng
Hong Wai and Mr. Ho Wong Meng, with written terms of reference which
are available on the website of the Stock Exchange and the website of the
Company.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are, inter alia, to review
the structure, size and the composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board at least annually and make recommendations
to the Board on any proposed changes to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy; to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members and select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships; to assess the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors; to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of
Directors and succession planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman,
the managing Director or the Chief Executive of the Company; and to
nominate and recommend candidates to fill a casual vacancy on the Board
for the Board's approval.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy") setting out the approach to achieve and maintain diversity on the
Board. Under the Board Diversity Policy, the Nomination Committee is
responsible to assess the appropriate mix of skills, experience, knowledge,
expertise and diversity (including but not limited to gender, age, cultural/
educational background, or professional experience) required on the Board
based on current and projected future activities of the Group, and the
extent to which the required skills, experience, knowledge, expertise and
diversity are represented on the Board; to oversee the Board succession to
maintain an appropriate mix of skills, experience, knowledge, expertise and
diversity on the Board; to propose to the Board the measurable objectives;
and to review the Board Diversity Policy and discuss any required changes
with the Board.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)
Nomination Committee (Continued)
Board Diversity Policy (Continued)

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the
Company believes increasing diversity at the Board level as an important
element in achieving its strategic objectives and its sustainable
development.

When determining the Board’s composition, Board diversity has been
considered from a number of perspectives including, but not limited to,
gender, age, culture and educational background, ethnicity, skills,
language, background, education knowledge, industry experience and
professional experience. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy and candidates will be considered against objective criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

The Board has actively identified individuals that are suitable and qualified
to become Board members to fulfill the Board Diversity Policy and enhance
gender diversity on the Board. As to develop a pipeline of potential
successors for the Board, the Company will also proactively provide internal
trainings to our senior managements and will take into account the factor
of gender diversity when accessing suitable candidates for our senior
management in the future.

The Company may also engage with recruitment agencies to identify
potential successors for the Board and enhance gender diversity in the
coming years, if necessary.

As at 30 June 2023, the Board comprised five male Directors, and the
percentage of male and female employees of the Group are approximately
62.1% and 37.9% respectively. While the Board has a domination of male
composition, the Company will be appointed at least one female director
on or before 31 December 2024 to achieve a female representation in the
Board in compliance with Listing Rules.

The Board considers that the Group’s workforce (including Directors) are
diverse in terms of gender. The Group will continue to apply the principle
of appointments based on merits with reference to the Board Diversity
Policy as a whole, and we have also taken, and will continue to take steps
to promote gender diversity at all levels of our Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)
Nomination Committee (Continued)
Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted a nomination policy which sets out the following
nomination procedures, criteria and process in the nomination and

appointment of Directors (the “Nomination Policy”).

I. Selection Criteria

The Nomination Committee shall consider the following criteria in
evaluating and selecting candidates for directorships:

(i) Characteristics of individual director
Integrity and accountability
Informed judgment
Prudence and maturity

Principled and professional

Other characteristics as the Nomination Committee

deems appropriate

(i) Competencies in the following areas to ensure the Board's

overall suitability
Accounting and finance
Law
Industry knowledge

Marketing

Other competencies as the Nomination Committee

deems appropriate

The Nomination Committee shall also consider:

the structure, size and composition of the Board;

the appropriate mix of competencies between Directors to
enable the Board to discharge its responsibilities effectively;

the appropriate balance of skills, experience, knowledge,

expertise and diversity of the Board is maintained, and the
Board Diversity Policy adopted by the Board is followed;

the capability of the candidate to devote the necessary time

and commitment to the role; and

the potential conflicts of interest, and independence.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)
Nomination Committee (Continued)

Nomination Policy (Continued)

I.

Selection Criteria (Continued)

If more than one candidate are nominated by the Nomination
Committee, the Nomination Committee shall base on the criteria
and recommend the most competent candidate to the Board. The
Nomination Committee shall also consider the number of board
positions they hold in other firms. After the Nomination Committee
reviewed and considered the candidates, the Nomination
Committee makes recommendations to the Board on any proposed
changes to implement the Company’s corporate strategy. Detailed
background information in relation to potential candidate should be
provided to all Directors for consideration. An offer of a director
appointment must be made by the Board’s approval, with any
recommendations from the Nomination Committee having been
circulated to all Director. The new director shall sign a consent letter
to act as a Director.

Nomination Procedures

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company and
the Listing Rules, (i) every Director should be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years, all retiring Directors shall
be eligible for re-election at each AGM; and (ii) any Director
appointed by the Board shall hold office only until the next general
meeting of the Company, the retiring Director shall be eligible for re-
election at the general meeting of the Company.

For those who offered themselves for re-election at the AGM or the
other general meetings of the Company, the Nomination Committee
shall take into account the fulfillment of duties, contribution, and
attendance of Board meetings and general meetings. The
Nomination Committee shall also access whether the retiring
Directors continue to meet the criteria. After the Nomination
Committee reviewed and considered the retiring Directors who offer
themselves for re-election, the Nomination Committee shall make
recommendations to the Board.

Based on the recommendations made by the Nomination
Committee, the Board shall make recommendations to the
Shareholders on the retiring Directors standing for re-election at the
AGM or other general meetings of the Company, and provide
available biographical information of the retiring Directors in
accordance with the requirements under the Listing Rules to enable
the Shareholders to make informed decision on the re-election of
such retiring Directors at the AGM or other general meetings of the
Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)
Nomination Committee (Continued)
Nomination Policy (Continued)

2. Nomination Procedures (Continued)

The Nomination Committee considers that all Board members
possess the relevant skills and knowledge in the area of the business
operations of the Group with several of them also possess
professional qualifications. The Nomination Committee considers
that an appropriate mix of skills, experience, knowledge, expertise
and diversity on the Board is maintained and therefore no
measurable objectives were proposed to the Board.

During the year ended 30 June 2023, the Nomination Committee held one
meeting, (i) to review the structure, size and composition of the Board; to
assess the appropriate mix of skills, experience, knowledge, expertise and
diversity on the Board; (ii) to review the Board Diversity Policy and monitor
its implementation; (iii) to review the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors; and (iv) to consider the qualifications of the
retiring Directors standing for election at the annual general meeting of
the Company.

The attendance records of the members of the Nomination Committee are

set out below:

Members of the Nomination Committee
REZEERE

Mr. Ho Wong Meng Ho Wong Meng 7& 4

Mr. Cheng Hong Wai HERERE
Mr. Leung Wai Tai (fe? P B IR L H (i)
Mr. Chung Dan "2 $E R e A (Wit2)

Notes:

Q)] Mr. Leung Wai Tai was appointed as a member and the chairman of the
Nomination Committee on 16 June 2023.

) Mr. Chung Dan passed away on 7 April 2023.

50 Annual Report £ #§ 2022/23

EEEZEET@)

REZEES ()

EEREE)

2 BEEFE)
h%éﬁaw%%5§$A&iﬁ%ﬁﬁ$

BT ¥ TSRS AR R R AN HAR

%%W%EE%Q% BEEEERACHK
BEZERSRE - L5 0% IERZ
TALMEEES Bt ErESe@Ea
gy B o

HE—T— E/‘—\Hj-i—ﬁiir REEZEE
BERIT—ANEFE NORTEZTSHERE - AR
T AR %15%%/\556”& EEREC R S A=
E&yEME’JLEﬁ“ (VBN EEEZ T
Eﬁ&%ﬁ%‘?ﬁ%ﬂ (i) hﬁﬁ%ﬁiﬁﬂﬁ%%Z%ﬁ
5 RivERERNRRIREAFRELE 2R

TE%%Z%%% G

REZBERBZHFEREEHIINT

Committee meetings Attended/
Eligible to Attended

BHE HEER
LEZE28E

11
11
N/A
NiE A
11

it -

) REFEENR-_Z_=F AT BEZTAELZ
BEKERERE

2 EREER-ZZ-_=FMAHE-



B IRRE AR A A

International Entertainment Corporation

Corporate Governance Report

BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)
Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee in compliance
with Listing Rules and written terms of reference in compliance with code
provision E.1.2 of the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules.

As at the date of this annual report, the remuneration committee of the
Company (the “"Remuneration Committee’) comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lau Ka Ho (Chairman of
the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Cheng Hong Wai and Mr. Leung Wai
Tai, with written terms of reference which are available on the website of
the Stock Exchange and the website of the Company.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are, inter alia, to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company'’s policy and structure for
all remuneration of the Directors and the senior management of the Group
and on the establishment of a formal, transparent procedure for
developing the remuneration policy and to make recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and
the senior management of the Group, and the remuneration of the
non-executive Directors and to review and/or approve matters relating to
shares schemes under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

The remuneration of the Directors and the senior management of the
Group is based on the performance and experience of individuals and is
determined with reference to the Group’s performance, the remuneration
benchmark in the industry and the prevailing market conditions.

During the year ended 30 June 2023, the Remuneration Committee held
one meeting to review the remuneration policy of the Company and make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of the Directors and
the senior management of the Group.

The attendance records of the members of the Remuneration Committee
are set out below:

Members of the Remuneration Committee

LEEARE

EETEET@)

FWEES

ARAIERE FTRBRIEMEE S - Wikt
TR B 8% 14 B8 2 > 2B AP AP BIIESCEBE D 2
RE IR ST Em B S E

RAFREY  ARAFHEES((FHEESE])
B =RBIIFMITE AR - BB S 58 4 (F
ZEeTF) TRELLENREREE  HER
BESEFHNBIPAEERARRIREE

FMEREE T BRAR(EPEE)IARAE
BEZLAEESREEAB 2 HMBR AR -
AR BHIFIERFMBR c ERMABHE 212
FREFESRMEZ  KRENNTES AL
ESRERABZHMORARIFENTEZZH
M=t e R ENR SHtE ETRA
F1I7EETARRNAEINER -

EERAEESRERAB ZHHMOBREREAR
ARG WRB2EAKEEE  ERFMER
REFTRERE

REBE_Z_=FA=1THLFE HFMES
ERBRITREE  UEHARR 2 FHECR -
AEHEERAEEGREBEAE2FMRES

SRR o

HFEZE S E 2 HECEHINT

Committee meeting Attended/
Eligible to Attend

FHEEERE BHE HEER
HEZESSR

Mr. Lau Ka Ho (Chairman) NREEE(FE) /1
Mr. Cheng Hong Wai EERIZ S A4 1
Mr. Leung Wai Taij Mete?) SPAEFR A M (1) N/A
TEA

Mr. Chung Dan "t 48 K e A (Wir2) 11

Notes:

(1) Mr. Leung Wai Tai was appointed as a member of the Remuneration Committee
on 16 June 2023.

) Mr. Chung Dan passed away on 7 April 2023.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is collectively responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties including:

(i)  to develop and review the Company's policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations from time to
time;

(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management of the Group;

(i)  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices in
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv)  todevelop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to the Directors and the employees of the
Group; and

(v)  to review the Company's compliance with the code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Li Wing Wah resigned as the company secretary of the Company (the
“Company Secretary”’) on 4 August 2023.

On 4 August 2023, Mr. Wong Wing Kit has been appointed as the Company
Secretary in place of Ms. Li.

The primary corporate contact person of the Company is Mr. Ho Wong
Meng, an executive Director. Each of Ms. Li and Mr. Wong confirmed that
she/he has received 15 hours professional training under the requirement
of Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules during the Year under review.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2023. The
consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and include the
applicable disclosures required by the Listing Rules and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company, BDO Limited, with
regard to their reporting responsibilities on the Company’s financial
statements is set out in the section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report”
in this annual report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 30 June 2023, the remuneration in relation to audit
services paid or payable to the auditors of the Company and its subsidiaries
was HK$1,730,000 and HK$287,000 respectively and the remuneration in
relation to non-audit services (including agreed-upon procedures on
interim results and other non-audit services) paid or payable to the auditor
of the Company and its affiliated firm was HK$210,000.

ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICY AND
WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

The Group has established the (i) policy and measures to support anti-
corruption laws and regulations; and (i) Whistleblowing Policy and
measures for employees, suppliers and business partners to raise serious
concerns, in confidence and anonymity, with the Board about possible
improprieties in financial report or other matters of the Group. These
polities can promote high probity standards and ethical business practices.

Further details of the Group's Anti-Corruption Policy and Whistleblowing
Policy, please refer to the Company's website.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The declaration, payment and amount of the dividends will be subject to
be discretion of the Directors and will be dependent upon the Company's
earning financial condition, cash requirements and availability, the
provisions of relevant laws and all other relevant factors.
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TRER/RE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management and
internal control systems and for reviewing their effectiveness. Such systems
are established in order to carry on the business of the entity in an orderly
and efficient manner, ensure adherence to management policies,
safeguard the assets, secure as far as possible the completeness and
accuracy of records, and identify potential risks so as to manage the
identified risks, undertake the measures to mitigate the potential effects of
any misstatement or loss arising from such identified risks. The
management of the Group is responsible to identify the potential risks. The
identified risks would then be assessed for the likelihood and impact on
the financial, operational and compliance of the Group. The management
of the Group would undertake relevant measures to mitigate the potential
effects of any misstatement or loss arising from such identified risks. The
identified risks would also be reported to the Directors and disclosed the
significant risks in this annual report. In addition, the Group has adopted a
policy to handle and disseminate the inside information of the Group,
which was designed based on “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside
Information” issued by the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong
Kong.

During the Year, the Board conducted a review of the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group through the
internal audit function of the Group. The Group engaged an independent
firm to perform the internal audit function to carry out the review on the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group. The review
covered the controls over the financial, operational and compliance of the
Group. The internal audit function of the Group considered the scale of
operations of the Group and resources available and its review was based
on tests of controls, inspection of the related documents and discussion
with the relevant personnel of the Group.

After the internal audit function conducted the review, the internal audit
function submitted its review report to the Audit Committee with the key
audit findings and recommendations to improve the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group which were also presented at the
Board meeting. The internal audit function concluded that no significant
deficiency in the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group was found during the review.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

In addition, the management of the Group has provided a confirmation to
the Board on the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group. Having considered the review report prepared by
the internal audit function of the Group and the confirmation on the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group provided by the management of the Group, the Board considered
that the existing risk management and internal control systems of the
Group are effective and adequate.

The Board also reviewed, and was satisfied with, the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of the staff of the Group's accounting and
financial reporting function, and the training programmes and budget of
the Group's accounting, internal audit and financial reporting function.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board is committed to maintain an on-going and open dialogue with
current and prospective, and both individual and institutional shareholders
of the Company. A shareholders’ communication policy (the
“Shareholders Communication Policy”) was adopted throughout the
Year pursuant to the CG Code which aims at establishing two-way
relationship and communication between the Company and its
Shareholders. The Board shall review it on a regular basis to ensure its
effectiveness.

In summary, the Shareholders Communication Policy set out the provisions
with the objective of ensuring that the Shareholders are provided with
ready, equal and timely access to balanced and understandable
information about the Company in order to promote effective
communication with the Shareholders so as to enable them to engage
actively with the Company and exercise their rights as Shareholder in an
informed manner. The Shareholders Communication Policy is available on
the Company’s website (http://www.ientcorp.com) and set out the
maintenance of an effective ongoing communication with the
Shareholders.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
(Continued)

The Board strives to encourage and maintain constant dialogue with its
shareholders through various means includes: (i) financial reports and other
corporate communications. The publication of the financial reports (interim
and annual reports) and other corporate communications including but
not limited to announcements, circulars, notices, proxy forms and other
regulatory disclosure will be provided to Shareholders in accordance with
the Listing Rules and any other relevant laws and regulations to facilitate
Shareholders’ understanding; (ii) Shareholders’ meetings. (i.e. annual
general meeting, extraordinary general meeting or any other Shareholders’
meetings); and the members of the Board, in particular, either the chairmen
of Board committees or their delegates, appropriate management
executives will attend annual general meetings to answer Shareholders’
questions in normal circumstances; and (iii) Company’s Website. The
availability of latest information of the Group on the Company's website
which is an effective communication platform to the shareholders and the
investors as well as the general public.

The Company is committed to maintaining a high level of transparency
and employs a policy of open and timely disclosure of relevant information
to its shareholders and investors and discloses information in compliance
with the Listing Rules, and publishes periodic reports and announcements
to the public in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations.

During the Year, the Board has reviewed the implementation and
effectiveness of the Shareholders Communication Policy for enhancing the
investors relations, and the investors understanding of the Group's business
performance and strategies.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for the Shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting of the Company

The following procedures are subject to the Company’s Memorandum and
Articles of Association and applicable legislation and regulations.

1. Any one or more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition sent
to the Board or the Company Secretary at the address of the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong to require an
extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM") to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition, and
an EGM shall be held within two (2) months after the date of the
deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of the date
of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene an EGM, the
Shareholder(s) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by such Shareholder(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board to convene an EGM shall be reimbursed by the Company
to such Shareholder(s).

2. The written requisition must state the purposes of requisitioning the
EGM, and be signed by the Shareholder(s) concerned and may
consist of several documents in like form, each to be signed by such
Shareholders or any one of them.

3. If the requisition is in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board
to convene an EGM by serving sufficient notice in accordance with
the statutory requirements to all the registered Shareholders. On the
contrary, if the requisition is invalid, the Shareholder(s) concerned
will be advised of the invalidity and accordingly, an EGM will not be
convened.

4. An EGM must be called by written notice of not less than fourteen
(14) clear days and not less than ten (10) clear business days but if
permitted by the Listing Rules, an EGM may be called by shorter
notice, subject to the applicable laws, if it is so agreed by a majority
in number of the Shareholders having the right to attend and vote at
the EGM, being a majority together representing not less than ninety
five per cent. (95%) of the total voting rights of all Shareholders
having a right to attend and vote at the general meeting of the
Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

Procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election
as a Director

Pursuant to article 83(2) of the Articles of Association, subject to the Articles
of Association and the applicable law, the company may by ordinary
resolution elect any person to be a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or
as an additional Director.

Pursuant to article 85 of Articles of Association, no person other than a
retiring Director shall, unless recommended by the Directors for election,
be eligible for election as a Director at any general meeting unless a notice
signed by a member (other than the person to be proposed) duly qualified
to attend and vote at the meeting for which such notice is given of his
intention to propose such person for election and also a notice signed by
the person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected shall have been
lodged at the head office or at the registration office provided that the
minimum length of the period, during which such notice(s) are given, shall
be at least seven (7) days and that (if the notices are submitted after the
despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election)
the period for lodgment of such notice(s) shall commence on the day after
the despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election and end no later than seven (7) days prior to the date of such
general meeting.

Procedures for Shareholders to put forward proposals at
general meetings

Shareholders are welcomed to suggest proposals relating to the
operations, strategy and/or management of the Group to be discussed at
Shareholders’ meeting. There is no provision allowing Shareholders to
make proposals or move resolutions at the general meetings under the
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands other than to
propose a person for election as a director. Shareholders who wish to make
proposals or move a resolution may, however, follow the procedures set
out in the paragraph headed “Procedures for Shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting of the Company” under the section of
“Corporate Governance Report” of this Report written requisition to the
Board or the Company Secretary to convene an extraordinary general
meeting for putting forward proposals at the Company’s head office and
principal place of business in Hong Kong, presently at Units 2109-10, 21st
Floor, Wing On House, No. 71 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)
Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders who have enquires about the above procedures or other
enquires relating to written requisition for an EGM may write to the
Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong.

AMENDMENT OF THE COMPANY’S
CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There have been no changes in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the year ended 30 June 2023. The consolidated version of the
Memorandum of Association of the Company and the Articles of
Association of the Company is available on the website of the Stock
Exchange and the website of the Company.
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INTRODUCTION

International Entertainment Corporation (the “Company’, and
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) were principally involved
in hotel operations, leasing of properties equipped with
entertainment equipment and participating in the gaming operation
at the hotel complex of the Group in Metro Manila in the Philippines
and live poker events in Macau. The Group strives to maximise
shareholder returns, which is one of the key elements to reinforce
the foundation of the Group for long-term development and
success. This is achieved not only through enhancing the Group'’s
financial strength, but also by fulfilling its corporate social
responsibility.

The Group believes sustainability is the key to success and has
integrated this concept into its business strategy. In order to pursue
a sustainable business model, the Group has adopted the principles
of sustainable development at operational levels, integrated
environmental, social and governance ("ESG") aspects into its
management system and taken corresponding measures in its
governance perspective.

ABOUT THE ESG REPORT

The Environmental, Social and Governance Report (‘ESG Report”)
summarises the ESG initiatives, plans and performances of the Group
and demonstrates its commitment to sustainable development.

2.1 Reporting Period

This ESG Report covers the year ended 30 June 2023 (“2023"
or the “Reporting Period").
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2. ABOUT THE ESG REPORT (Continued)

2.2

2.3

24

Reporting Boundary

The reporting boundary is determined based on the revenue
contribution of the operations under the Group’s direct
operational control throughout the Reporting Period. The
reporting boundary of this ESG Report is consistent with that
of the ESG Report for the year ended 30 June 2022 ("2022").
The reporting boundary includes the Group'’s head office in
Hong Kong and the Group's operations in the Philippines and
Macau.

This year, we have included the environmental performance
of the Hong Kong head office in the Report, providing both
the Board and the management with a more comprehensive
data reference. This inclusion enables them to examine the
ESG performance of each operation, identify strengths and
weaknesses, and receive support in formulating future ESG
strategies and setting specific goals, this will effectively
accelerate the Group's transition towards green operations.
Therefore, the environmental data coverage of the 2023 ESG
Report encompasses all main operations of the Group with
direct operational control, leading to variations in data
compared to the 2022 ESG Report.

Reporting Framework

The ESG Report is prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide ("ESG
Reporting Guide”) in Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”).

Further Information

Your feedback will help the Group to continuously improve its
ESG work and performance. If you have any questions and/or
suggestions regarding this ESG Report and/or the Group's ESG
work, please communicate with the Group via email to
enquiry@ientcorp.com.
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REPORTING PRINCIPLES

The Group has adopted the following reporting principles, namely
materiality, quantitative, consistency and balance in the preparation
of the ESG Report.

Materiality: The Group determines the impact of various ESG issues
on the Group’s operations and its stakeholders through survey.
Based on the results of the stakeholder engagement and materiality
assessment survey, the Group identifies material ESG issues and
determines the appropriate management approach and strategy.

For further details, please refer to the sections headed
"STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT" and “MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT".

Quantitative: The Group has established internal guidelines and
procedures with reference to industry practices, guidelines of the
Stock Exchange or relevant government departments, as well as laws
and regulations, to collect environmental and social performance
data from various business departments, and to keep relevant
monitoring instrument records and supporting documents. Please
refer to the relevant sections in the ESG Report for the standards,
methodologies and assumptions (where applicable) for the
calculation of performance data.

Consistency: Where feasible, the Group uses consistent statistical
methods to collect ESG data, and the same conversion methods are
used. Relevant historical data has been disclosed in this ESG Report.
If there are any changes that may affect comparison with previous
reports, the Group will add remarks to the corresponding content of
the ESG Report.

Balance: The Group upholds this reporting principle to compile the
Report and highlights both achievement and improvement areas of
our ESG management to unbiasedly disclose the environmental and
social performances in the Reporting Period with the support of
pictures, charts and presentation formats whenever appropriate to
present objective and transparent information and data for readers
to make sound decisions and judgments.
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MESSAGE FROM THE BOARD
Dear Valued Stakeholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am pleased to present our
annual ESG report, which reflects our unwavering commitment to
environmental, social, and governance issues. We recognize the
significance of ESG considerations in driving sustainable business
practices, long-term success, and positive impact in the communities
we serve.

Oversight of ESG matters is a key responsibility of the Board. We
actively engage in discussions, decision-making, and governance
processes to ensure that ESG issues are integrated into our strategic
direction. By providing guidance and oversight, we foster a culture
that values and prioritizes ESG considerations throughout our
organization. Our ESG management approach is underpinned by a
robust and iterative process. We evaluate, prioritize, and manage
material ESG-related issues, including risks to our businesses, through
a systematic and structured framework. We engage with
stakeholders to understand their concerns and align our strategy
accordingly. This approach allows us to identify opportunities,
mitigate risks, and enhance our overall ESG performance (please
refer to the sections headed “CORPORATE GOVERNANCE",
“STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT” and “MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT" for
details).

In order to gain a deeper understanding of stakeholders’
expectations of the Group's sustainable development, the Group will
further strengthen its communication with stakeholders and
formulate relevant sustainable development policies and measures
with reference to their opinions to enhance the Group’s ESG
performance. The Group recognises the importance of setting
targets for its ESG performance. Therefore, the Group has set targets
for ESG issues that are material to the Group. The Board and the
senior management use the data collected to compare the Group's
performance in different years to track the progress of ESG targets.
To strive to achieve these targets, the Group implements different
environmental protection measures and raises employees’
awareness of ESG. Setting ESG targets can help raise the employees’
awareness of sustainable development and enhance the Group's
ESG performance to meet the expectations of the Group's
stakeholders. Also, regular reporting and updates from management
enable us to assess the efficacy of our initiatives, track our progress,
and make informed decisions to drive continuous improvement.
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MESSAGE FROM THE BOARD (Continued)

We believe that transparent reporting is essential for accountability
and building trust with our stakeholders. By sharing our progress,
achievements, and challenges, we demonstrate our commitment to
responsible and sustainable business practices.

As the Board of Directors, we are fully dedicated to upholding our
ESG commitments and fostering a culture of responsible corporate
citizenship. We recognize the importance of ESG integration in
driving long-term value creation and positive societal impact.
Together with our management team and employees, we will
continue to prioritize ESG issues, set ambitious goals, and work
towards building a better future for all.

As last, | would like to express my gratitude to my fellow directors,
the management team and all employees for their contributions to
the Group's sustainable development. | would also like to thank all
stakeholders for their prolonged care and support. In the future, the
Group will continue to improve its governance and transparency,
provide quality services and focus on efficient use of resources so as
to fulfil corporate social responsibility and pursue a sustainable
future.

By order of the Board

International Entertainment Corporation

Ho Wong Meng

Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group places a strong emphasis on maintaining robust
corporate governance practices to ensure the long-term
sustainability and success of our business. Our commitment to
effective risk management and internal controls is a cornerstone of
our corporate governance framework. We recognize that effective
governance, risk management, and internal control practices are
essential for building trust, protecting shareholder interests, and
creating value for all stakeholders.

The Board of Directors plays a crucial role in providing oversight and
ensuring the effectiveness of our risk management, internal control
practices and sustainable development of the Group. The Board is
committed to upholding high standards of corporate governance
and actively monitors the implementation and performance of our
internal control system and ESG practices.
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R HERERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (Continued)

The senior management has adequate knowledge of ESG and they
are familiar with the activities of different business units. They are
responsible for supervising the Group’s ESG measures, collecting and
analysing ESG data, giving suggestions to the Board on ESG issues,
reviewing ESG-related matters and promoting company-wide
awareness of ESG issues. With the assistance of the senior
management, the Board oversees ESG issues, reviews progress made
against ESG-related targets and continuously evaluates and monitors
the Group's ESG performance, risk and opportunities. The senior
management regularly holds meetings to discuss the effectiveness
of the Group’s policies and procedures and seek opportunities to
improve the Group's ESG performance. The senior management
reports its findings to the Board where appropriate so that the Board
can find solutions to manage the Group’s ESG risks and
opportunities.
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ESG Governance Structure

ESG E5% 18

The Board

- Ultimate responsibility for overseeing the
company's ESG management and disclosure
- Promote a culture of sustainable development

from top to bottom

- Setting ESG Strategy and Policy Development
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- Risk and Opportunity Oversight

« Reporting and Disclosure

Senior Management MEEE
EE?%JE’%UFEE’\JESG%W@
|

- Implementing the ESG strategy set by the Board
« Performance Monitoring

- Data Collection and Reporting to the Board
- Ensure effectiveness of the Groups'internal control system ~ «

- Collaboration with th

3oard

« Promoting company-wide awareness of ESG issues

Operations
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (Continued)

A robust internal control system plays a vital role in driving
sustainable development and enhancing our ESG performance. By
aligning our internal control practices with sustainability objectives,
we can effectively manage risks, foster operational efficiency, ensure
compliance, and create long-term value for all stakeholders. Our
commitment to the following five objectives — validation, accuracy,
completeness, physical security, and maintenance — within our
internal control system directly contributes to our sustainable
development efforts and ESG reporting.
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Basic Objectives of the Group’s Internal Control System
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Completeness FT& it

Ensure proper summarization of
information and proper preparation of
internal and external reports
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Physical Security EZ %
Limit access to both company
and customer assets,
including data
REIARMEFEE
(BIEEE) nFEER

Maintenance #t

Regular reviews, updates, and
enhancements to our controls, policies
and procedures to enable us to adapt to
changing regulatory requirements and
emerging sustainability risks
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Validation B35

Ensure the integrity of the
information disclosed in
our ESG report
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Accuracy EREME

Ensure that data is recorded
correctly and reflects

the true state of affairs
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (Continued)

Validation: By validating the accuracy and reliability of our data and
information, we ensure the integrity of our ESG reporting. Robust
validation processes help us identify and correct any inaccuracies,
enabling us to report transparently on our environmental impact,
social initiatives, and governance practices. Accurate data provides a
solid foundation for decision-making, enabling us to set meaningful
sustainability goals and track our progress over time.

Accuracy: We place great emphasis on maintaining accurate
records and information. This objective involves establishing controls
and procedures to ensure that data is recorded correctly and reflects
the true state of affairs. We employ various mechanisms, such as
regular reconciliations, segregation of duties, approval process, to
minimize inaccuracies and enhance the reliability of our financial and
operational reporting, including ESG report. By maintaining accurate
records and information, we enhance our credibility and
demonstrate our commitment to transparent reporting. Accurate
reporting allows us to showcase our achievements, address areas for
improvement, and align our sustainability efforts with industry
standards and best practices.

Completeness: A comprehensive internal control system helps us
capture and report all relevant ESG information, ensuring our
stakeholders have a complete picture of our sustainability
performance. By implementing controls and processes that promote
data completeness, we can accurately measure and report on our
environmental footprint, social impact, and governance practices.
This enables us to identify areas for improvement, showcase our
successes, and engage with stakeholders in a meaningful dialogue.
Besides, completeness can also enhance the reliability of our
information that made use by the Group itself and also external
stakeholders like investor and shareholder, in the decision-making
processes, and reduce the risk of making uninformed or incomplete
judgments.

Annual Report £ 2 2022/23

TEEED#)

BE  SRREREE A ERERA S
M BPERRE A RERRENTE
M o SEERERFE RIZE Bh B I Bl I 4L IE1E
TEJT‘/EEEZJ@ @Eﬁzﬁ £ 5375 B b B R 211
MIRRFE LS ERMEREE - RN
R BIRK TE{ TEERER  FRMIEN
REEEENIRERREEURHEERRR
TEER -

R | RPPERERERERNCENE
Ao EREPREIEGIMER - AFERIE
BRZBEBETRREBNER - HAKRAX
RS - PlanE ME R - BE O BE - FHR
12 OB A TNERIE I R S AP B A
BRE  BRRE HeREARENAE
1 o B BREFEROCEMAL - RARS
THRMMAMEEL R T R BHERD
A o ERER RS E IR R IRFIRAK
B BORT ZHCEM R - W EHPIA AT E
BRRITETEITREEMREED -

TEM  PENRNBEERA A HERMIE
Hllﬂﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁfamiafﬁ g kERM

CEREMANFEOEEE T RERMOAE
F?’*E?ﬁiﬁ BREBHEEERTEENE
I YE ﬁZTFﬁ—IL/PEﬁEiW@TEfHE#ﬁﬁf?
FIRRET  AEFEMEREER - EF K
1 ﬁz%@ﬂ#i%%ﬂiLE@?ﬁiU& BN AIRIRK
I WK HEETEERAERE BN
EERESEIUARSEBEARGURIEES &
REIN O ELRKBEFAEANEN
FYR] SE M ¢ S PR AR M D IS R0 S SE R )
HEB o



International Entertainment Corporation  BIBRIREEA R A A

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (Continued)

Physical Security: We recognize the importance of safeguarding
the physical assets of the Group and our customer, including data,
facilities, and equipment. We implement security measures at
different operating locations, such as access controls and surveillance
systems to protect these assets from unauthorized access, theft,
damage, or loss and safeguard critical information, prevent data
breaches, and protect confidential data.

Maintenance: Ongoing maintenance of our internal control system
is essential for sustainable development and effective ESG reporting.
Regular reviews, updates, and enhancements to our controls,
policies and procedures to enable us to adapt to changing
regulatory requirements and emerging sustainability risks. By
continually improving our internal control system, we enhance our
ability to identify, assess, and mitigate sustainability-related risks,
while ensuring the accuracy and reliability of our ESG reports.

By adhering to strong corporate governance principles and
maintaining effective risk management and internal control
practices, we strive to create a foundation of trust and transparency
for our stakeholders. We are committed to continuously improving
our governance practices to meet evolving regulatory requirements
and best-in-class standards, while enhancing the long-term value
creation for our shareholders and the sustainable growth of our
business.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group values its stakeholders and their feedback regarding its
businesses and ESG performance. To better understand and address
their concerns and expectations, the Group has maintained close
communication with its key stakeholders on a regular basis through
various channels. By gathering their opinions and understanding
their concerns, the Group can refine its policies and approaches on
ESG management, determine a more suitable way to address the
ESG issues, and make continuous improvements in the Group's ESG
performance.

The following table summarises stakeholders’ key communication
channels and their concerns and expectations. While the Group was
managing all ESG affairs which affect its businesses and stakeholders,
it identified the material issues in each sector of its business. The
materiality of these issues is identified through stakeholder
engagement exercises, management reviews and industry analysis.

Stakeholders
H0E

Key Communication Channels
TEEBERE
Shareholders/investors General meetings

Annual financial reports
Announcements and notices
Company website

R/ REE BERERXE
FREMBHRE
PSSR

YNGIE I

Hotel guests Customer service
Customer hotline and email

Customer satisfaction survey

BEER PR
BEFREMEE
BEmEERE
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Concerns and Expectations

BrzEERE

Financial performance

Sustainable business development
Environmental responsibility
Accurate, complete and timely information
disclosure

Shareholders’ rights and interest
Corporate governance

BB IE R

AIREEBER

RIREMT

SEREERE B KE
PRER M 2

EER

Customers' satisfaction
Protection of customers' privacy
Environmental responsibility
Hotel safety and security
Complaint management
Emergency response
BEEmEE

REE PR

E&iﬁﬁﬁ
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (Continued) 6. FRERHE(E)

Concerns and Expectations

BMiEzERERYE

Stakeholders Key Communication Channels

BH0E FEREERE

Employees

7l
i

Suppliers

HIEm

Communities/
Non-governmental
organisations

it FEBUFAR

Regular performance appraisals
Frequent meetings
Training programs

EHIRIRT A
BREEH

IR

Business meetings
Order/contract execution
Tele-conferences

E A
TEIE/BUEH

Sl
B AR &= A

Donations and support to the
community

ESG reports

At E R B R KR R

R B REARE

Career development
Occupational health and safety
Remuneration and benefits
Diversity and equal opportunity
BEUR

BE@EEzs

i Koz A

ST Ege

Corporate contribution
Product quality

Fair and open procurement
Stable relationship
EEER

EmEE

N R AR

e BE

Contribution to society
Environmental responsibility
Compliance with laws and regulations
HeaR

REEME

ETIAREAR

Annual Report € #§ 2022/23 71



International Entertainment Corporation BB IREEA R A A

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERKRE

6. STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (Continued) 6. FREDHE (&)
6.1 Materiality Assessment 6.1 EEMIM

The management and employees who are responsible for the EEERBEASEFTERENES
key functions of the Group have assisted the Group to review EmASERFHEE - #AER
its operations, identify key ESG issues and assess the R -HekErzENTmEEY
importance of these issues to its businesses and stakeholders. HEBRFOEMNEEN - 1o &
We also engaged with a third parties ESG consultant in MEE=FTHNIRE L8 LREREM
assisting on carrying out the ESG issues benchmarking AE ETTRE HEeRERER
exercise with the international ESG disclosure framework, such MEERTFE 2BEBRE 2k
as SASB, in order to understand the latest megatrends of the BRI ENELR - AASASB © LA T R B
market that may have impacts on our operations. B EEEFENT SR8
The stakeholder opinions are important consideration for the BEHENEREAEEAEEBRMA
Group in adjusting its business and sustainable development BREEREFBRALTIGRE H£8K&
strategies and also evaluating the effectiveness of our ESG ERWBEIENINEEEE - 546
disclosure efforts. This year, the Group has conducted the AEFHEEE - ES - HER B
materiality assessment with stakeholders like management, EERER/FNEETTEE T
employees, suppliers and hotel guests in order to understand AT B E s BB R BENE
the changes in their concerns and expectation. 1k, -
The materiality assessment has undergone the following key FEEMTELBTATERSE
steps:

Key Steps of Materiality Assessment
EEMTANEREL R

Establishing an issue library

BEVZREE I

With the ESG Reporting Guide under Appendix 27 Stakeholders participation FHEZHR
to the Listing Rules as the foundation, and based on We obtain the comments of stakeholders
the business development of the Group and appeals through questionnaires and interviews,
of stakeholders, the library of ESG issues of the Group which cover the management of
f?r 2033 was established vvithdi tgta\ of 18 issues. the Group, employees, suppliers,
VA EAR RIRt %27 (ESGHREIRS]) AEH - customers and investors/shareholders.

RIEANEE BB R M EFFK -
B TAREE T - =FEHRIESG HE
BEA 18 AR -

BB BRBMBR TR
EMFHENSR
NERETEREE - &8 -
HER  FREREE IR -

Issues assessment ZEEE{L

Based on the concerns of various stakeholders,
importance assessments of ESG issues

are conducted from two dimensions:
“importance to the stakeholders”

and “importance to the Group's operations”.

An analysis is then conducted to

derive an issue matrix and list of significant issues.

RIBERFOENORDIR - 1 [HR0E

Review and confirmation &% &

Based on discussions with key stakeholders and
internal discussions among management,

the management team will ensure that all major
and significant environmental, social, and
governance categories that are important to
business development are reported and comply
with relevant environmental laws and regulations.

R R R R A I B IR E 2 PR

MEbE R - BB ERE EBRREEN MERE] M HEEEENER]
PIBEEMERARE - HEMEQMERETT PB4 HETESG R B 2 R -
HE - WETHENRIDEAEER - RIREFT DT AT R AR AN

& E=ED
EZRERE -
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (Continued) 6.

1= 45

6.1 Materiality Assessment (Continued) 6.1

The following materiality matrix summarises the Group's
material ESG issues as set out in the ESG Report:

HERERRE

BFREZHR#)

EERMFE )
ATEZMREBARE HERE
AREMEMNERNRRE  HERER

iy gm .
B

2023 Materiality Matrix
CECCFEEEMEME

\ High Customer Information and
E Privacy Protection
= B ERIALRR RS (o] Governance
(o) &8
O Operational
®E
® Social
e
Customer Experience
Emissions Management and Safety EQVQO”WC”I
oRpER EEERAEE =
o
Occupational Health
Service Quality Resource Use and Safety
Prohibit Child Labour BRIEEE  BRER |nellectual property EEFERZ S
and Forced Labour @ (o) rights protection ()
ZFETHSEESE) B ERERE
Equal Opportunity, Diversity and Anti-Discrimination
FERE  ZTAENRER Operate in a Credible and
o Anti-money Laundering o Compliant Manner
Staff Training and REBE AERARNELEH R
C T Career Development
ommunity Charity ) STHEIIMBERR
i esimant Climate Changevﬁwsks = ® ®
M AR RIRE and Opportunities '
FIRE (O ABRTE Compliance
Employment
o BRER
Supply Chain Anti-corruption Policy and Corporate Governance and
Management Whistleblowing Procedure Risk Management
HEREE RESBERARERF TRERARRER
o o
-
>
Low IMPORTANCE TO THE GROUP’S OPERATIONS High
& HEBEENSEMY 7
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BRIR-HE8RER

HE

6. STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (Continued)
6.2 The Group’s ESG Issues Library

Level of
importance
EZEE
High

=]

Gl
High

=]

=]
High
=
High
=3
Hign
f=>
High

=]

B
Hiot

=

Hoh

5
Medium
H

Medium
F

Medium
F

Medium

i

Medium
H

Medium
Medium

Medium
F

Low

&

Low

&

ESGissue
number

ESGZE N
10

Description

it

Customer Information and
Privacy Protection

REEMAALRBRE

Operate in a Credible and
Compliant Manner

AEHNERNEE TR

Anti-money Laundering*

RARE

Occupational Hea\th and Safety

BxEREL:

Customer Experience and Safety

RFERANLE

Corporate Governance and
Risk I\/\anagement*
CEERERRER"

Resource Use

ERER

Compliance Employment

ARER

Intellectual property rights protection®

MBERRE

Service Quality

REEE

Emissions Management

e

Equal Opportunity, Diversity and
Anti-Discrimination*

FEESE ST AREE

Prohibit Child Labour and Forced Labour*

HIFETMoRELE

Staff Training and Career Development
8 Tk R

Climate Change Risks and Opportunities
RIEZ (LA ERNEE

Anti-corruption Policy and

Whlstleblovwr)g Procedure
RESREERERT

Commumty Charity and Investment

HRZEEHEEE

Supply Chain Management
HEmER

* The new ESG issues introduced in FY2022/2023 materiality

assessment.
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62 EEESGEHEEE

Corresponding section

HEEH

18.5 Customer Privacy and Data

185 FFLEAMSE

All sections

FrE D

19. ANTI-CORRUPTION
19.RE)5

13. HEALTH, SAFETY AND SECURITY
1385 R2HERE

182 Quality Assurance and Customer Satisfaction
182mERENERMEE

5. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

SOEER

9. USE OF RESOURCE
9.8 RER

12. EMPLOYMENT
12.1EE

184 Intellectual Property Rights
184 FIBEE

18.1 Service Quality
181 REEE

7. EMISSION
1873:¢/)

12. EMPLOYMENT

12.1EE

15. LABOUR STANDARDS

15. 8 T %8|

14, DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING
14, B R B

1. CLIMATE CHANGE
= 454

ﬂ% """"" it
19. ANTI-CORRUPTION

19.RE)5

16. COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

16 ERE

17. SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

17 EEEE

* —E- o CHREESE T S

SIAMFERE - HERERER
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ENVIRONMENTAL
EMISSION

The following table sets out the targets set by the Group in 2021, the
key topics relating to the targets and the progress made by the

Group against the targets:
Key Topics
HEEE

Air and Greenhouse Gas
("GHG") Emissions

BER SR = SR B BEIX

Hazardous Waste

BEREY

Hazardous and
Non-Hazardous Waste

BERZEMNEEZERY

Defined Targets
ERIHNERZR

Reducing the intensities of GHG
emissions by at least 5% by the end of
FY2029/2030 compared to
FY2020/2021 baseline (96.06 tCO,e
per million HKS revenue)
BT/ —BRFENE
ERE B -ZE-N,/=EWK
FEFEMRERBHERERER
D E D5% (96068 — & 1L Bt &
2/ ABETHEAN)

Reducing the intensity of hazardous
waste produced by at least 5% by the
end of FY2029/2030 compared to the
FY2020/2021 baseline (0.013 tonnes
per million HKS revenue)

WMo T —BBEFE
MEERL BT -hH =%
FBREEFE BEEEMEL
BRALEL5%(00130E, HE#
TTWA)

Maintain zero non-compliance with
laws and regulations relating to the
generation and disposal of hazardous
and non-hazardous waste
EETEBELENRERAENE
EREZYHERFOER D HER
TERBEN

The Group dedicates its effort to minimize the impact of the Group's
business operations on the environment and believes that it is
responsible for protecting the environment. Therefore, the Group
has implemented the Environmental Protection Policy to reduce its
environmental footprint and ensure compliance with environmental
laws and regulations. The policy emphasizes the need to conserve
natural resources and energy. It also sets out guidelines on waste

disposal and GHG emissions.

Rk 2 REREHS

A. BiE

7. HERYD
TERIETAEMN B —FETHE
= RA AR EREE AR EE T
BB E S EREHEE -

Progress in 2023
—EC=FEER

Achieved

In progress. Despite the significant increase in revenue
for the Group in the 2023, the resumption of normal
hotel operations in the Philippines after the pandemic
has led to an increase in the number of hotel guests.
This, in turn, has resulted in more frequent maintenance,
repairs, and replacement of hotel facilities, as well as
increased usage of cooking oil in the restaurants.
Additionally, some energy-saving and leak prevention
maintenance projects were carried out during the
reporting period, leading to a substantial increase in the
generation of hazardous waste by the Group.

WMITER - MEAERER T - =FEURALIE
Be BERARTEFREFRELENRIBBIEBE
MESMELER <BEEEHELMN  GHUE/E
RIBHMEE  BIERERERERMBSEMAE -
N EEREREEST T — L MpIREEERR
BYEBEMEENASEYAR LI -

Achieved

ARE BB A A B K 158 B MR ER
NEERERE YRASRERERER
o Bt - NEBDHETRRBER AR D E
RIZ RO L REREB T IRBEAENAS - AR
BERFRERANERMERDMBEN - K
SETHERREREMEE RERBIR
OECETI
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ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
EMISSION (Continued)

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
incidents of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations
relating to air and GHG emissions, discharges into water and land,
and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste. The relevant
laws and regulations included, but not limited to, the Air Pollution
Control Ordinance (Cap.311) of Hong Kong, Waste Disposal
Ordinance (Cap.354) of Hong Kong, Environmental Law (Law No.
2/91/M) of Macau, Republic Act No. 4850 of the Philippines and The
Philippine Clean Air Act (Republic Act No. 8749).

In response to the growing concerns about climate change, the
Group has set a target of reducing its total GHG emissions intensity
by at least 5% in FY2029/2030, using approximately 96.06 tonnes of
carbon dioxide equivalent ("tC0O,e") per million HKS revenue in 2021
as the baseline.

7.1 Air Emissions

The Group's major air emissions are generated from the fuels
consumed by the Group'’s vehicles and emergency power
generator at the Philippines’ hotel operations. The types of air
emissions generated from the Group’s operations include
nitrogen oxides ("NO,"), sulphur oxides ("SO,") and particulate
matter (“PM"). The Group promotes the minimization of air
emissions generated by the Group. Therefore, the Group has
adopted a series of measures to strive to reduce air emissions.
The air pollutant reduction measures include encouraging
employees to carpool and drive less. To minimize fuel
consumption when picking up and delivery services to our
hotel guests, we require drivers to turn off the engine to
prevent excessive air emission generated from idling engine
and take the shortest and most efficient route to the
destination. For the office operations, we also encourage
communication through video, telephone conferences,
electronic communication and other means to minimize the
number of travelling during the year.

Compared to 2022, the Group has significantly reduced its air
emissions in 2023. This is mainly due to the hotel conducted
three preventive maintenance on the substation, which were
more frequent than in the current year. During the
maintenance period, the substation had to be shut down, and
diesel emergency generator was used to provide power to the
entire hotel building.

Furthermore, in the previous year, there was a temporary
interruption in the power supply due to the power supplier's
annual maintenance. The hotel also collaborated with the
local Department of Environment and Natural Resource to
conduct emission tests on the generator, which required
additional use of emergency generator. Due to these factors,
the use of diesel emergency generators was more frequent in
2022 compared with 2023, resulting in higher air emissions in
2022.
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
EMISSION (Continued)

7.

7.1

7.2

Air Emissions (Continued)

The following table sets out the Group's air emissions:

Rk 2 REREHS

A. RE®E)
7. BEnkimoE)

7.1 BERHER(E)
PATSRAGH H T AN 6 B 19 B R BRI

>R
2023 20223

Indicators™> EE —Fo=FE —_T-__FF

NO« emissions (kg) RE‘PERE (T52) 347.21 1,137.49

SOx emissions (kg) maElwEinE (=) 22.71 816.62

PM emissions (kg) BFR T E (T5e) 24.42 81830

Notes: Hiat -

1. The air emission calculation is based on the emission factors in “How 1. B R BEGT EE N B A P
to prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on [ EEIRE - (e REARSE — MY
Environmental KPIs” issued by the Stock Exchange. 8= RN A SUERERIES ] P

HIBER R B -

2. The calculation of air emissions from diesel generators is based on 2. SOmE ERAEE R G E AN ERIR
the emission factors in “AP-42: Compilation of Air Pollutant REFTEM A [AP-42 © BE RBEHUR &
Emissions Factors “ published by the U.S. Environmental Protection =R PEOPERERE -

Agency.
3. During the Reporting Period, the Group started collecting data on 3. PERE B - ANEER G KRR E S

the diesel consumption of backup power generators used in hotel
operation for the previous and current year. To ensure
comparability of the data, the air emissions from the usage of diesel
backup generators were also included as supplementary
information for the previous year.

GHG Emissions

The major sources of GHG emissions by the Group mainly
stem from the combustion of fuels and purchased electricity.
Fuels are used at the Group’s vehicles, emergency power
generator and restaurants of Philippines hotel operation,
electricity consumption resulted from the Group’s daily
operations of hotel and office and refrigerants consumption
from walk-in freezer and air-conditioning. The Group has
adopted various energy-saving measures in order to pursue its
emission target. The relevant energy-saving measures are
described in the section headed “Energy Consumption”.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s total GHG emissions
was approximately 6,924.29 tCO.e (2022: 5,284.38 tCO,e). With
the return to normal operations after the pandemic, the Group
has experienced an increase in the number of operating days
in the Reporting Period as compared to 2022, contributing to
a higher consumption of electricity for maintaining daily
operations, representing a year-on year increase by
approximately 31.03%.

BRR EFRERAFENRSEERA
EAMSRRE - Bt - BEREIED
FIELBRME - B2 EY R SR IR Ik 1 7R
TR RSB ERMEENERY
HE -

BE SRR B

ARE R EREBHNEZRNAE
MEBABENEND - RBEERARA
SENER FREBEELHNES
LHERNERE BENHRAUEZEXRA
SEEEMPLAENATEL UK
EARSREMEFHNRLBEFER -
AEBE DRI BBEREIE AT I E
PREBENE B 1R - R IEE S
;X [RERERE] —6f -

7.2

RIFEE - AEENREREEEN
BEHE692420ME —FILIREE(Z
T~ T 528438 — ALk E
2) BERBRMEESESE @A=
T _FEMEE SEAERSHEN
EEHHIEN BHATHIBATE
EMEFEMNE NI BN
31.03% °
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A.
7.

78

ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued) A. RIF#)
EMISSION (Continued) 7. HEntnoe)
7.2 GHG Emissions (Continued) 7.2 BERBHERE)
Meanwhile, the total GHG emissions intensity was HIfFEE - SERBERNEERE A
approximately 33.42 tCO,e per million HK$ revenue (2022: BEEBTIMALBL2BE_SixE
61.79 tCO,e per million HKS revenue), representing a year-on E(ZE-_—_FE - a8tk A
year decrease by approximately 45.92%, which is mainly due 6179 —FtixE =) R L
to the significant increase in the Group’s revenue in 2023 4592%  EEXEFERHR_-ZT-_=FE
compared with 2022. AEBHNBABRBRR-_ZEZ_FEH
EIEINFTEL -
The following table sets out the Group’s GHG emissions: ATRRBIE T AEBRHE=EREZHE
B
2023 2022
Indicators’ BE “ECCFE T FE
Direct (Scope 1) GHG emissions? (tCOze) BE (SE—-)REREHR?
(B —RfLixEE 297.11 210.17
Energy indirect (Scope 2) GHG emissions® R (SR ) R ERE
(tCOze) HERC (B — L iRE 2) 6,627.18 5,074.21
Total GHG emissions (tCOze) BERBHREE
(H-—S{tmEE 6,924.29 5,284.38
Total GHG emissions intensity* BERBHEREERE (=
(tCOze/million HK$ revenue) StREE BEBTHRAN) 33.42 61.79
Notes: BiaE -

1. GHG emission data are presented in terms of tCOze and are based
on, including but not limited to, “The Greenhouse Gas Protocol: A
Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standards” issued by the
World Resources Institute and the World Business Council for
Sustainable Development, “How to prepare an ESG Report —
Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs" issued by
the Stock Exchange, “Guidelines to Account for and Report on
Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Removals for Buildings
(Commercial, Residential or Industrial Purposes) in Hong Kong”
issued by the Environmental Protection Department and the
Electrical and Mechanical Services Department, “2015-2017
National Grid Emission Factor” from the Department of Energy of
the Republic of the Philippines and the “Global Warming Potential
Values” from the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change Fifth
Assessment Report (AR5) (2014).

2. Direct (Scope 1) GHG emissions include emissions from fuel
combustion at mobile and stationary sources, as well as refrigerant
consumption.

3. Energy indirect (Scope 2) GHG emissions include emissions resulted

from the Group's purchased electricity.
4. During the Reporting Period, the Group's total revenue was

approximately HK$207,219,000 (2022: HK$85,525,000). The data are
also used for calculating other intensity data.
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i WERBEETRA TR LR
PRttt RO HERE THIEESBMGH
[BERBREZTE — bESHRR
EIRE] BRETEMGH [ INAEER
RodEgREAME — M= 1\
AR EMIBZERES] - BIBRES
EREBEIRERMHEEREY(E
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KRBz EMSRLEIES ] FFREH
MERERIEMN [ T —AFE_F
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ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
WASTE MANAGEMENT

The Group has established guidelines on the management and
disposal of waste. To reinforce the Group’s commitment to reduce
waste, the Group has set a target of reducing its total hazardous
waste intensity by at least 5% in 2030, using approximately 0.013
tonnes per million HKS revenue in 2021 as the baseline. The Group
has implemented waste reduction measures and encouraged its
employees to optimise the use of equipment and materials in order
to pursue its waste reduction target.

8.1

Hazardous Waste Management

As the Group is involved in hotel operations, various activities
such as the operation of restaurants and maintenance of hotel
rooms generate hazardous waste. The major types of
hazardous waste managed by the Group include engineering
wastes such as fluorescent light bulbs, containers of chemicals,
grease wastes, used industrial oil including sludge, lead
compounds, waste electrical and electronic equipment
(WEEE), and kitchen wastes such as vegetable oil including
sludge. The Group strictly follows its Policy on Handling
Hazardous Materials and Chemical when handling hazardous
waste to ensure the storage, collection, treatment and disposal
of hazardous waste comply with the applicable statutory
requirements. To avoid leakage, all the hazardous waste must
be stored in a designated location and properly labelled,
before being handled by accredited third party hazardous
waste haulers and treaters.

During the Reporting Period, the Group's total hazardous
waste generated was approximately 11.12 tonnes (2022: 3.33
tonnes) while the total hazardous waste intensity was
approximately 0.054 tonnes per million HKS revenue (2022:
0.039 tonnes per million HKS revenue), representing a year-on
year increase by approximately 233.97% and 38.69%
respectively. This was mainly due to the hotel’s operations
returning to normal after the pandemic, resulting in an
increase in the number of hotel guests. As a result, the
maintenance and repairs of the hotel’s facilities have become
more frequent. Additionally, some energy-saving and leak-
proofing maintenance projects were carried out during the
year, leading to an increase in engineering hazardous waste
generated. Furthermore, with the increase in the number of
hotel guests, the amount of hazardous waste from restaurants
and handling wastewater has also increased. All these
hazardous wastes are stored at designated areas within the
hotel and are handled by accredited hazardous waste haulers
and treaters.

® >

RIE (&)
EEEYEE

AEEDEY T EREZEYEIENERENE
e ARFBAEBRLBEENMNAR A&
EERIVU—E-_—FENEaEATRA
KOOBMARG R_E=SFEHLE
EEEYVBREREEZLSHMBEEZ - AEE
BB EZEYREE RSB (E BB
MR EHE R ASSER R EE B IZ -

EEBEEYER
HRAEBUYEEHELE  SEEH
MEBELENBEEHMRETELSR
EEEY  AEBEENTEEERE
ZERBETIREY - R
ftERAE BEEY - FRAMNT
¥ BRIERE LAY BEETF
EESRME (WEEE) - AR EEEY - 105
BB R - NEBREE B Z6E
BEYRBRRETHREEEDA R
BREX BREZSEEDNET
WE BEEAKEEHFAERER -
ARERR TEEEEEMHAT
RAEREHZR I AL FEEIZE - ARk
HERAINE =T EEREEMEHTR
MR EE

8.1

RBESHE AEEEBEERYE

EAABNNBE(ZET - _FE 333
W) MEEEEMRETELATAES
BT AL0AME( B - —FF

0.039ME) + %3 Bl [F] Lk 3 h0 49 233.97% FN
3869% ° £ E AR EIBEBEBEED
BEMEILER  SBEERHEEM -
BHUE G S R 4 A S BB E AN
PR o M EEREHMMEIT T — LA
BRI RHEEER  BHEATEST
BEEEED - I BEBERA
EHYIE N - B EE M EE K BRI P A A Y
EEEEME LN - TEEEEE
Y EREBERETEEEA - WHE
RN EREZERENERIEEE
I8 o
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

8.

80

8.1

A. RIFE#)
EEEMEIE (8)

WASTE MANAGEMENT (Continued) 8.
Hazardous Waste Management (Continued)
The following table sets out the Group’s hazardous waste
generation:
Indicators B
Total hazardous waste (tonnes) EEREYEE (1)
Total hazardous waste intensity’ EEBEEYBRERE"
(tonnes/million HKS revenue) (W, BEBTKA)

Notes:
1. For easier comparison with the baseline of the waste reduction

target, the total hazardous waste intensities were rounded to 3

decimal places.
2. The waste cooking oil is reclassified to hazardous wastes in 2023,

which was reported as non-hazardous wastes in 2022.
Non-hazardous Waste Management

8.2

Non-hazardous waste is generated from the daily activities of
the kitchens of the hotel restaurants and administrative work.
The major types of non-hazardous waste include daily office
operation wastes such as wastepaper and wastewater from
wastewater treatment plant of hotel operation.

During the reporting year, the hotel operation in the
Philippines has started collecting packaging waste that came
along with the purchased products, such as palm oil cans,
jasmine rice sacks, and soy sauce bottles. All of these
packaging wastes are segregated and collected by an
accredited wastes recycler.

8.1

8.2

Total recycled packaging waste in 2023

CEC-FEENAOWEEREY

—
[~

258 rice sacks

258 B K &%

613 palm oil cans

613 {845 48 Jh
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued) A. RIE#)
8. WASTE MANAGEMENT (Continued) 8. EBEWMERE W)
8.2 Non-hazardous Waste Management (Continued) 82 EMEREYEE (&)

During the Reporting Period, the Group generated
approximately 4.91 tonnes of non-hazardous waste (2022: 1.71
tonnes), representing an increase of 187% compared with
previous year. This was mainly due to the increase in the
number of operating days of our hotel and office operation
after pandemic compared to 2022, resulting more non-
hazardous wastes generated. The Group's total non-hazardous
waste intensity was approximately 0.024 tonnes per million
HKS revenue (2022: 0.020 tonnes per million HKS revenue),
representing a year-on-year decrease by approximately
18.45%, attributing to the significant increase in the Group's
revenue in 2023 compared with 2022.

Besides, the Group has started the implementation of the non-
hazardous wastewater data collection procedure in this year,
which the wastewater was generated from the wastewater
treatment facilities of the hotel operation, recording a total of
approximately 115,862 m?* of wastewater discharged (2022:
84,240 m?), representing a year-on-year increase by
approximately 37.54%. This is mainly due to the hotel's
operations returning to normal after the pandemic, resulting
in an increase in the overall water use from different units, and
the amount of wastewater that needs to be treated and
discharged has also increased accordingly.

The Group's total non-hazardous wastewater intensity was
approximately 559.13 m? per million HKS revenue (2022:
984.98 m?* per million HKS revenue), representing a year-on-
year decrease by approximately 43.23%, attributing to the
significant increase in the Group's revenue in 2023 compared
with 2022.

PR BRI - NS B E £ 49491 BEAY
MEREEY(ZE__FE : 1.71H) -
BEFEEINTI7% EXTEL2HANK
Bie BT - —FEMEL BB
ERBAEELERELBHEM - 5
BREENESEEYIEN - SENE
EEEYHRETEEEEEBITRA
#490024M8 (ZE = —4FF : 0020W8) -
R L #91845% @ EEX E R AN E
T FEMRLE AEEZT ==
FE R AKIRIE INFTER

o - AREESFE R E i EEE
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HE3754% - EEBRANKIFEE
HEELSMELESE TR ERE
F7KEE N - 7 B 55 1R A BE A BE K
SthFEREE M -

AEENBEZEKEENREES
I AS59.13 K (Z B ¢
9849832 5 oK) + F R IE 4 A 43.23%
EREAR S - =—FEAEBEK AR
b= —FEREEEN -

Annual Report € #§ 2022/23 81



International Entertainment Corporation BB IREEA R A A

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RiE  dE2RERES

A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued) A. RE#)
8. WASTE MANAGEMENT (Continued) 8. REBEEWMEE®)
8.2 Non-hazardous Waste Management (Continued) 82 EMEBEEYEE (&)
The following table sets out the Group's non-hazardous waste IANRREANE T AEBEEANNEE
generation: REZEMIBR
2023 20223
Indicators BiE —EC=FE T _FE
Total non-hazardous waste' (tonnes) HMEREEYHAE  (HF) 4.91 1.71
Total non-hazardous waste intensity? EEEZEYHE RE 12
(tonnes/million HK$ revenue) (g, SEBBITHA) 0.024 0.020
Total non-hazardous wastewater* (m3) EEREKAE (L FHK) 115,862 84,240
Total non-hazardous wastewater BEBRKAEZTE
intensity® (m3/million HK$ revenue) (AFKR/BEEBTHRA) 559.13 984.98
Notes: BfaE -

1. Total non-hazardous waste includes only the amount of
wastepaper and other daily office operation waste generated and
its intensity is divided by the Group's total revenue in 2023.

2. For easier comparison with the baseline of the waste reduction
target, the total non-hazardous waste intensities were rounded to
3 decimal places.

3. The waste cooking oil is reclassified to hazardous wastes in 2023,
which was reported as non-hazardous wastes in the 2022.

4. During the Reporting Period, the Group has started the
implementation of the non-hazardous wastewater data collection
procedure, which the wastewater was generated from the
wastewater treatment facilities of the hotel operation. To ensure
comparability of the data, the amount of non-hazardous
wastewater discharged in the previous year was also
supplemented.

The Group has adopted the following environmentally friendly
initiatives to strive to reduce the Group's generation of waste.
Such initiatives include, but are not limited to:

encourage duplex printing;

separate metal, paper and plastic from other waste for
recycling; and

encourage hotel guests and staff to recycle waste
resources.

Through these measures, the Group has achieved positive

results. Recyclable waste collected by the Group is sent to
recyclers for treatment.
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ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
USE OF RESOURCE

The following table sets out the targets set by the Group in 2021, the
key topics relating to the targets and the progress made by the
Group against the targets:

BRIR-HE8KRER

HE

RIE (&)
HiR{ER
TEIETAEER T —FLIWE

12 BESERENERBEARAEEEE
BABRTENEAER

Key Topics
eSS

Energy Consumption

RERUB#E

Water Consumption

FEIK

Defined Targets
ERIWERE

Reducing the intensities of total energy
consumption intensity by at least 5% by the end
of FY2029/2030 compared to FY2020/2021
baseline (166.86 MWh per million HKS revenue)
T/ HRFERRARE BRE
i%ﬁ%?(tﬁ,%/%ﬁuw\ma% KEE) - #§
EREERAEEZLR L% HEEZF
“NSETHBEEER -
Reducing the intensities of total water
consumption intensity by at least 5% by the end
of FY2029/2030 compared to FY2020/2021
baseline (1,184.19 m?® per million HKS revenue)
NZZE-T/ ——HRFERKETRER &
%Wtﬁ%%n%k1%9jﬁ%)%ﬁm
rEEEL /JEX’J\S% “EN=TH

Progress in 2023
—Bo=EEER

Achieved

Achieved

B4

When the Group operates its hotel complex, electricity and water are
consumed. As a result, the Group has established the Environmental
Protection Policy to regulate the use of resources. The policy aims to
achieve higher energy efficiency and reduce the unnecessary use of
resources.

9.1 Energy Consumption

The hotel and gaming operations in the Philippines are the
main energy-consuming units of the Group. The types of
energy used mainly include purchased electricity for daily
hotel operation, liquefied petroleum gas (LPG) used in the
kitchen, diesel used for backup power generators during
power outages at the hotel, as well as diesel and gasoline used
for company vehicles, etc.

AEBERERBEFARERBERENR
Ke Bt - AEBDHERRBEENAREER
TREER » ZBK E EIRR SRR E LR AT
VEHNEREM

9.1 Eb/ \/ﬁﬁ
FFRENEEMELEERAEEN
FERRBEFEEN - FEFAMER
BAGERANBEERRELNEESE
N BB E AR AR (LPG)
BEFEREREEREBNH -
AR A Tiiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ /EEW/‘L/EE °
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
9. USE OF RESOURCE (Continued)

9.1 Energy Consumption (Continued)

To reinforce the Group's commitment to efficient energy use,
the Group has set a target of reducing its total energy
consumption intensity by at least 5% in 2030, using
approximately 166.86 MWh per million HKS revenue in 2021
as the baseline. The Group has adopted various energy-saving
measures in order to pursue its energy use efficiency target.

The relevant energy-saving measures include:

84

use LED lights in the hotel rooms, hallways and
restaurants to reduce the number of fluorescent light
bulbs;

install variable-frequency drive to regulate the power
output of motors;

conduct regular inspections to monitor any unusual
energy usage, such as maintain monthly electricity
meter records in order to spot any unusual use or loss of
electricity;

preset the hotel room temperature at 23°C while the
guest keycard is inserted into the card slot, and maintain
27°C if keycard is removed;

regular maintenance of kitchen burners to increase the
LPG efficiency and LPG pipe to prevent leakage;

“Notice to Explain” will be issued to employees who are
not using energy according to the company guideline.
They will be requested to provide reasons for their
actions, and potential penalties may apply; and

drive less and carpool.
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
USE OF RESOURCE (Continued)

9.

9.1

Energy Consumption (Continued)

During the Reporting Period, the Group's total energy
consumption amounted to approximately 12,078.35 MWh
(2022: 8,775.38 MWh), which is mainly came from the
electricity consumption. With the resumption of normal
operations following the pandemic, the Group has
experienced an increase in the number of operating days in
the Reporting Period as compared to 2022, contributing to a
higher consumption of electricity for maintaining daily
operations and higher LPG consumption for kitchen operation.
The total energy consumption intensity was approximately
58.29 MWh per million HKS revenue in the Reporting Period
(2022: 102.61 MWh per million HKS revenue), representing a
year-on-year decrease by approximately 43.19%, attributing to
the significant increase in the Group's revenue in 2023
compared with 2022.

The following table sets out the Group's energy consumption:

Rk 2 REREHS

A. BRIR@#)
9. BRER#E)
9.1 BEREFE(£)
RS R AEENERERRE
W E1207835 KA (ZEZ2FF ¢

877538 K FLES) + EERE A EHFE ©
BEERIBRMELTES SEER

EHANELABBR T _—_FEMH
LEMEMERERBRESENE

JHREIL NN A I Y 55 1 fE MU LPG JE FE 35
me RMEBANEERERERERE
HNAETEEBTWASS29KER (=
T _FE:5EEBETRAI026I
KEEF) » LR A #44319% @ E5F R
RZZE_ZFEEERARHE ==
T FEREESEN-

AEBRBEREFRN T RAR

2023 2022
“E-=FE C—T--FE
Direct energy consumption' 24 (MWh) BHEEBEEE 2 KRE) 995.50 288.65
Diesel consumption (MWh) Lo SEFESE KR E) 119.47 226.25
— Company vehicle (MWh) — AT EH (JKFEF) 68.93 59.21
— Emergency generator (MWh)* — BT JKER) 50.54 167.04
Gasoline consumption (MWh) VURHRE S KRR 40.05 62.40
LPG consumption (MWh) BB RRERESE CKER) 835.98
Indirect energy consumption® (MWh) BliEfe Rl EE kR E) 11,082.85 8,486.73
Total energy consumption (MWh) BEREHEAR (JKE) 12,078.35 8,775.38
Total energy consumption intensity BEREREERE
(MWh/million HK$ revenue) (KRE BEEBTHA) 58.29 102,61

Notes:

1. The unit conversion calculation is based on the conversion factors
in "How to prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs" issued by the Stock Exchange
and the “Energy Statistics Manual” issued by the International
Energy Agency.

2. The direct energy consumption includes diesel, liquefied petroleum
gas and diesel consumption of our Philippines operation.

3. The indirect energy consumption includes electricity consumption
of our Philippines operation and Hong Kong Headquarters.

4. During the Reporting Period, the Group started collecting data on
the diesel consumption of emergency power generator used in
hotel operation. To ensure comparability of the data, the diesel
consumption of emergency power generator were also included as
supplementary information for the previous year.
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

9.

86

USE OF RESOURCE (Continued)
9.2 Water Consumption

The Group uses water supplied by the local government of
different operating locations, mainly for hotel operations and
employees’ daily life. Although we had not encountered any
problems accessing dependable water sources, the Group
undoubtedly acknowledged that water resources are a
precious, shared, and limited resource.

To reinforce the Group’s commitment to water conservation,
the Group has set a target of reducing its total water
consumption intensity by at least 5% in 2030, using
approximately 1,184.19 m?® per million HKS revenue in 2021 as
the baseline. The Group has adopted various water-saving
measures in order to pursue its water efficiency target. The
relevant water-saving measures include:

encourage all employees and guests to develop the
habit of conserving water consciously;

strengthen the Group's water-saving promotion;
conduct regular inspections on water pipes and cooling
tower on water pipes and cooling tower to promptly
identify and rectify any water leakage;

posting water-saving slogans; and

guide employees to use water reasonably.
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
9. USE OF RESOURCE (Continued)
9.2 Water Consumption (Continued)

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s total water
consumption was 160,125.00 m?, indicating a substantial
increase of approximately 120.7% compared to 2022 (2022:
72,545.40 m?). This surge in water consumption was mainly
due to the resumption of normal operations after the
pandemic. Meanwhile, a water leakage issue was identified
during the Reporting Period, where prompt action was taken
to rectify the problem. The Group's total water consumption
intensity was approximately 772.73 m? per million HKS$
revenue (2022: 848.24 m? per million HKS revenue),
representing a year-on-year decrease by approximately 8.9%,
attributing to the increase in the Group's revenue in 2023
compared with 2022.

Rk 2 REREHS

A. RIE#®)
9. BIRERE)
9.2 FXE(#)

RBEHE ~NEEHNEKEER
160,12500 . 5K - RZT = —FZiE
IN#91207% (—ZZF = — & : 72,54540
MNITK) c EBARIBEMMFEXRELTER
HRNRIEERIREESELSHTR - &It
B EREHRNERRT —ERK
8 - W R RFERENE BE T AR R o &
EMFEKEERENABAEEBTK
ANIDRBIYIAK(ZE-Z—FE : §7
%%ﬁWAmwuﬁﬁﬂ'ﬁmﬁm
#89%  EHRANR_ZT_=FEEH
M&A*Hﬂ_%:_ifﬁﬁﬁim °

The following table sets out the Group's water consumption: REEMNFEKENTE :
2023 2022
SBoCFE T _FRE
Total water consumption (m3) FKBE(ZFXK) 160,125.00 72,545.40
Total water consumption intensity FKBEERE
(m3/million HK$ revenue) (LK BEBTEA) 772.73 848.24
9.3 Packaging Materials 9.3 SHEME

Since the Group's operations did not involve any industrial
productions, the Group did not consume a significant amount
of packaging materials during the Reporting Period. The
disclosure on the total packaging material used for finished
products does not apply to the Group'’s operations.

RMRASEEBIL NF MEFMTIELE
B BASERRERALEBFEKR
BEEEMK - EREKRAANEE
REMHETNERNAKENER
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10.

88

ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL
RESOURCES

The Group works tirelessly to mitigate the environmental impacts of
its activities through adopting industry best practices, targeting at
reducing natural resources consumption and emissions. The Group's
Environmental Protection Policy has been established to ensure its
impacts on the environment and natural resources are regularly
monitored and properly managed.

The Group has guidelines to encourage its employees to reduce
water and paper consumption, promote the use of electronic copies
and collect recyclable items. In addition, the Group has its
wastewater treatment plant in place to remove contaminants from
sewage so that the quality of the discharged sewage meets the
requirements of the Philippines’ Laguna Lake Development
Authority (the “LLDA"). To comply with the Republic Act 4850, the
Group submitted the Quarterly Self-Monitoring Reports to LLDA on
time. The activities of the Group comply with the relevant
environmental protection laws and regulations and do not have a
significant impact on the environment and natural resources.
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ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL
RESOURCES (Continued)

In our upcoming renovation, our hotel operation is committed to
implementing several sustainability measures to enhance our
environmental protection efforts. These measures include:

10.

(&

RIR
RIEMXAEIR (#)
EESRTOBF TS - RM0EELE
HPIBN BIESBARFBEREN - AMR
RMWBFRE T  ELBIRIE -

Foamless shampoo: We will adopt foamless shampoo to minimize chemical discharge and reduce the
environmental impact associated with traditional shampoo usage.

ERARRERS | BPISRAERRESEK UM BME B - WA EGAERERER
BT E -

Sustainable packaging: We will replace individual plastic bottles of shampoo, conditioner, body wash,
and water with shower supplies dispensers and water glass bottles in all guest rooms. This initiative aims to
reduce plastic waste and promote a circular economy.

ARFEEE ZFBAERERE AL  REX NABETKNEREBRERR2RMEAM
WIRIKHR - EEFEE R BRI (R ERIREE -

Water-efficient toilets: As part of our commitment to water conservation, we will replace existing toilets
with models that consume less water. This step will contribute to a more sustainable water management
system within our hotel.

BIKRIAR : {ERRPIAGREORKN—E5 - HABAFRKE DB ERB ORI - &2
B BN B MRS NEL B B EAIKER R o

Energy-efficient air-conditioning chillers: To reduce our carbon footprint, we will upgrade our air-
conditioning chillers with models that are 35% more energy-efficient. This improvement will significantly
minimize our environmental impact and contribute to our long-term sustainability goals.
HEERRBARL : B TRDIRBENE - BPIARLEEELS  FEEERUEGEIES 35% © EHN
ERARBDBMERENTE  TADRERRMORBAIHEERARE -

By implementing these sustainability measures, we aim to mitigate FRERELIFERRER  BRMEER
our hotel’s adverse impacts on the environment and natural OREHIRIFNEAB RN TAZE - M
resources. We recognize the importance of responsible RABEENRBEEENEEY - WBOR

environmental management and are dedicated to continuously
improving our sustainability practices.

TEERMINAIREEREE -
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11.

20

ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
CLIMATE CHANGE

Climate-related issues are affecting societies around the world and
therefore it has also impacted the Group’s business. The Philippines,
one of the locations where the Group operates, is particularly
susceptible to climate-related issues such as super typhoons and
flooding. The Group acknowledges the far-reaching impact of
climate change and is eager to combat climate change proactively.
The Group has formulated the Climate Change Policy to enhance its
ability to respond to climate impacts and mitigate the risks and
impacts of climate change on the Group, thereby helping the Group
to adapt to and resist climate change.

11.1 Physical Risks

In view of the seriousness of climate change, the Group
identified acute physical risks that might significantly impact
the Group. As climate change is causing extreme weather
events to be more frequent and severe, the Group might
encounter situations where the Group’s hotel operations are
being adversely affected under unpleasant weather such as
earthquake, tsunami, typhoons, and heavy rain. The hotel
business is one of the Group’s major sources of income, so the
adverse impact on hotel operations would cause a direct
negative impact on the Group’s revenue. In addition, the
extreme weather events would prevent people from travelling,
the reduction in the number of tourists and thus a reduction
in room occupancy in the Group's hotel would reduce the
revenue from hotel operations. If extreme weather damages
the hotel facilities, the Group will experience a loss of assets.

The Group has taken different actions to manage the
abovementioned acute physical risks. For example, the Group
developed a set of arrangements for extreme weather so that
loss can be reduced or avoided when extreme weather affects
the Group's operating sites. In addition, the Group has
purchased insurance against risks of property loss. It is believed
that the potential financial impacts can be minimized with
adequate preparations for extreme weather events.
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
11. CLIMATE CHANGE (Continued)
11.2 Transition Risks

A. ®BE@#®)
11. |iz8ML &)
11.2 ERE

Other than climate-related issues which have impacted the
Group, the Group is aware that transition risks associated with
climate related issues may significantly impact the Group. As
different countries are working on the goals of the Paris
Agreement, the Group expects the laws and regulations
related to climate change are going to be more stringent. As a
result, the Group may face legal risks, which may cause the
Group to bear higher operating costs to comply with
regulatory changes.

The Group is devoted to minimizing risks that may derive from
climate change. The Group has communicated its actions on
climate change mitigation and adaptation to the public via
multiple channels, particularly the ESG Report. Due to climate
change, public awareness of environmental protection has
risen and more people tend to prefer environmentally friendly
products and services. The Group strives to reduce the market
risks associated with climate change by putting effort into
environmental protection. For example, the Group minimizes
the use of single-use items such as plastic tableware in its
hotel, provides toiletries with minimal packaging for hotel
guests and encourages hotel guests and staff to recycle waste
resources.

The Group has integrated climate risks into its internal control
process to holistically take account of climate change.
Through the internal control process, the Group recognized
the risks and opportunities that arose in the transition to a
low-carbon economy. The Group will continue to assess the
effectiveness of the Group's actions on climate change and
enhance its resilience against climate-related issues.
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued) A, REBFG&)
11. CLIMATE CHANGE (Continued) 11. mIz8L®)
11.3 Emergency Response and Employee Support 113 ESEENEIXE
The hotel has made significant efforts to ensure the safety and BIEBNBRREANMEENZ TG
well-being of both its guests and employees in response to fE - BEWBENZRZEN  E
potential emergencies, such as earthquake, fire, typhoon and A BBRAKZEE - BRMEEHEN
flooding, etc. The following initiatives and measures have TMEETNFEHE

been implemented:

Emergency Response Team and Policies

SSEE/NMEMBEER

The hotel has established a dedicated Crisis Management Team (CMT) and Emergency Response Team (ERT) comprised
of trained personnel from various departments, including Safety & Security, Engineering, Human Resources, and Front
Office. These teams operate under the leadership of the hotel's General Manager. Their primary responsibility is to
effectively handle emergencies, such as earthquakes, flooding, fire, and other unforeseen events. By bringing together
expertise from different areas of hotel operations, the hotel ensures a comprehensive and coordinated approach to
emergency response, aiming to protect both the hotel and its guests from the adverse effects of crises while mitigating
any negative impacts that may arise.

BIERKA T EFINEREREBERCMNMESEEEKERD - ASIHPIIIREZMHAEHENK - 2EL2HRE -
Ti2 - ANBRMATE - BB REEALIEES - MMNEEBRAEREREEREN - 1HE - KE -
NKFNEA TR B o FAEPREBEELE T RASNERZLE - BERR T ZSEEN2E MG AL -
EERELHEMEARZEERANTANTE  AREEAIEEENEERE -
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
11. CLIMATE CHANGE (Continued)
11.3 Emergency Response and Employee Support

A. ®BE@#®)
11. |iz8ML &)
113 EESLENMETXEE)

(Continued)

Informative Flyers

EREmM
The hotel recognizes the
importance of providing clear
instructions to guests during
emergencies. As part of its
preparedness, two informational
flyers titled “Do’s and Don'ts”
have been created. These flyers
serve as valuable resources for
guests, offering guidance on
actions to take in the event of
earthquakes and fires.

BEEBINEZEZBARATM
EARMAEETINER -
EREEEEN—&D K
PMELLEETMNER [EZ
MAEZ M= WERE
Mo EdiEERATARKE
BEWER  #HES ER
T 3 7R A0 N B A B R AL B
BT -

Earthquake Sensors

i B R PE RS

To enhance the hotel's
ability to monitor seismic
activity, earthquake
sensors have been
installed on each floor of
the building. These
sensors continuously
collect data, which is
shared with the relevant
government authorities
for reference and
analysis.

RIBFTEEEZELE
HEIRE N B
BENBERK T
ERER - EERE
REEKERE X
B 18 B AT BB P
Z HBENHHZ
A e

Post-Earthquake
Building Inspection

WEENEEYRE
Following an
earthquake, the hotel's
skilled engineers
conduct thorough
inspections of the
entire building to
identify any damage.
Minor issues are
promptly addressed
internally, while
adherence to local
laws and regulations
prompts the hotel to
involve government
civil engineers for
necessary assistance,
ensuring the safety
and structural integrity
of the premises.

BB AR OBEA
Ry TIZED S 2
WELEETEER
& ARERGAE
bR NI )=4-- VA
Bt A EDERIE - 38
STEMARERNE
ko OBEFRES|AK
¥ EARTIZRMER M
2158 - ARERS
AR 2 BT
Bt

Employee Support
during Flooding or
Typhoon Events
KEHEMRAEH
HEEIXE
Recognizing the
potential challenges
faced by employees
during flooding or
typhoon events, the
hotel has implemented
support measures.
Specifically, in
situations where
employees are unable
to return home, the
hotel provides 20 beds
for each gender group,
ensuring a safe and
comfortable resting
place. Additionally, if
the number of affected
employees exceeds
the available beds,
designated function
rooms are reserved as
additional sleeping
areas, complete with
beds. Complimentary
meals are provided to
all staff members

during their stay.

BE R T 8 TEX
RS R E A AT AR
HERAE - Bt E
M T B o BLEg
mE EEIEER
BIRFPRERT - B
JERBMRIEA R M
205RIK - TERE —1E
72 MEFENIKES
Ffi o bESh - IR
ZHETABEBBRT
AR RAL - AR
BIEE e R
RSN AR (R 3
WHLERAL o BEE
RELBRERIGHE
BIEABHM=E
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Transportation
Assistance

RBEEB
Once the typhoon or
flooding event
subsides, the hotel
actively assists
employees with
transportation to
facilitate their safe
return home. This
support reflects the
hotel’'s commitment
to the well-being of
its staff members,
ensuring they can
reunite with their
families in a timely
and secure manner.

—BRREKKEE
Hre - BESE

BB E T HER
BUNRER2ME
Ko mEXERER
TBEHE TR
B R - RE AR A 1P
BEH N i 2 2 i
RKAEE:
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11.

12.
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ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
CLIMATE CHANGE (Continued)

11.3 Emergency Response and Employee Support
(Continued)

By implementing these measures, the hotel demonstrates its
dedication to emergency preparedness, safety, and the
welfare of both guests and employees. These initiatives align
with the hotel's commitment to environmental, social, and
governance principles, fostering a secure and responsible
environment for all stakeholders.

As for the operations of Hong Kong Headquarters, we have
established a set of policy which clearly setting out the work
arrangements in times of extreme weather events, such as
rainstorms and typhoons.

SOCIAL
EMPLOYMENT

The Group strictly follows the labour standards pursuant to
provisions of the Labour Code of the Philippines and other
applicable laws, rules and regulations. During the Reporting Period,
the Group was not aware of any incidents of non-compliance with
laws and regulations in relation to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and
welfare. The relevant laws and regulations include, but not limited
to, Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57) of Hong Kong, Minimum Wage
Ordinance (Cap. 608) of Hong Kong, the Labour Relations Law (Law
No. 7/2008) of Macau and the Labour Code of the Philippines.

The Group is committed to continuous efforts in pursuing equal
opportunities, diversity, and anti-discrimination, aiming to foster a
fair, respectful, and inclusive work environment. The Group has
established its employment policies to fulfil its vision on people-
oriented management. Terms regarding recruitment, compensation,
promotion, working hours and rest periods, diversity, equal
opportunity and dismissal are stated on the Employee Handbook,
which was distributed to every employee. In making decisions
regarding employment, training, promotion opportunities,
termination, and retirement policies, we are not influenced by
employees’ age, gender, marital status, pregnancy, family status,
disability, race, color, ancestry, ethnicity, nationality, religion, or any
other factors unrelated to their job. The Group's policies are in place
to ensure that reported incidents of discrimination are handled fairly
and appropriately.
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SOCIAL (Continued)
EMPLOYMENT (Continued)

The Group has a zero-tolerance policy towards any form of
discrimination, harassment, bullying, or verbal abuse. The Group
encourages employees to report any instances of discrimination or
harassment they experience in the workplace. Any actions that
violate our policies will be subject to disciplinary action. The Group
takes all complaints related to criminal offenses seriously and will
handle them diligently.

During the Reporting Period, there were no incidents of
discrimination being reported. The Group will continue to increase
employees’ awareness of equal opportunity in the workplace.

12.1 The Group’s Workforce

As at 30 June 2023, the total number of employees of the
Group was 240 (as at 30 June 2022: 218), all of whom were full-
time employees.

The following table sets out the Group’s number of employees
by gender, age group and geographical region:

Indicators B

Number of employees BT AH

By gender R R
Female g
Male S

By age group REwRER
18-30 years old 18 5% 30 5%
31-49 years old 31 5% -49 B%,
50 years old or above 503 EIA

By geographical region &Rit&E
Hong Kong and Macau BB MR
The Philippines JEEE

12.

H=Z )

1B1E =)
EEETAFR MR BB RENSE
EHERDERABE - SESEHE THREM
MELESFE R M T AR RRBESY -
EMERRARENTABEZILEE
5 o £ RIELRHFARFHIES
B WIERERE -

R AR - 9 B R B RS o
B EEESE TH TSR TS REn
o

&
=z
B

121 SEEIEMA
Bz Z =X A=1+HI&EE -
AEBETEHEAMUA(EEZE-Z
T FRNA=1THIEFEE 218A)
HAPRET -

TRIHAEBEER - FRE - 3
REIDHWE AR :

As at As at

30 June 2023 30 June 2022

BZ HE
—E_= —EF-—

NA=1+H ~A=1+H

IHFE IEFE

240 218

91 123

149 95

70 62

143 136

27 20

12 12

228 206
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SOCIAL (Continued)

12. EMPLOYMENT (Continued)

26

12.2 Retaining Talents

One of our key priorities at the Group is to attract and retain
top talent. We recognize the significance of providing
comprehensive benefits that promote work-life balance,
support overall well-being, and create a positive work
environment. In compliance with local labor laws and
regulations, we have established reasonable working hours
and holiday arrangements, clearly outlined in the Employee
Handbook and employment contracts. Also, the Group offers
a competitive remuneration package to each employee. The
remuneration packages provided for employees are reviewed
annually, where subsequent adjustments will be made based
on the employee’s performance, experiences and market
standards. During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded a
turnover rate of approximately 23% (2022: 33.0%).

Our commitment to prioritizing the basic welfare of our
employees is reflected in the range of benefits we provide. By
offering a diverse selection of statutory and additional paid
leave options, we ensure that our employees have the
opportunity to rest, recharge, and attend to personal matters.
These benefits not only contribute to their well-being but also
foster a sense of belonging and engagement within our
organization. The following are some of the benefits provided
by the Group:

Annual Report £ 2 2022/23
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12. EMPLOYMENT (Continued)
12.2 Retaining Talents (Continued)

RETIREMENT BENEFITS
BB

HEALTH AND SAFETY
RERZE

WORK LIFE BALANCE
TAEERAETE P

1

)

1

RE  #HE8RERBE

B. #&#®)
12. BE#)
122 RE AT (&)

Mandatory Provident Fund and Workers' Investment and Saving Program.
BB AESF NS TR ERETE -

Medical, dental, life and travel insurance, medical check-up;

BE IR ASRIRTREBNERERS

Set up a clinic at hotel with full time nurses and two in-house doctors and our
employees can enjoy free consultation at this medical clinic.

EBEZR 2 BEEEBELTNMEHREE R8I NE
LR EHA o

Leave entitlement: annual leave, marriage leave, maternity leave, examination
leave, paternity leave, solo parent leave, bereavement leave, family visit leave
and birthday leave);

WRAER - FR - B5R - ER - Z53R - RER BERFER =R

REBRERERR

Recreation and social activities
organised by the Human Resource
Department and employee gathering,
set up gym and game facilities.

B AN EIREBFI AR AR IR GE RN 41 22
EBRETIRE  RERFEMNE
BLER I
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B.

SOCIAL (Continued)

12. EMPLOYMENT (Continued)

928

12.2 Retaining Talents (Continued)

The following table sets out the Group’s number and rate of
employee turnover by gender, age group and geographical

B. #t&#®)
12. EE &)
122 REAA (&)
AT RS T SR EIRER - Fh/R

Bl A0 30 3 2 820 ) B T B B 2 A A R
Si? B

region: =
2023 2022

Indicators gE TEC=FE T _FE
Number and rate’ (%) of employee B TR A SR BB = (%)

turnover 75 (23.01%) 72 (33.0%)
By gender? BB 2

Female 24 27 (21.95%) 35 (28.5%)

Male =L 48 (23.65%) 37 (38.9%)
By age group? RE#R?

18-30 years old 18 5% -30 5% 16 (18.39%) 21 (33.9%)

31-49 years old 31738 -495% 55 (26.32%) 44 (32.4%)

50 years old or above S0pREIA 4(13.33%) 7 (35.0%)
By geographical region? EHE?

Hong Kong and Macau BB MR 4 (23.53%) 4 (33.3%)

The Philippines SR 71 (22.98%) 68 (33.0%)
Notes: Kt -

The calculation method of rate of employee turnover: (total
number of departures in the year + (number of employee at the
beginning of the year + number of new hires in the year) x 100%).

The calculation method of rate of employee turnover by category:
(total number of departures in the category in the year + (number
of employee in the category at the beginning of the year + number
of new hires in the category in the year) x 100%).
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SOCIAL (Continued)
HEALTH, SAFETY AND SECURITY

The health and safety of guests and employees at the Group's hotels,
clubs and properties are the Group's top priority, thus the Group has
established effective systems and policies such as the Alcohol-free
Workplace Policy, Drug-free Workplace Policy, Smoke-free Workplace
Policy and policies on prevention of communicable diseases.
Occasionally, the Group may face unstable conditions in the
Philippines such as terrorism, social unrest and extreme weather
events. Health and safety committee meetings are held regularly to
review the performance of the Group's measures. For the effective
implementation of health and safety measures, regular training is
provided to responsible personnel. Procedures are in place to ensure
compliance with local regulations and other international
occupational health and safety standards.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
incidents of non-compliance with laws and regulations in relation to
providing a safe working environment and protecting employees
from occupational hazards. The relevant laws and regulations
include, but not limited to, Occupational Safety and Health
Ordinance (Cap. 509) of Hong Kong, Employees’ Compensation
Ordinance (Cap. 282) of Hong Kong, General Regulation on Health
and Safety in a non-industrial work environment (Decree-Law 37/89/
M) of Macau and Republic Act No. 11058 of the Philippines.

The Group has established policies to ensure safety in the workplace.
Multiple measures are taken to protect employees from different
health and safety risks. For example, an employee who has
symptoms of a contagious disease is not allowed to enter the
Group's premises to prevent the spread of the disease. In addition,
the Group is devoted to creating a drug-free and alcohol-free
workplace. During working hours, the Group may conduct a random
alcohol test or drug test with its employees, disciplinary actions will
be taken accordingly if the test shows a positive result. The Group
regularly conducts safety inspections. The management team is
responsible for monitoring and reviewing the policies related to
health, safety and security periodically, and performing regular
checks to ensure the safety of employees.

The Group is committed to building a safety-first culture and
avoiding workplace accidents. During the Reporting Period, the
number of lost days due to work injury was 76 (2022: 54). No work-
related fatalities occurred between 1 July 2019 and 30 June 2023.
The rate of work-related fatalities occurred in the past three years
including 2023 was 0%.
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B.

SOCIAL (Continued)

13. HEALTH, SAFETY AND SECURITY (Continued)

13.1 Other Health and Safety Measures

During the coronavirus disease 2019 (“COVID-19") pandemic,
the Group is highly conscious of the potential health and
safety impacts brought to its employees. Apart from
strengthening the sanitation in its premises to ensure a
healthy and safe working environment, precautionary
measures are also taken. All staff members are required to
wear surgical masks or face shields when entering or staying
on the Group’s premises. Anti-epidemic items including hand
sanitisers, disposable gloves, gowns, hairnets, shoe covers are
provided to employees when needed. In addition, the Group
implemented precautionary measures such as temperature
screening before entering the office, and constantly update
relevant policies to keep in line with the government’s
quidelines.

14. DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

Investing in people is a valuable investment that the Group can
make for the sustainability of its business whereas the opportunity to
learn and grow is a motivation for employees. The Group
implements its employment policies to offer various development
and training programs to all employees so that they can acquire new
skills and knowledge.

To promote a culture of continuous self-improvement, a
performance appraisal is provided annually to ensure that every
employee receives formal feedback on their performance at least
once per year for career planning and development.

14.1 Talent Management

The Group values the mutual growth and development of
both its employees and the corporate, therefore, the career
development of its staff is highly supported. By investing in
the development and training of our employees, we not only
strengthen our organizational capabilities but also foster a
culture of sustainability and responsible business practices. We
believe that our employees are our most valuable asset in
driving positive change and achieving our ESG goals.
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B. SOCIAL (Continued) B. ft&#
14. DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING (Continued) 14. FEEEEI (&)
14.1 Talent Management (Continued) 141 ASXER (&)
Below are the training programs that we currently provide to INTREMEALEES 8 TR
our employees of the hotel operation to enhance their skill MG El - AR S B B B RE N
sets and understanding of the hospitality industry. B 5 R ER ©

Training programs of our hotel operation & J& & i f93Z 5/l 51 &

Job Orientat
Service Skills Training

Immerses new hires in the culture of
our workplace, by equipping them with
Safety and Security the proper job knowledge, skills,

=
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The Ways We Work Induction

H
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c
=
g
]
=
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3
3
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Z 3l

Leadership training %82 73

and Coaching

Provide knowledge and skills required to
keep our employees in a safe working
environment while enhancing safety

consciousness.

Being coached to understand the meaning
and application of the Ways We Work
through scenarios-based learning and
practical application at work.

procedural knowhow and standards
required to perform each of their
duties. On top of that, a series of
programme are designed to stimulate
our employees to deliver quality service
under the direction of the Ways We Work.

AR bt St Bl e S g ]

JE2B R T{ER &)
; %ﬁﬁfqlf??‘iﬁj

Leading Highly Effective Team

This is a developmental approach that includes role plays, case studies, ongoing support of mentoring, tea talk sessions,
workshops and assignments to assist our team leaders in understanding and developing their ability to build, motivate and
lead a highly effective team and also in sharpening their leadership skills. The Programme includes five understanding
modules and other four management modules:

BEEMEE
ERERRE - BEAGHE  ROME - SANEEXE K& - W EMES

UAR B3 P90 B BX <R 8 IR MR RN S R (P2 57 - BB AN<R8 — F‘%E’\Jﬁ‘éﬁ-
WiRS M FIHOBEN - MbFIROEERES) © &t # \&%ﬂilﬁﬁﬂiiﬁ*ﬂﬁﬁﬂw%@*ﬁ%ﬁ'

Habits of
a Highly
Effective

Leadership
Behaviours Chat
and Actions | Experience

Optimum
Communi-

Six
Role Corrective Thinking

Modeling Coachmg

Training

Eie | Lo | Bewd |etiee wan | wxen | o
HBE | siam = 4 s B K

Through the provision of diverse knowledge, skills, and resources to our workforce, we aim to foster positive transformation
and optimize operational effectiveness across various departments. Our objectives encompass achieving service excellence and
facilitating personnel growth concurrently. To achieve this goal, we provide not only technical training but also opportunities

g for continuous learning and development, we provide diverse training as below:
< i 8 TIRESHECMAD - REMER - HIME R ﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁiiﬁ@{tﬁ%ﬁﬁ’]“@ﬁ% ®
= A H@Tﬁ;ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ%jﬁlﬂﬂ%ﬁi& Bk &7 B1% - B MERERSE
e BREFESBNHROKE - ﬁﬂ"ikﬁil«x"l’y’f {eisl -
% Language Training Internal Cross Training
) Provides the resources for learning Cross Exposure Training Encourage employees to gain exposure in related
© languages based on market needs To experience other departments departments or divisions to understand concepts,
g and encourage our employees to and/or sister hotels in order to acquire skills, and gain the knowledge needed
n improve language ability. broaden their knowledge and skills. for their assigned tasks.
[T
a E s g 5
TR 5k BEER L1t ERPI AN, SR BRI - SXJE) B T A8 AEFR EDFI sk EprT
AT BT AR - SRR RAR G > PETT IS (Eva ¢
SENE TIRAGEBEAET © DB ERS FTRE BAGE
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B. SOCIAL (Continued)
14. DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING (Continued)
14.1 Talent Management (Continued)

The following table sets out the average training hours per
employee and percentage of employees trained by gender
and employee category:

=R

Indicators

Average hours of training per
employee’ (hour(s)) and percentage

of employees trained? (%) A 2t (%)
By gender B
Female 7%
Male B
By employee category BETHER
Management BEEE
General employees —BT

Notes:

1. The calculation method of average training hours per employee by
category: total training hours of employees in the category +
number of employees in the category as at the end of the year.

2. The calculation method of the percentage of employees trained by

category: (number of employees trained in the category + number
of employees in the category as at the end of the year) x 100%.
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SOCIAL (Continued)
LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group is well aware that child labour and forced labour violate
fundamental human rights. The Group has adopted its Policy on
Prohibition of Child Labour and employment policies, which strictly
prohibits child labour and forced labour. Personal data are collected
during the recruitment process to assist in the selection of suitable
candidates and to verify candidates’ identities. In the recruitment
process, the Human Resources Division carefully checks the job
applicants’ identity documents. The Human Resources Division
regularly reviews the employment practices and guidelines on staff
recruitment to ensure that the Group's recruitment process is in full
compliance with the Policy on Prohibition of Child Labour and the
and employment policies. To protect human rights, the Group
ensures that employees do not work against their wills. Employees
are encouraged to finish their work efficiently within the working
hours. The Group guarantees to arrange at least 1 rest day per week
for every employee.

If child labour or forced labour is found to be employed as a result of
a breach of the recruitment process, the Group will immediately stop
the work of the child labour or forced labour and conduct an
investigation.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
incidents of non-compliance with laws and regulations in relation to
preventing child labour and forced labour. The relevant laws and
regulations include, but not limited to, Employment Ordinance (Cap.
57) of Hong Kong, the List of Jobs Restrained to Minors (Chief
Executive Order No. 343/2008) of Macau, the List of Jobs Prohibited
to Minors (Chief Executive Order No. 344/2008) of Macau and the
Republic Act No. 9231 of the Philippines.
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16.

104

SOCIAL (Continued)
COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group recognizes the importance of the well-being of the local
communities to the continuous growth of its business. We believe in
the importance of actively contributing to the well-being and
development of the communities in which we operate. Our
commitment to social responsibility is reflected in our community
investment initiatives, which aim to address critical needs and
support vulnerable populations. The employees have been
encouraged to participate in volunteer services and contribute to
the community in different forms.

Throughout the Reporting Period, we focused on three key

B. #&#®)
16. tH[ERE

SER[IN BT EABIEEEEBHGE
BEMNERN - RABGEEBARMELS
HEHBAFERMEEMAOERE - T
B @B ENAGHRBRERMNTRIRES
2 EERHEEFRAEFFHLERE -
BETREBATEEA2EERRY - XA
HEMEER -

EEEREHPRE AR =([ARRE

initiatives, each designed to make a positive impact on the lives of
individuals facing challenging circumstances.

Supporting Individuals
Impacted by the
COVID-19 Pandemic

%% coviD-19
RRATHENEA

Annual Report £ 2 2022/23

& BEEREEHEREETOEANE
AEERGTE

In Philippines, the COVID-19 pandemic brought unprecedented challenges, including
widespread job losses and financial hardships for many individuals and families. In the spirit of
bayanihan, we have been exerting every effort that we can to help the most vulnerable
members of our community during this extraordinary time. Despite the challenges on
procurement, we are glad to be able to donate much needed supplies for our front-line
workers including masks, gloves and gears which were passed through the city government.
Every other day, the hotel team cooks, prepares and distribute food packs to feed the
homeless and street dwellers within Malate and in nearby areas. As of to date, the hotel has
distributed more than 5,000 food packs. As we continue to give a helping hand, we also
extend our prayers and well-wishes to everyone. We are all in this together.

FEIERE - COVIDI9ORRITHER T RIFAARBHKE - BEAEBREZMAZEAANRK
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B. SOCIAL (Continued)

16. COMMUNITY INVESTMENT (Continued)

Assisting Citizens Affected
by the Mayon Volcano
Eruption

1h B 32 55 &R ML IR B
FENTR

B. #&®)

In June 2023, the Mayon volcano eruption
severely impacted the surrounding
communities of Philippines, displacing
numerous citizens and leaving them in urgent
need of support. As part of our commitment
to community investment, we collaborated
with the House of Representatives, Republic of
the Philippines to provide assistance to the
affected individuals. We donated bath robes,
bed sheets and pillow cases, which helped
5,912 evacuees (1,729 families) considerably
ease their plight consequent to the volcanic
activity of Mayon.

202367 BRNUBBBREZET
FFRBRBENMRE  ERAETR AL
A 2B XE - AERRMELRIZRE M A
W — 8D - HFIEFEFRBEREAE

REZENEAREED - JABE T8
B REMNLE  EEMWERKERT
5912 B EnAE (1,7291B R B2 ) 7 55 5 AL
Jm B 1% P BR A R o

Our efforts were acknowledged by the House
of Representatives, which expressed gratitude
through a thank-you letter, recognizing our
commitment to supporting affected
communities during this challenging period.
BPINB NG T IERERE AR
o PiRIE — S RAERE TR ZIE - I
HARRFIEE EFT M B AR S RS %
BB AGE

16. t(ERE (&)

e
REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES
HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES
27 July 2023
MR. MARC KERCKHOFS
General Manager
New Coast Hotel Manila
1588 Pedro G, corner M. H. el Pilar St,
Malate, Manila
Dear General Manager Kerckhofs,

The 5,912 evacuees (1,729 families) of Tabaco City, Maliipot, and Sto. Domingo
of the First District of Albay and myself are truly grateful for your kind donation of bath
robes, bed sheets and pillow cases, which helped them considerably ease their plight
consequent to the volcanic activity of Mayon.

Mayor Krisel Lagman-Luistro of Tabaco City, Mayor Cenon Volante of Malilipot, and
Mayor Joseling B. Aguas, Jr. of Sto. Domingo also appreciate your invaluable assistance.
May you be rewarded a thousand fold.

Very truly yours,

EDCEL C. LAGMAN

HON. EDCEL C. LAGMAN P
cpresentative, First Districtof Albay 14

Donating Liners to Recognizing the critical role that healthcare institutions play in safeguarding community
the Local Hospital health, the hotel operation sought to support the local hospital by donating essential items.
BRI SRAEER We contributed linens such as bed sheets and towels to the hospital, helping to enhance the
quality of care provided to patients. This donation aimed to alleviate the strain on the

hospital’s resources and contribute to a more comfortable environment for patients and

healthcare professionals.

BEXGEHAZBEREERECERRETENBERER  RIREBEBELE
R E IR o HMIABRBE T REMENSHMR  APNEAHBEN
HIEEHE - CHEBREEREBRERNEN  RBENBEABAE —AELFE

R -

By implementing these community investment initiatives, the Group
demonstrates our commitment to social responsibility and our
dedication to making a positive impact on the communities we
serve. We believe that by supporting vulnerable populations and
addressing critical needs, we contribute to the overall well-being
and development of society. As we move forward, we remain
committed to explore additional opportunities to engage with
communities and create lasting positive change.

BAERELLREEER  KERTTR
Pt & B ENAGEIARHH P RE LR
ELEGEENFRIE - HAEERBX
FEIHBIREERH K RAIREEN
ERERUEMEBERMDER - EATERBEE
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17.

OPERATIONS
SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Group has the responsibility to manage environmental and
social risks along its supply chain. The Purchase Procedures were in
place to ensure all suppliers abide by the laws and regulations in
relation to environmental and social conduct. The Group not only
concerns the price, but also labour standards, human rights, health
and safety, and the environment. The Group regularly communicates
its rigorous standards to all its suppliers. The Group strictly followed
the Purchase Procedures to evaluate the business practices of its
suppliers. During the Reporting Period, all of the Group’s 436 key
suppliers were qualified suppliers that met the Group’s standards.
The management team regularly reviews the effectiveness of the
Purchase Procedures to maintain high standards of supply chain
management.

17.1 Selecting the Most Suitable Suppliers

The Group commits to offering quality services to its
customers and meeting their needs in order to retain its
customers. Therefore, the Group regulates its procurement
procedures to strive for the best value for its customers.

To ensure the comfort of all the guests, the Group ensures all
linen and bathroom amenities in its hotel are in compliance
with a set of standardised specifications. ltems that do not
comply with the required specifications will be rejected and
returned to the corresponding suppliers. If substitutes for the
rejected items are not readily available or goods are urgently
needed, the Group will seek alternative suppliers which meet
the Group's standards and the User Department will check if
the quality variation is acceptable.

The Group strives not to over-rely on a specific supplier so as
to ensure the stability of its supply chain and lower the risk of
disruption. When choosing business partners, the Purchasing
Department works with reputable suppliers who provide the
Group with the best quality products, which meet the Group's
sustainability specifications and align with the Supply Chain
Code of Conduct.
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C. OPERATIONS (Continued)
17. SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT (Continued)
17.1 Selecting the Most Suitable Suppliers (Continued)

The following table sets out the number of the Group's key
suppliers by geographical region:

Indicators BE

Number of key suppliers

By geographical region Rt E
The Philippines JEAEE
Hong Kong BE
The United States FEH
Europe &M
Other regions Hitbihm

The Group's suppliers are divided into two general categories:
(i) office item suppliers; and (i) hotel item suppliers. At the
office level, suppliers provide routine office items for the
Group's offices, including stationery, toner and paper, etc. For
the hotel segment, most items are procured for hotel
operations and that cover a wide range of items including
beverage, food, linens and cleaning supplies, etc. The Group is
committed to selecting the most suitable suppliers which
meet the Group’s expectations. During the procurement
process, the Purchasing Department assesses the
environmental and social risks of the candidate suppliers with
a high level of objectivity and impartiality.

In view of the increasing awareness of environmental and
social issues in today’s society, the Group has taken both
environmental and social risks into considerations in the
procurement and supplier selection process, to avoid
cooperating with suppliers that do not fit the Group’s long-
term vision for sustainable development. The Group
endeavours to keep constant communication with suppliers
and will continue to monitor its supply chain pursuant to the
Group's environmental and social standards. For suppliers who
fail to meet the environmental and social standards, the Group
will consider terminating the Group's business relationship
with them.
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C. OPERATIONS (Continued) C. ZEE#®B)
17. SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT (Continued) 17. HFESEEIE (&)
17.1 Selecting the Most Suitable Suppliers (Continued) 171 BEESBNHER (&)

Additionally, the Group requires all suppliers to comply with
the laws when supplying goods and services to the Group.
The Group also strongly encourages the Purchasing
Department to take note of the local government's policy on
recommended green product specifications. For example, the
Purchasing Department was advised to study the materials
published by the Philippines government agencies such as
the Department of Budget and Management, Department of
Trade and Industry and Department of Environment and
Natural Resources. By gathering information from multiple
government agencies, the Purchasing Department seeks to
develop a process to procure goods, services and works with
relatively lower environmental impact throughout their life
cycle. The management team regularly reviews whether the
Group's suppliers have complied with laws and regulations.
For suppliers which did not comply with laws and regulations
relating to environmental protection, the Group will consider
terminating our business relationship with them.

17.2 Local Procurement

The Group intends to allocate budget to local suppliers as the
Group believes that local procurement can support local
economic development and create job opportunities for the
local community. As a result, the Group preferentially
purchases goods and services from suppliers within the region
close to its operation. During the Reporting Period, more than
99% (2022: 96%) of its key suppliers were located in the
Philippines, the country that the Group performs most of the
business activities.

18. SERVICE RESPONSIBILITY
18.1 Service Quality

The Group believes that service quality is one of the key factors
in gaining customers’ trust. To ensure the delivery of high-
quality services, the Group has established policies.
Additionally, the Group is committed to handling customer
queries in a timely and efficient manner. To continuously
enhance the hotel’s services, customers are encouraged to
provide feedback on their experience, and the Group has
established procedures for handling customer queries and
complaints. Well-trained representatives are always ready to
promptly respond to inquiries, requests, and complaints. All
complaints will be thoroughly reviewed and forwarded to the
relevant departments for follow-up actions to prevent similar
situations in the future. For any unfavorable comments about
the Group's services or facilities, the responsible department
head must be informed as soon as possible to ensure proper
handling of customer complaints. The duty manager is
responsible for handling guest complaints using the following
procedures, upholding a standard of professionalism and
delivering high-quality service.
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C. OPERATIONS (Continued)
18. SERVICE RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)
18.1 Service Quality (Continued)

HERERRE

EE ()
18. IRFEE &)
18.1 R EE (&)
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During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
incidents of non-compliance with laws and regulations in
relation to safety and health, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided. The
relevant laws and regulations include, but are not limited to,
the Trade Descriptions Ordinance (Cap. 362) of Hong Kong,
Copyright Ordinance (Cap. 528) of Hong Kong, Personal Data
(Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486) of Hong Kong, Consumer
Protection Law (Law No. 12/88/M) of Macau, Macau
Advertising Law (Law No. 7/89/M), Republic Act No. 8293 of
the Philippines and Data Privacy Act (Republic Act No. 10173)
of the Philippines.

During the Reporting Period, the number of complaints
received by the Group was 0 (2022: 0). If the Group receives
any complaints, the relevant complaints will be handled
promptly with the help of the hotel staff. Follow-up actions
would be conducted where appropriate to handle any
complaints.
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C. OPERATIONS (Continued) C. E&E#)
18. SERVICE RESPONSIBILITY (Continued) 18. IRFBEME (@)
18.2 Quality Assurance and Customer Satisfaction 182 MEREBNEFRE

The Group recognize that delivering high-quality products
and services while ensuring customer satisfaction is essential
for long-term success and stakeholder value creation in the
hospitality and gaming industry. The Group is committed to
meeting or even exceeding customers’ expectations on the
Group's service quality.

To maintain our high quality and professional hospitality
services, the hotel operation has established a set of Standard
Operating Procedures for each department based on their job
duties. These procedures provide employees with clear-cut
directions and detailed instructions needed to consistently
and efficiently perform specific tasks or operations.
Additionally, we have established a Code of Discipline, which
clearly states the consequences and disciplinary procedures in
the event of employees breaching the Code.

Furthermore, we continuously invest in training and
development programs for hotel staff to enhance their skills,
knowledge, and customer service abilities. We empower
employees to handle guest issues independently and provide
them with the necessary tools and resources.
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C. OPERATIONS (Continued)

RE  #HE8RERBE

C. EE#)

18. SERVICE RESPONSIBILITY (Continued) 18. BRFFEE W)
18.2 Quality Assurance and Customer Satisfaction 182 mMEBEREBNEFMEE (&)

(Continued)

While our employees are responsible for carrying out EFHME T & & RERLE R MEZ
exceptional customer service based on the policies and ERFRELEENETEIRER R
standard of procedures established, we also implement KBS T —LHEBRERERAL
several measures to promote customer satisfaction during EESHRREE

their stays:

Comfortable
Accommodations

FENER

Cleanliness and
Maintenance

ARNAEE

Offer well-designed, comfortable, and well-appointed rooms with amenities such as
comfortable beds, quality linens, adequate storage space, and modern furnishings.

Provide essential amenities like toiletries, towels, and in-room entertainment options.
REBORG  STEARFEEE2NERE  EFENK BEXRE  TEHNRET
ZERFIIEARRAEEF R - REEKAR - EONEENRREREEEARZ
35 -

Maintain high cleanliness standards throughout the hotel, including guest rooms,
common areas, and facilities. Regularly inspect and maintain equipment, fixtures, and
amenities to ensure everything is in good working order.

BEBERFESEREE  BEREE  AHEREMERE - EHREMEZRE -
EEREMEF RN - SRR —V)EER R 8 TIERRE -
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C. OPERATIONS (Continued)

RE  #HE8RERBE

C. EE#)

18. SERVICE RESPONSIBILITY (Continued) 18. IRFEE#)
18.2 Quality Assurance and Customer Satisfaction 182 mEBERBNEFMEE (&)
(Continued)

Amenities and Facilities

%
&
g
K
3

112 Annual Report F#£2022/23

We offer a variety of amenities and facilities that cater to guests’ needs, such as fitness
centers, swimming pools, spa services, business centers, and meeting rooms to host
meetings, events, or weddings. We have a range of venues that can accommodate any
type of event or celebration, and our professional expertise and meticulous planning
ensure the success of the occasion. Our experienced events team will be pleased to guide
you every step of the way.

BFRESEREMRE - R ZEANT R - PR S O - ok - KER
B At ONMEEE  TARERSE  RHIER - HMEASESM - 7
R T RBRE AR REIEE) - FAPIH) F E FBA A B 58I RER IS B AR
W BPIEREENEDEFHELERECRTET—INES -




International Entertainment Corporation  BIBRIREEA R A A

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

C. OPERATIONS (Continued)

Rk 2 REREHS

C. EE#)

18. SERVICE RESPONSIBILITY (Continued) 18. lRFEEE#)
18.2 Quality Assurance and Customer Satisfaction 182 mMEBEREBNEFMEE (&)
(Continued)

Quality Dining Options

EmEERER

Personalization and
Attention to Detail

Bt FEEAER

Provide a range of dining options, including fine dining, casual restaurants, and room
service, with a focus on high-quality food, diverse menus, and accommodating dietary
preferences. Ensure prompt service and maintain a pleasant dining ambiance.
REZBEREE  PESAREE KEEBNEERY TESnEHRY -
SRR ETD A FRRREL  BRDRNRB I EFFRIROAERE -

Strive to personalize the guest experience by understanding individual preferences and
anticipating their needs. Offer tailored recommendations, surprises, and special touches to
make guests feel valued and appreciated. Personalized services includes babysitting
services, event planning, laundry service, guest pickup and delivery, etc.

BB TREANEASFIIEAMMAENERREE (T AR - REES
EHINEE  BEMNFHNNES  FEABRZIRERMNEE - @EECREEE
RIGARTS  EBERE - ERRE  HEXEASE -
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BRIR-HE8RER

C. OPERATIONS (Continued)

HE

C. EE#)

18. SERVICE RESPONSIBILITY (Continued) 18. fRFBEE ()
18.2 Quality Assurance and Customer Satisfaction 182 mEBERBNEFMEE (&)
(Continued)
Safety & Security We are committed to providing a secure environment that instills confidence and peace

of mind. We have implemented a range of security measures, including strategically
placed surveillance cameras throughout the property to monitor public areas, entrances,
and exits. Our access control systems restrict unauthorized entry to designated areas of
the hotel with well trained security personnel. Furthermore, we have established an
Emergency Response Team, and developed comprehensive emergency response plans
that cover a wide range of potential scenarios, such as fires, natural disasters, medical
emergencies, and security threats. We also have set up a clinic at the hotel with full-time
nurses and two in-house doctors.

ZR2RE BMBORREHELZE2HERE  BTEABONEZLRE - KMEHRT —RILE2E
M BREEREYERB I B EREGSE  UERAREL - AOMEA -
BMOPEZGRRERENABE VBEEERSE - WEEIRE=ZNRE
AB o AN BMERY TRESEEEE - S8 T 2HMNESEETE - WET
XE SEBR A BRKE E?E >‘Rfﬁu§%}ﬂ% c RPIETAIER

—(EZ A - BB BETNREANE

By focusing on these aspects, a hotel can create a positive and BBEITRELEHTE  BEEATUNAR

memorable experience for its guests, leading to higher ANEBIERBRRMESAERS  KmiEe

customer satisfaction and loyalty. EERMBEMEHE -

As the Group is principally involved in gaming operation, hotel HREETENRSEHELES  BIEE

operation and live events, it was not involved in sales of BRIRIGEE - mEHAEANTE R

products during the Reporting Period. The disclosure on the Emis AT MERRAM

total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and FOEEMEEAEEEMBEUARSE
health reasons and recall procedures does not apply to the EIREFRHEETNERRAER -

Group.
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C. OPERATIONS (Continued) C. ZE&E#®B)
18. SERVICE RESPONSIBILITY (Continued) 18. IRFEE &)
18.3 Advertising and Labelling 18.3 EHEER

The Group is constantly engaged in the promotion of its
hospitality services through various advertising platforms such
as the Group's websites, posters and marketing campaigns.
The Group ensures no misleading or false information is
delivered to the public in the Group’s promotional materials.
At the Group's hotel, marketing campaigns are monitored by
the management in accordance with laws and regulations.

As the Group operates in the hotel industry, its operations do
not involve labelling matters.

18.4 Intellectual Property Rights

Intellectual property rights of the Group include all registered
domains, trademarks, copyrights and licences. An effective
management in protecting both internal and external
intellectual property right ensures the sustainability of daily
business operation and corporate branding.

The Group recognises the importance of protecting
intellectual property rights. The Group has established a policy
to prohibit the use of illegal or unauthorised computer
programs on computers within the workplace. All the
computer programmes used by the Group were purchased
from licensed dealers. The Group closely monitors its business
activities, such as the installation of computer programmes, to
protect intellectual property rights.

SENEBEEEB  BRMNMITH
ABEERES T A EELEER
SEEREMANEEEHRTTIERAA
FREEEAREERERAR - £X
SEEBEIE  THEBREEEEK
BORRAMRAEITEE o

HRZEBEBEETRTES  HEX
BTASREERERE -

18.4 HIBERE

AKEOABERREMASEMA
& AR RENFAE - REA
ERA SNSRI E R Y A B IR MR T
BEERKELNERERENT AL

AEBTHINRENSEENERE -
AEECEIBR  UEILETES
PRV E R L E ARSI ARERENE
i - AEEFAEMRNMAEKE
AHBERELHD - AREZIE
EEXBRS PN KEKEF
PAPRTE R o
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C. OPERATIONS (Continued) C. &&E#®)
18. SERVICE RESPONSIBILITY (Continued) 18. IRFEE#)
18.5 Customer Privacy and Data 18.5 EFBANEE

To safeguard the personal data of employees, customers and
stakeholders, the Group established privacy policies which set
out the purpose of personal data collection, the use of
personal data, the transfer of personal data, the retention of
personal data, the security on personal data and the
procedures to access or update personal data with reference
to relevant laws and regulations. The privacy statement is
published on the Group's website to draw users’ attention.
The privacy policies are reviewed by the management on a
regular basis and are updated where appropriate. Under the
privacy policies, the Group enforces security and control
measures relating to computer software, email, domains and
websites. The Group's privacy protection measures include,
but are not limited to:

only licensed software can be installed on the
computers within the workplace;

password protected workstations, networks and
applications;

access to customers’ data is granted to employees
based on their job requirements;

restrictions on the use of USB ports on computers; and

anti-virus and anti-spam solutions are installed and
regularly updated.

Employees are instructed how to manage the data that they
have access to. The Group pays extra attention to customer
data management and no substantiated complaints regarding
leakage of customer privacy or loss of customer data were
reported during the Reporting Period.

116 Annual Report 7 2022/23

RTREET - BEPMAMEEBED
BEABE  AEEHETRLEE
RAERAEEABBRRENEN  £H
BEABEOTA - BEARENES
BEABEORE - BABBENZEMHE
ARAREFHEABRBENORF - I
2EHRMEERTER - BALBHADE
SEMMUL EEA - USEBFEE
E-BLRREPHEEEES X
FEEERETERN - REBLBEE
ZEBEEREERKKT - BT
134 A0 48 it AR B ) 22 2 A R 4 e
AEEORLRERREFETRR
ANTTE :

RERBRENEI R AL KL
TIESAEER L

TiEN - BETE AR R HE
Rit

BREEINTIESK RTEET
P8R ERER

B 1| T B _E USB ik A B R

LRI TE HIE R S M R B R
BMUBRTER -

R B A B T4 475 B 0 ] 5 2 4 9
AR BB o AR EEE
EREFERER  WEHMAAKE
EEEENEREERAINERES
BRI AR -



International Entertainment Corporation  BIBRIREEA R A A

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE HERERKRE

C. OPERATIONS (Continued) C. ZE&E#®B)
18. SERVICE RESPONSIBILITY (Continued) 18. IRFEE &)

18.5 Customer Privacy and Data (Continued)

To enhance employees’ understanding of privacy and data
protection, the Group communicates its privacy policies to
employees. In addition, the Group conducts awareness
campaigns and provides data privacy training for employees
in refresher programs. The Group has appointed the data
protection officer to conduct compliance inspections of the
Group's privacy protection measures and form a liaison with
the National Privacy Commission in the Philippines.

19. ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group maintains the highest standards of openness, uprightness
and accountability, all the employees are expected to observe the
highest standards of ethical, personal and professional conduct. The
Group does not tolerate corruption, bribery, extortion, money
laundering and other fraudulent activities in connection with any of
its business operations. The Group has adopted the Code of
Discipline, which contains terms on anti-corruption and the penalties
for offenses against business ethics. All employees and the
management of the Groups are required to strictly comply with the
Code of Discipline, which states that employees are prohibited, with
only limited exceptions, from receiving tips and gifts from hotel
customers, colleagues or suppliers. Any gifts or favours received,
regardless of value, must be reported to the individual’s supervisor.
Any matters of genuine concern will be thoroughly investigated and
actions will be taken accordingly. Training that helps to enhance
employees' understanding of the anti-corruption provisions outlined
in the Code of Discipline is provided to employees if necessary. In
addition, regular corporate governance training, which covers
knowledge on anti-corruption legislation as well as skills to prevent
corruption at the workplace, is provided to raise employees’
awareness.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
incidents of non-compliance with laws and regulations in relation to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering. The relevant laws
and regulations include, but not limited to, Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance (Cap. 201) of Hong Kong, Prevention and Suppression of
Bribery in the Private Sector (Law No. 19/2009) of Macau and Anti-
Graft and Corrupt Practices Act (Republic Act No. 3019) of the
Philippines. During the Reporting Period, there were no concluded
legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the Group or
its employees.

185 EFRBANMEE (&)

77 hnoe B TH B LM BB R ENR
# o AEBERE TEHEEZEERBIEGR -
o AREBERREZBREBDWELEE
SFTERAE TIREERELEI - K
SEEZAEBEREZEEHASEN
BERARERBETSRRE - WHF
REEREALZESETHE -

19. RES

SEERARF CEVRENSZSRE M
FERIRETER BANBEETANED
R - REBNA B EE I XEE R
MR- BB $1FR - HEMEMFERE
B AEEERMCLRERTED - EhEER
BB IR AR B R EERIT AR B 5 R
Ao EEMAEIMEREELREREST
(esrfl)  TRIRE - lRBRPISMER
S RIFETERBERF - REHMHER
R/ NEMBY) - EmEENE - ZRBIHE
s EHUARBANTERSE - £
MELRINERAGETRERAZE - LR
JESRERITE) - IMAXE - AB TRHEBH
RANRE (T RZERD P R E)S R AR AR A
Bl e tesh - BEEEHNERERE
ARRER BT ERANBARETESHTEA
PIEISHRTT - IAEEm B TR BRUKYE -

EREHR - AEEW A MBERTESTE
B RIS - $)R - HEEREMEENT
BREMH - FEEMNERTERBIEETRR
EECH LR (8201 F) ~ SBPICHL
EECFIBEER TR Y R 4T 8K ) (A2 55 19/2009
SR MIERBE(RESEE SRS (EFE
SEERE301990) c EMEHN - WREHAK
EEREETRENEESTTAEBENELS
EAEHRAA
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C. OPERATIONS (Continued) C. &E&E#®)
19. ANTI-CORRUPTION (Continued) 19. REJ5 (4#)
19.1 Whistle-blowing Policy 19.1 EHEK

The Group has implemented the Whistle-blowing Policy
which enables all employees and third parties such as
customers, suppliers and contractors, to raise any concerns
about improprieties, misconducts, malpractices, wrongdoings,
irregularities, fraud or corruption to the management. Reports
and complaints received will be assessed within a reasonable
timeframe. After which, they will be handled by the
Investigating Panel when necessary. Any violations or
substantiated allegations will be followed up with effective
remedial action commensurate with the severity of the
offense. The Group reserves the right to refer any cases to the
appropriate external regulatory authorities.

The Policy also aims at protecting whistle-blowers from fear of
reprisal, discrimination or adverse consequences, the identity
of the whistle- blowers will be kept strictly confidential. The
Group reserves the right to take appropriate actions against
anyone who initiates or threatens to initiate retaliation against
the whistleblowers. In particular, employees who initiate or
threaten retaliation will be subject to disciplinary actions,
which may include summary dismissal.

To monitor the effectiveness of the whistle-blowing
mechanism, the Group reviews all complaints received
regularly and conducts investigations if any pattern of
improprieties or alleged improprieties exist that need to be
addressed.

118 Annual Report 7 2022/23

AKEEERBREEK  EMERET
ME=77(MEF - HERNAERHE)
EHRMEREEREETMERTEET
B NETR - TEME 8RR
PTHRETH BEFHETWEE - I8
AmMEMBFHESENFRAE
1TeHAE - BB - BHFEEEEE -
HREREZRITRARELEREE
REA R MRS RERITRH
BERERN AREREBEMR
HENEEE NP EEERBHER -

ZBRITE EREERARTRE
BARHAFEROEE - BRANS
DRBIRRE - AEEREHEME
BMABEREE HRIREN AR
EETERREN - KRR - BENE
BRENBETHIINCERD - P
AR BRI BNERE

RTEERHEBNERE  FEE
HEEWROMARN  LHEREE
BEMNHFEEZHRRNTETR/ISHRAD
ETRHIBEETHE -



International Entertainment Corporation

B IRRE AR A A

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

20. SUMMARY OF ESG KEY PERFORMANCE

BRIR - -HE8KRE

20. FARBENIEIEHE

INDICATORS
ESG Indicators Unit 2023
ESG 5 & B —EC=HFE
A. Environmental Indicators
BRI
A1 Emission
23587
A1.1 Type of emissions and respective
emissions data
BRER R BEERER
Air emissions
BERBEME
Nitrogen oxides Kg 347.21
=Kl e T
Sulphur oxides Kg 22.71
mety T
Particulate matter Kg 24.42
RZRF TR
A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect
(Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions and
intensity
Ei(HEE-) RERMEE(BE=)RE
REFHERRE
Total greenhouse gas emissions tCO2e 6,924.29
BERBHRES Wi —SE(LREE
GHG emissions intensity Tonne/million HKS revenue 33.42
B RSP GR =R N
GHG emissions (Scope 1) tCO2e 297.11
BEREBEER (BE—) WE—SLIRE 8
GHG emissions (Scope 2) tCO2e 6,627.18
BERBHR(SEE— Wi —SE(LIREE
A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced
FELERERENEE
Total hazardous waste produced Tonne 11.12
FEEBEREEYDES Mg
Total hazardous waste intensity Tonnes/million HKS revenue 0.054

BEERNEETE

W, B EETIA

Annual Report 4 #2 2022/23

AR E

2022
—ECFE

1,137.49
816.62

818.30

5,284.38
61.79
21017

5,074.21

3.33

0.039
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20. SUMMARY OF ESG KEY PERFORMANCE

INDICATORS (Continued)

A2

A2.1

A2.2

ESG Indicators
ESGIEZ

Total non-hazardous waste produced
FELEEERRYEE

Total non-hazardous waste produced
ELBERERERNEE

Total non-hazardous waste intensity
BEEZMEETE

Total non-hazardous wastewater discharged
FEE B ERE KR E

Total non-hazardous wastewater intensity
BEKEETE

Use of resource

BRER

Direct and/or indirect energy
consumption by type in total and
intensity

REANBSNEER RBEEREEERE
REE

Total energy consumption
REREEE

Total energy consumption intensity
RERERERE

Direct energy consumption
HiERERHERS

Indirect energy consumption

I REREHFEE

Water consumption in total and intensity
BEKERRE

Water consumption

fEREKE

Water consumption intensity

BFKETE
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20. FASEENIGISRE (@)

Unit

By

Tonne

M

Tonnes/million HKS revenue
WE, BEBTHA

mS

SR

m3/million HKS revenue
SNIKS BB TRA

MWh

JKE B

MWh/million HKS revenue
KRR BEBTHRA
MWh

JE LB

MWh

JKE B

m}
m?/million HKS revenue

MR/ BEETRA

2023
—EC=EE

4.91

0.024

115,862

559.13

12,078.35

58.29

995.50

11,082.85

160,125.00

772.73

2022
—E-FFE

0.020

84,240

984.98

8,775.38

102.61

288.65

8,486.73

72,545.40

84824
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20. SUMMARY OF ESG KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS (Continued)

20. BAEEEESNIGIZRE (@)

ESG Indicators Unit 2023 2022
ESG {512 By —EC=HFE T -FF

B. Social Indicators
HEER

B1 Employment
EE

B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment
type, age group and geographical region

iR EREEE  FRANRGESRSD

NESEH
Total number of employees Person 240 218
BTHAR A
Gender Male Person 149 95
MR S A
Female Person 91 123
g A
Age group 18-30yearsold Person 70 62
Fienl 18E305% A
31-49 years old Person 143 136
31 E495% A
50 years old or above Person 27 20
50 £ A
Region Hong Kong and Macau Person 12 12
i [ B RORM A
The Philippines Person 228 206
FRE A
B1.2 Employee turnover and rate by gender,
age group and region
RMR - FRANREESZWERRE
AB R =
Total employee turnover rate Number and rate (%) of 75 (23.01%) 72 (33%)
employee turnover
EEMERALLE BERRABRREE
Gender Male Number and rate (%) of 48 (23.65%) 37 (38.9%)
MR B employee turnover
BERRABRREE
Female Number and rate (%) of 27 (21.95%) 35 (28.5%)
pegis employee turnover
BERRABEREE
Age group 18-30yearsold Number and rate (%) of 16 (18.39%) 21 (33.9%)
Fiera R employee turnover
18 2 30B% BERIAZBRRAE
31-49 years old Number and rate (%) of 55 (26.32%) 44 (32.4%)
employee turnover
31 E495% BERRABRREE
50 years old or above Number and rate (%) of 4 (13.33%) 7 (35%)

50353 A E

employee turnover

BB RAAB RS

Annual Report % 2022/23 121



International Entertainment Corporation BIFRIRZ475 R A &)

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERKRE

20. SUMMARY OF ESG KEY PERFORMANCE 20. FARBEWIEIERE (&)
INDICATORS (Continued)
ESG Indicators Unit 2023 2022
ESGIEE B —ECCFE —ToHFE
Region Hong Kong and Macau Number and rate (%) of 4 (23.53%) 4 (33.3%)
[ employee turnover
&8 KORM BEREABRREE
The Philippines Number and rate (%) of 71 (22.98%) 68 (33%)
employee turnover
e EBERKIABRMAE
B2 Health and safety
BEHEZE
B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities
EIfEEMETHABRLER
Number of work-related fatalities Case 0 0
BT EREMIE T A AR o
Rate of work-related fatalities Percentage 0 0
A TYERERE ML T A A Bt & Bt
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury Day 76 54
IEBEAIERH =]
B3 Development and training
R NEI
B3.1 Percentage of employees trained by

gender and employee category

EURREERANESNRIEEED

5
Gender Percentage of male employees trained Percentage 10.07% 8%
MR SMHEIRIEBESL Bkt
Percentage of female employees trained Percentage 19.78% -
ZMHEIXIESL Aokt
Employee Percentage of management trained Percentage 13.38% 0.1%
category HREBEBEZIIEDL Aot
B4R  Percentage of general employees trained Percentage 14.46% 2%
—MREIXIBESL Btk
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20. SUMMARY OF ESG KEY PERFORMANCE 20. FASEIEIEITEE (&)
INDICATORS (Continued)

ESG Indicators Unit 2023 2022
ESG {512 By —EC=HFE T -FF

B3.2 Average training hours completed per
employee by gender and employee
category
BUBIRESERES  SEEETHR
A F IR B

Gender Average training hours of male employees Hour 0.81 17

MR SHETIRINFHER aNs
Average training hours of female employees  Hour 1.76 0
LB TRFHRR N

Employee Average training hours of management Hour 1.17 0.1

category  BEBETHITHHE N

EE%87| Average training hours of general employees Hour 1.16 0.7
—REIXIIFHEFR aNs

B5 Supply chain management
iy A

B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region
RiEE S HHERYE
The Philippines Suppliers 422 432
FERE HrEm
Hong Kong Suppliers 13 3
B8 e
The United States Suppliers Nil 1
=S HRER e
Europe Suppliers 1 2
M HrEm
Other regions Suppliers Nil 11
H 30 [ HrEm i3

B6 Product responsibility
EmEE

B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped  Percentage N/A N/A
subject to recalls for safety and health reasons TEA NiE A
EEHEEXEMBHETRARZEER A
Bl mARKE A S

B6.2 Number of products and service related Case Nil Nil
complaints received s i
EEBNEm MR RFEE =
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20. SUMMARY OF ESG KEY PERFORMANCE 20. FABEESIEIERE (©)
INDICATORS (Continued)
ESG Indicators Unit 2023 2022
ESGIEE By —EC=HFE T -FE
B7 Anti-corruption
RES
B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases

regarding corrupt practises brought

against the issuer or its employees

during the reporting period

REZHAHBTAREEERELE

ERNESHARGNWEE

Number of corruption lawsuits Case Nil Nil
BT ARG E = i3 i

B8 Community investment
HERE
B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area
EEXERBAER
Donation to underprivileged HKS Nil Nil
BB FakiiSF B & i

124 Annual Report %% 2022/23



21. THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT

International Entertainment Corporation

B IRRE AR A A

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

7B 155

INDEX OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE

Key Performance Indicators

RRENER

Environmental

RiB

A1: Emissions
1: BB

General Disclosure

(a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

—fRIFE

ﬁ%}?ﬁ&m:ﬁ S ﬁﬂv&iiﬂzﬁ’ﬁitﬁ BERBEEEEZYMNELEN0)
BOR (b) ETHBEITABEAZENERERRRIINER -

Al.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data.
AL SRR AR BE A #

A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions and
intensity.
A2 B (8B —) RglREE (SR ) A=RBEREREE -

A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and intensity.

AMIFMELEEREMRERTE -

A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity.

AMAFMELBEBRZMRERTE -

A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

AVS FHILPRET MV HE I E B R R RERE L B R ERI 5% -

A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, and a
description of reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

Ale LRI B E N BEEEEMN A - REEAPAET AR B R R RERE
LE B IZPTERER A B o

HERERRE

21. BARFRESGIREIES IRABZES|

Reporting Section

EEE

7. EMISSION

7.5E R4

7. EMISSION

8. WASTE MANAGEMENT
7. BER)

8. EEEWEIE

7.2 GHG Emissions

20. SUMMARY OF ESG KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
72 R EREBHR

20. AREMIEEHE

8.1 Hazardous Waste Management
20. SUMMARY OF ESG KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

81 AERERYER

20 BARERURIR M 2

8.2 Non-hazardous Waste
Management

20. SUMMARY OF ESG KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

82 EEREREYER

20 BARERURIR 2

7. EMISSION

7. BERY)

7. EMISSION

8. WASTE MANAGEMENT

7. BE)

B.EEEMER
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21. THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT 21. BA3XPRESGHREI55 |IRBERS| (£)

INDEX OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE (Continued)

Key Performance Indicators
BREMIEE

A2: Use of Resources

A2 BEREEA

General Disclosure

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw
materials. Resources may be used in production, in storage, transportation, in buildings,
electronic equipment, etc.

— R E

BRERER(BIERIR - KREAMRIE) BEEE -
B BT EIRE -
A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in

BIRATANEE - /7 -

total and intensity.
A2 IREERIEI S ERE R REERER(NE - fRaUh) BEEREE -

A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity.

A2 HEFEKERZE o

A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
A23 I PET SV AR IR(E A e B IR B IE RS L B IR PSRRI P 5 ©

A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose,
water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

A24 HECSREGE KR ERT BEMIRRE - AR RKRE T E RATRAR -
A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if applicable,
with reference to per unit produced.

A5 BRI BERMBNRE R BEESMLIEE -

126 Annual Report &7 2022/23

Reporting Section
EHEE

9. USE OF RESOURCE

9. BEIRMEH

9.1 Energy Consumption

20. SUMMARY OF ESG KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
9.1 BEIRE#E

20. RERUIE IR
9.2 Water Consumption

20. SUMMARY OF ESG KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
92 K&

20. RAE IR R E

9. USE OF RESOURCE

9. BIRBEM

9.2 Water Consumption

92 AKE

The disclosure on the total packaging
material used for finished products

does not apply to the Group’s
operations.

BERRmAT B BEMHEENH

BTNERRAEENER
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THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT
INDEX OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE (Continued)

Key Performance Indicators

BARENER

A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
A3 BERRARER

General Disclosure

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on the environment and natural
resources.

—RRINEE

BIRZEITABIRBERARAABERIEKERZENBOR ©
A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural
resources and the actions taken to manage them.

A H R ESHIRERRABE RNEAZER O KNER AT ENT) -

A4: Climate Change
A4 RIRE 1L

General Disclosure

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues which have
impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.

—REE

BB R EHE AR HETAEEYENERRBREBEEMNEBER -
A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have impacted, and
those which may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.

AMIERERRAREEHRITAEEZENEARKEREE - MEHTTH -

21. B43SFRESGIR&EIE5|IABRERS| (&)

Reporting Section
HEH

10. THE ENVIRONMENT AND
NATURAL RESOURCES

10. IREMRAER

10. THE ENVIRONMENT AND
NATURAL RESOURCES
10. REMKXAER

11. CLIMATE CHANGE

1 SRIREE

11. CLIMATE CHANGE

1. |IEEL,

Annual Report %%2022/23 127



International Entertainment Corporation BB IREEA R A A

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERKRE

21. THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT 21. BA3XPRESGHREI55 |IRBERS| (£)
INDEX OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE (Continued)

Key Performance Indicators Reporting Section

BREVER EHEE

Social

e

B1: Employment

B1: EfE

General Disclosure 12. EMPLOYMENT
12.2 Retaining Talents

(a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a

significant impact on the issuer relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and

promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination,

and other benefits and welfare.

—RBEE 12. 2%
122 REAA

BT ARE  BERER  TERE - RY - FEHE 2l RER

A Ko B At 457 488 e A8 KB (a) BROR (b) T ¥ 31T AR BEAZ EHAERER MR B

B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and geographical region.  12.1 The Group's Workforce
20. SUMMARY OF ESG KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

BI.THRM A - EIEEE - Fiel MBS HHES A - 120 &EEE8 Tk
20. AR IR IS 2
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region. 12.2 Retaining Talents

20. SUMMARY OF ESG KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
B2 &M% R| - FERAKMIEREIDHEERAKLE 122REAA
20. BASRAE IR IR R
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INDEX OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE (Continued)

Key Performance Indicators
BERENER

B2: Health and Safety

B2 RERZZE

General Disclosure

(a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to providing a safe working environment and
protecting employees from occupational hazards.

—MRIKER

BARHZE2TEREIREREEBEBELSEEEN 0 BER b) BTFHET
ABEAZENHEBERMROINER -

B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past three years
including the reporting year.

B21 BE=F (BEERFE) A TEBEMIETHAB R X -

B2.2 Lost days due to work injury.

B22 A TBHEATIERE -

B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

B23 I TR MM BL R B R R 2 281 - A SRBRERIT MER A

Reporting Section

HEEH

13. HEALTH, SAFETY AND SECURITY

]3.@>< N

H

i
Hp

FREE

13. HEALTH, SAFETY AND SECURITY
20. SUMMARY OF ESG KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
136257 REFRE

20 BB IR IR R

13. HEALTH, SAFETY AND SECURITY
20. SUMMARY OF ESG KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
136257~ REFRE

20 BARE IR IR R

13. HEALTH, SAFETY AND SECURITY

13625 - T2 FRE
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INDEX OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE (Continued)

21. B43SFRESGIREIE5|IRAARERS| (&)

Key Performance Indicators
BRERER

B3: Development and Training
B3 : R RIFI

General Disclosure

Reporting Section
EHEE

14. DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties at work.
Description of training activities.

—REE 14, R EE
BREARMEERT TERENAZ R BER - HlFIINES -

B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category. 14.1 Talent Management
20. SUMMARY OF ESG KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
B3.1 #Z1£ R

MESBAENNZIIEEE DL

141 AAEE
20 BARE B E

B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee
category.

B32 MR BB RERIE D - BREETKZINN TR -

B4: Labour Standards
B4 : % T %8|

General Disclosure

(a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to preventing child and forced labour.

— S

BRERT L ZE T e3R8 TH) () BUR (0) BT HETABEATZENABERZ IR

I EHL -

B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and forced

labour.
B4.1 fi it A T FRAB 1B PR TE p A R B T SR I 85 T »
B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered.

B4.2 L7 35308 MR 1B N R ER A BAIR L PT ERER Y 2P B8 o
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14.1 Talent Management
20. SUMMARY OF ESG KEY
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THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT
INDEX OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE (Continued)

Key Performance Indicators
BERENER

B5: Supply Chain Management
B5 : fitfESEEE

General Disclosure

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain.

— R

ERHRENREIEERBREEK -
B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region.

B5.1 IR B DA H BB o

B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers where
the practices are being implemented, and how they are implemented and monitored.
BS2 fL B RARE ML FER VBN - mEARTTERAENNHERHE - AREHA
BT REERFE

B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks along the
supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored.

B3 fHit B BRI B B EIRET R At @ AR EVED - ARIBBAFNIT R
ERAE-

B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable products and
services when selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and monitored.

BS.4 fii L 7E BRIE (e R By R 2 2 IR IR EE dm S IRFE RO BB - A R B RETE A0 A
TRERETE -

21. B43SFRESGIR&EIE5|IABRERS| (&)

Reporting Section

HEEH

17.SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

17 e E

17.1 Selecting the Most Suitable
Suppliers

20. SUMMARY OF ESG KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

171 BERSENHER

20 BARBERUEIRE

17. SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

17 B E

17.1 Selecting the Most Suitable
Suppliers

17.2 Local Procurement

171 B EREENHIER
172 "M IREE

17.1 Selecting the Most Suitable
Suppliers

17.2 Local Procurement

17 ERRESENMHER
17.2 AHERER
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21. THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT
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Key Performance Indicators
EREMER

B6: Product Responsibility
B6 : EmEIE

General Disclosure

(a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and
privacy matters relating to products and services provided and methods of redress.

— R EE

FRMRHERNIRBEHOREREZ S - BES  REABILEERERTEDN @
B (b)) BTHETAGERAZENRBEERZIROINER

B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and health
reasons.

Bo.l EEXRCEREMEHTRL 2 EREEMMFERKRNBA DL -

B6.2 Number of products and service-related complaints received and how they are
dealt with.

B6.2 BRI i M RAF VIR R BN B AR EH T »

B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual property
rights.

B6.3 Hi it B 4 & I R[S AN ERE R V1B O

B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.

B6.4 il B R E BIE REMEIWEF -

B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

Be.s HMUH B EBMERE RLBEE - AREBERTRERTE -
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Reporting Section
HEH

18. SERVICE RESPONSIBILITY

18. RIS EAE

The disclosure on the total products
sold or shipped subject to recalls for
safety and health reasons and recall
procedures does not apply to the
Group.

ARz NERRAMS AR
NEEHNBEEEREZARAED
BREFRRETNERNAER -

18.1 Service Quiality

20. SUMMARY OF ESG KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
181 RIBE &

20. AREMIERHE

184 Intellectual Property Rights

184 FNBEEHE

18.1 Service Quality

18.2 Quality Assurance and Customer
Satisfaction

181 RIGEE

182 mBERENEFMEE

18.5 Customer Privacy and Data

185 & PRALEIE
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21. THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT
INDEX OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE (Continued)

Key Performance Indicators
BERENER

B7: Anti-corruption

B7 : RES

General Disclosure

(a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.

—MRIKER

BRI IEHRE - $FR - BEFRAREN @QBR ) ETHETABEATENE
BERE MBI ER -

B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the
issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the outcomes of the cases.

B7.1 RERIANE BT AN EEBEREWEEANE SHFARGNEE RFA
HER o

B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, and how they
are implemented and monitored.

B7.2 HE Bt e R RIRIR T - LARAARAIMIT REE R 0E o

B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff.

B73 i MES KB TIRHHNREITH °

B8: Community Investment
B8 : HERE

General Disclosure

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the communities where
the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into consideration the communities’
interests.

—RRE

BNt E2ERERESEMEHEFTENBREXBZDSE BIEENRM
BUR e

B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns, labour needs,
health, culture, sport).

Be.) IEREE (WHE  REFHE HIHFEX BFE Xt 85)-
B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area.

B8 EE T EBPAAENAEIR

21. B43SFRESGIR&EIE5|IABRERS| (&)

Reporting Section

HEEH

19. ANTI-CORRUPTION

19. R&E5

20. SUMMARY OF ESG KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
20 BAREIRIR R

19.1 Whistle-blowing Policy

19.1 RIREBER
19. ANTI-CORRUPTION
19. &5

16. COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

16. (LB IE &

16. COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

16. fL[RIEE

16. COMMUNITY INVESTMENT
20. SUMMARY OF ESG KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
6.t @B I& &

20. BSREE IR IEmE
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IBDO

EEE - +852 2218 8288
{8E : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT
CORPORATION

BIFR IR BB IR A F

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of International
Entertainment Corporation (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the "Group”) set out on pages 142 to 266, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2023, and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 30 June 2023,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the “Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Impairment assessment of the non-current assets

We identified the impairment assessment in relation to the non-current
assets located in the Republic of the Philippines (the “Philippines”)
allocated to the cash generating unit of hotel operations (the “Hotel CGU")
as a key audit matter because of the significant judgements and estimates
involved in management’s assessment process. The Group has gross
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment of HK$150,744,000 and
right-of-use assets of HK$18,642,000 respectively relating to the Hotel CGU,
which are significant operating assets of the Group.

At the end of each reporting period, the management assesses if there are
any indicators of potential impairment of the assets relating to the Hotel
CGU. If any impairment indicator exists, the management assesses the
recoverable amount of the Hotel CGU with reference to the valuation
prepared by an independent professional valuer not connected to the
Group (the “Valuer”) by income capitalisation approach. As disclosed in
Note 14 and Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements, the
management has concluded that there is no additional provision nor
reversal of impairment loss of property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets recognised in the profit or loss for the year.

BYZHARES

BERZER
BAERBER B S EASRM (B BETER)
(TEBFTE])ETER - PP AT LXK
EOETEARS [ZBOREZSEEMBRE
EENEE] B PE—FEL - RIEFE S
AR [BEetERTR ) (R - RFABE
YR BEE - YEREITTRITHEMBERE -
BAFIHRE - RAMESHNERZERRERT R LEE
AT AI T R ERE -

FIBREEIR

FAREZFHEERERMNEZAE - HAHD
HEVMBHRRNEBEZRAERZNEIH - BLER
EERMEZERSE AV BRRRHABREE
TTERIZH) - BRI TS L ELFREHEBHER -

EREBEE ZREFM
BMESEBURIFREAME ([FEEE]) B
PREEAELERSEAEM((BERESELE
L) 2 EmBEE ZREFNGHAN A —BHEREE
%EE - RARERENMERFRNEXHE
Rt BESEBHENERSEEAEMNBEHA Y
¥ BEASEUARERREE(HE BEBZ
EREBEE) ZHREABESD R A150,744,00078 7T
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
Impairment assessment of the non-current assets (Continued)

Our response:

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment assessment of
the Hotel CGU included:

Discussing the impairment indicators of the Hotel CGU with the
management and inspecting the operating results and cash flow
forecast of the Group's hotel operation segment;

Assessing the appropriateness of valuation methodology;

Evaluating the competence, capabilities, and objectivity of the Valuer
and obtaining an understanding of the Valuer's scope of work and
their terms of engagement; and

Challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions adopted in the
valuation, such as the discount rate, capitalisation rate, average
occupancy rate and average daily room rate, by comparing them
with the budget approved by the management, available market
data for comparable properties and the historical operating
performances of the Group’s hotel operation segment.

Fair value measurement of investment properties

We have identified the fair value measurement of investment properties
located in the Philippines as a key audit matter due to the significant
management judgements and estimates adopted in the fair value
measurement of the investment properties.

As disclosed in Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements,
management estimated the fair value of investment properties at
approximately HK$989,000,000 as at 30 June 2023, with a fair value gain of
approximately HK$2,962,000 recognised in the profit or loss for the year.

Independent external valuations were obtained in respect of the
investment properties in order to support the management’s estimation of
fair value. The valuation is dependent on certain key assumptions that
require significant management judgements including rental income from
future lease period and capitalisation rate in light of the current market
condition.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
Fair value measurement of investment properties (Continued)

Our response:

Our procedures in relation to management’s fair value measurement of
investment properties included:

Conducting in-depth discussions with management about the cash
flow projections used in the income approach calculation and
assessing the appropriateness of the significant assumptions and
critical judgement areas which affect the income approach
calculation;

Assessing the appropriateness of valuation methodology;

Evaluating the competence, capabilities, and objectivity of the Valuer
and obtaining an understanding of the Valuer's scope of work and
their terms of engagement; and

Challenging the reasonableness of the key assumptions, such as
discount rate and capitalisation rate based on our knowledge of the
business and the industry, in particular those relating to the cash
flow projection used by the income approach for the fair value
measurement.

Contingencies in relation to the tax disputes with the Bureau
of Internal Revenue in the Philippines (the “BIR")

We identified the assessment of the contingencies in relation to the tax
disputes with the BIR as a key audit matter due to significant management
judgements involved in assessing the probability of settling the amount of
potential tax disputes of the Group as at the end of the reporting period.

As disclosed in note 11 to the consolidated financial statements, the
potential additional tax liabilities of the Group from the tax disputes with
BIR for calendar years of 2008, 2012, 2014, 2015, 2018 and 2019 amounted
to approximately HK$1,080,000,000 in aggregate as at 30 June 2023. During
the year, approximately HK$60.4 millions bank balances of the Group has
been garnished and withdrew by BIR in relation to tax dispute for calendar
year of 2015 and the Group has recognized as tax recoverable. The
uncertainties related to the ultimate outcome and the details of the tax
disputes with the BIR are set out in notes 4, 11 and 22 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Contingencies in relation to the tax disputes with the Bureau
of Internal Revenue in the Philippines (the “BIR”) (Continued)

Our response:

Our audit procedures in relation to evaluating the contingencies in relation
to the tax disputes with the BIR and the sufficiency of the relevant
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements included:

Obtaining and reviewing all relevant documents and
correspondences in relation to the tax disputes between the Group
and the BIR;

Evaluated the competence, capabilities, and objectivity of the tax
and legal advisors and obtaining an understanding of their scope of
work and their terms of engagements;

Inspecting the written advices issued by the independent tax and
legal advisers of the Group to assess the appropriateness of the
management’s basis in determining the amount of contingent
liabilities and the basis in evaluating the outcome of the tax disputes;

Enquiring and challenging the basis of written advices of
independent tax and legal advisors of the Group to understand their
assessment of the tax disputes; and

Considering the adequacy of the relevant disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements as required by relevant HKFRSs.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group'’s financial
reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging
their responsibility in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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International Entertainment Corporation BB IREEA R A A

Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZEEHRES

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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B IRRE AR A A

International Entertainment Corporation

Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Ng Wai Man
Practising Certificate number P05309

Hong Kong, 28 September 2023
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International Entertainment Corporation BB IREEA R A A

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SEZHRER

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE T = NA=1HIFE

Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2023 2022
BZE HE
—=E-= —ZF==
NA=1H ~NA=+H
LHEFE IEFE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
KtaF FH&xT FHET
Revenue WA 5(b) 207,219 85,525
Cost of sales SHE AR (70,593) (63,573)
Gross profit EF 136,626 21,952
Other income EHA A 6 11,938 4,641
Other gain/(loss), net H e/ (&18) F58 7 1,653 (17,968)
Change in fair value of financial assets at BRATESABRZ eREE
fair value through profit or loss NEEES 19 (3,127) (40,949)
Change in fair value of financial liabilities at EATEFAERcEREE
fair value through profit or loss NEEEE 31 (4,258) 3,176
Change in fair value of investment properties IR &£ QN FEE 15 2,962 (120,731)
Share of loss of associates D hEE N REE 17 (1,058) (6,445)
Selling and marketing expenses THE kM5 ER X (137) (65)
General and administrative expenses —BRITHAX (97,024) (77,259)
Finance costs Wi5E R 8 (26,474) (29,510)
Profit/(loss) before taxation MELRT 2T (E518) 9 21,101 (263,158)
Income tax (expense)/credit FTis®i () & 11 (2,819) 6,767
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International Entertainment Corporation

B IRRE AR A A

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SEEHERER

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE T _=F N NA=1HIFE

Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2023 2022
BZE HE
—=E-= —ZF=-=
NA=1+H ~NA=1H
LHFE 1EFE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
HtaF F#&xT FHT
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to RARHEAE AEEERN
the owners of the Company a¥,/ (E8) 18,282 (256,391)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that will T~ EFHEEBZHR 2
not be reclassified to profit or loss: Hib2mUzs(E1E) :
— Remeasurement of defined benefit —EFFERATRAEMT
obligations 307 517
— Exchange differences arising on —HRERINEEREE Y
translation of presentation currency PE N E%R (7,528) (139,837)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year ANA &1 #A AEIEER
attributable to the owners of the Company 2EWE(BR) B8 11,061 (395,711)
HK Cents HK Cents
Al AL
Earnings/(loss) per share attributable to RAGHEA AEIEER
the owners of the Company BF,(EE)
Basic YN 13 1.34 (18.73)
Diluted e 13 1.34 (18.73)
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International Entertainment Corporation BIFRIRZ475 R A &)

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MR R R

At 30 June 2023
R-ZFE—_=F HA=+H

30 June 2023 30 June 2022
—EB-=F —TE-CF
ANA=1H ~NA=1+H
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
HfaF F#&x FHIT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EMENE E
Property, plant and equipment M WE MR 14 141,409 162,453
Investment properties WEMZE 15 989,000 993,000
Loan receivables FM&%%}( 16 63,516 63,967
Interest in associates N NCIR 17 42,479 43917
Right-of-use assets ﬁ AEEE 18 26,842 31,442
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments — H{th JEUTFKTE - 184 K
TR FRIE 21 32,464 15,351
1,295,710 1,310,130
Current assets MEVEE
Inventories FE 1,152 1,242
Tax recoverable Al Y [B] 7 18 22 60,399 =
Trade receivables JEURBRTE 20 14,340 12,981
Contract assets BEHEE 23(a) 545 224
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments  E ith fEUFRIE ~ 124 &
TR IR 21 27,420 28,966
Financial assets at fair value through BAVFEFTABECCREE
profit or loss 5,302 8,212
Amounts due from associates JE Uk B 2 N B FNIE 908 917
Bank balances and cash WRITHEGERIRS 34(q) 492,451 512,104
602,517 564,646
Total assets BERE 1,898,227 1,874,776
Current liabilities MENEE
Trade payables FERTERIE 24 1,920 2,088
Other payables and accrued charges HitENFIBNETE R 24 47,625 30,319
Promissory notes 7¥< HEE 29 416,312 400,300
Contract liabilities aHaR 23(b) 1,493 184
Bank borrowings RITEE 30 - 31216
Lease liabilities HEAE 18 2,742 3,501
470,092 467,608
Net current assets mENEEFE 132,425 97,038
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International Entertainment Corporation  BIBRIREEA R A A

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e IR R R

At 30June 2023
R-ZFE—_=F H=+H

30 June 2023 30 June 2022
—E_=F —E-_F
~NA=1+H ~NA=1H
Notes HK$’000 HKS$'000
HfaF T FHIT
Non-current liabilities IERBEE
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFRIERE 25 135,719 131,829
Other liabilities HEMmAaE 1,249 890
Lease liabilities HEAE 18 32,560 35,553
Convertible bond AR ES 31 51,648 42,998
221,176 211,270
NET ASSETS EEFE 1,206,959 1,195,898
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ~ ZNA Tl A A B1E#E 2
Share capital A% A 27 1,369,157 1,369,157
Share premium and reserves B 19 (B & (162,198) (173,259)
TOTAL EQUITY A 1,206,959 1,195,898

The financial statements on pages 142 to 266 were approved by the Board ~ B E 142 F 266 B Z MIBHMKREN T _=F 1

of Directors on 28 September 2023 and were signed on its behalf by: AZ+N \BEESgiE WHTIIESKRES
2
Mr. HO Wong Meng Mr. Aurelio Jr. Dizon TABLANTE
HO Wong Meng 54 Aurelio Jr. Dizon TABLANTE £ 4
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
e s
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International Entertainment Corporation

B IRRE AR A A

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MEERBEX

For the year ended 30 June 2023

BE—T = HA=1THIFEZ
Attributable to owners of the Company
RATRE AL
Share-based
Share Share Merger Other Exchange ~ compensation Retained
capital premium reserve reserves reserves reserve profits Total
HDRBRER
A& REE AHRE Hftiate EifE < RERE REEH &5
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TR TAL TR AL T TAL AL TAL
(Notea) (Noteb) (Notec)
(Hi#a) (Histn) (W)
At T July 2021 “Z--%+A-H 1369157 170,289 53022 (112,683) (192375) 5433 298,766 1,591,609
Loss for the year FRER = = = = = = (256391) (256,391)
Remeasurement of defined henefit obligations i%ﬁﬁ;?\i@% & = = = = = = 517 517
Exchange differences arising on translation of BERZIEREE ERER
presentation currency = = = = (139837) = - (139837)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FR2EFRLE = = = = (139837) = (255874) (395711)
At30 June 2022 —F-—#5xA=1H 1,369,157 170,289 53022 (112,683) (332212 5433 4289 1,195,898
Profit for the year ERRF - - - - - - 18,282 18,282
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations ~ EFTEtERTERFIEL - - - - - - 307 307
Exchange differences arising on translation of BERZIEHRELE ERER
presentation currency - - - - (7,528) - - (7,528)
Total comprehensive income for the year FR2EkESE - - - - (7,528) - 18,589 11,061
At30 June 2023 R=Z-=#xA=1H 1,369,157 170,289 53,022 (112,683) (339,740) 5433 61,481 1,206,959
(a) Merger reserve of the Group represents the difference between the share capital ~ (a) REBAFHHEEABHEBEEGR AT (AARME
and share premium of Cyber On-Air Multimedia Limited whose shares were KRR GRIR) Z BA RN % EEHAQRRIES
exchanged for the Company's shares and the nominal amount of share capital EEAEMBETRACZEEME R Z5 - AlFEISH
issued by the Company pursuant to the group reorganisation. Cyber On-Air BERAIENEBE_ZENFE=-ZA=Z1+—HLEE
Multimedia Limited was disposed of during the year ended 31 March 2008. HE o
(b)  The other reserves represent net effect of discount on acquisition of subsidiaries  (b) HEpEEEREE2 ST N\F=ZA=+—HBE=Z
and premium on acquisition of additional interest in subsidiaries from a subsidiary —+tF=A=1+—BIEFESFRMERFNEIARZ
of the then intermediate parent arising during the year ended 31 March 2008 and —XHBRARIKEENB A T]ZEZ%E’““&HW%W%’D\
31 March 2017 respectively. RAIRBIMEREA RB 2 FHE
(0 Share-based compensation reserve comprises the value of the unexercised share () AR RER 2 M E R ERIEREM 317 S ARG

option granted by the Company recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for share-based payments in Note 3.17.
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International Entertainment Corporation  BIBRIREEA R A A

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERERER

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE T _=F N NA=1HIFE

Year ended Year ended
30 June 2023 30 June 2022
BZE HE
—ZF—= —E-—F
~BA=1H NA=1H
IEFE IFFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&T FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES e ERED
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRERI&F(E518) 21,101 (263,158)
Adjustments for: B NFITEE EH A
Interest income FILEUA (10,206) (4,038)
Interest expenses FERXZ 26,474 29,510
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts for JE WS AR TE 2 B qth FE kIR 2
trade and other receivables, net RIBRBEFEE 3,406 1,735
Change in fair value of financial assets at T§@$T§§ﬂ')\?§ﬁézf£ﬁﬂ‘1§§
fair value through profit or loss N EEE 3,127 40,949
Change in fair value of financial liabilities at RATEFABR z2RAE
fair value through profit or loss NEEE 4,258 (3176)
Change in fair value of investment properties REMELNTEES (2,962) 120,731
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment Yz - BB RERETE 36,231 45,039
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEERE 4,344 4,645
Share of loss of associates Db E N R EE 1,058 6,445
Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss bE N (Was) BB F R (1,653) 17,968
Operating cash flows before movements in RETBEESFHA 2 KLERE
working capital mE 85,178 (3,350)
Decrease in inventories FERL 80 18
Increase in trade receivables FEUL BRI L N (3,865) (9,865)
(Increase)/decrease in other receivables, HhEWEIE - ke RIENFIE
deposits and prepayments (), B (97,268) 6,120
Decrease in amounts due from associates JE W B 4 R B SRIERL = 2,192
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables FERBRIB OB, /1 m (151) 526
Increase in other payables and accrued charges EoAth FE A 3RIB R FERT B FR4E N 22,683 3,596
Cash generated from/(used in) operating activities JRHE, (FIR) K& EH 2R & 6,657 (763)
Income taxes paid EFTSE = =
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN) BB/ (AR REEB 2R FHE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 6,657 (763)
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International Entertainment Corporation BB IREEA R A A

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GEHTRER

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE T = NA=1HIFE

Year ended Year ended
30 June 2023 30 June 2022
BZE Bz
—E_= —=E_—
ANA=T1H NA=TH
LHEFE IEFE
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
HtaF FET T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES KEEE
Interest received B U A 8,456 3177
Additions to property, plant and equipment REWIE « BE MR E (1,235) (3625)
Proceed from disposal of financial assets at ~ HER AT EF ABIRE Z /b
fair value through profit and loss BEZFSHEIA = 718
Repayments of loan receivable from fhE N EMEREWE R
an associate = 5,645
Increase in deposits for property, ME - B RFEREIEM
plant and equipment - (228)
Additions to investment properties RBEREME - (1,837)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM INVESTING RERERDHEFHA
ACTIVITIES 7,221 3,850
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BT 34(b)
Interest paid ERFLE (247) (3,889)
Repayment of bank borrowings RITEECER (30,619) (19,072)
Repayment of lease liabilities HEBBCENR (6,973) (7,505)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES ~ AR RV EEB) 2 IR & )F 58 (37,839) (30,466)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND RekReEEMRD FHE
CASH EQUIVALENTS (23,961) (27,379)
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE bR EB) 2 B
RATE CHANGES 4,308 (25,459)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT RENZRERBEEZED
BEGINNING OF YEAR 512,104 564,942
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT REKZB e RReEED
END OF YEAR
represented by bank balances and cash LASRTT & RIRE 5 34(a) 492,451 512,104
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International Entertainment Corporation  BIBRIREEA R A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL

International Entertainment Corporation was incorporated in the
Cayman Islands with limited liability and its shares are listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The registered office of the Company is located at
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-
1111, Cayman Islands. The principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong is Units 2109-10, 21st Floor, Wing On
House, No. 71 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group were
principally involved in hotel operations, leasing of properties
equipped with entertainment equipment at the hotel complex of
the Group in Metro Manila in the Republic of the Philippines (the
“Philippines”) to Philippine Amusement and Gaming Corporation
(“PAGCOR’) and participation in the gaming operation (the “Hotel
Operation Business” and “Gaming Operation Business”) and live
poker events (the “Live Events Business”) in Macau.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs

Amendments to HKAS 16 Proceeds before Intended Use
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework
Amendments to HKFRS 1, Annual Improvements to
HKFRS 9, HKFRS 16 and HKFRSs 2018-2020
HKAS 41

The directors are of the opinion that none of these new or
revised HKFRSs has a material impact on the Group's results
and financial position for the current or prior period.

A MR MR

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE T _=F N NA=1HIFE

—AREIR

BIIREER AR RRFAERESTMK 2
BRAT - HRMNBEBHEXIFMERA
Bl ([B3RPR]) R BT o KRB MR EE
Z b HE A Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands « R AR BB EEZLEME 2R
BAREER 71 Pk LR E AR E 21 2109-

10%F

ARFRREEERAF - AEEEXEXE
1% A8 )5 %38 « [ Philippine Amusement and
Gaming Corporation ([ PAGCOR ) i 1 A SE £
EHMNE([FFRE ) SRR 2 ALH
BIERATHE NRBIRER B 2 MET 2R
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International Entertainment Corporation BB IREEA R A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE T = NA=1HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) Potential impact arising on HKFRSs not yet
effective

The following new or revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to
the Group’s operations, have been issued but are not yet
effective and have not been early adopted by the Group.

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contract!
Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current®

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies!

and HKFRS Practice
Statements 2

Amendments to HKAS8  Definition of Accounting
Estimates'

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax Related to Assets
and Liabilities Arising from
a Single Transaction'

HK Interpretation 5 (2020)  Presentation of Financial
Statements — Classification by
the Borrower of a Term Loan
that Contains a Repayment
on Demand Clause?

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.
2 The amendments shall be applied prospectively to the sale or
contribution of assets occurring in annual periods beginning on or

after a date to be determined.
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.

150 Annual Report &7 2022/23

2. HEMEBUBREEN (FEMK
WEED L) @)

(b)

HARERZEBUBREELZE

ERE

AEEY EEFRAATERMER

RER  AJEEAKRELERRZH

Al HEIER] BB B HRE LR -

ERUMBREEAE VR RRAA

ERUBASERE RN REFRABELRFR

BRI EF B RELRCAZEE

CHE) HELTE?

BRGENS R (BIX) RABIBARYR
R’

EREH AR 1RR SHEROKE

BRMBREEANEHRS

ESVACHEY

SRR ERTACHE I -FiREhe

BRGSENE R (BIX) BE-RBEL VAR
REERRNET
HA

Fois st (CT-FF) MBERNZS -
RESRENXEE
BREERER

BRABDDE

BEMBREENZ 6K ERADRSTH

(%) HERR

T RZEo=F-A-ARZERKNE
R AR R o

D RS EEAIE M A A B B
HEBIAMF MR A AR ER
XA -

© R-ToOE- A AR EBRNE
FEHAR R o



International Entertainment Corporation  BIBRIREEA R A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b)

Potential impact arising on HKFRSs not yet
effective (Continued)

Those new/revised HKFRSs that might have material impact
on the Group's financial statements are set out below:

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current and HK Interpretation 5
(2020), Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause

The amendments clarify that the classification of liabilities as
current or non-current is based on rights that are in existence
at the end of the reporting period, specify that classification is
unaffected by expectations about whether an entity will
exercise its right to defer settlement of a liability and explain
that rights are in existence if covenants are complied with at
the end of the reporting period. The amendments also
introduce a definition of ‘settlement’ to make clear that
settlement refers to the transfer to the counterparty of cash,
equity instruments, other assets or services.

HK Int 5 (2020) was revised as a consequence of the
Amendments to HKAS 1 issued in August 2020. The revision to
HK Int 5 (2020) updates the wordings in the interpretation to
align with the Amendments to HKAS 1 with no change in
conclusion and do not change the existing requirements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2, Disclosure of Accounting Policies

The amendments change the requirements in HKAS 1 with
regard to disclosure of accounting policies. The amendments
replace all instances of the term ’significant accounting
policies” with ‘material accounting policy information’.
Accounting policy information is material if, when considered
together with other information included in an entity’s
financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to
influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements.
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

2.

(b)

Potential impact arising on HKFRSs not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2, Disclosure of Accounting Policies
(Continued)

The supporting paragraphs in HKAS 1 are also amended to
clarify that accounting policy information that relates to
immaterial transactions, other events or conditions is
immaterial and need not be disclosed. Accounting policy
information may be material because of the nature of the
related transactions, other events or conditions, even if the
amounts are immaterial. However, not all accounting policy
information relating to material transactions, other events or
conditions is itself material.

Guidance and examples have been developed to explain and
demonstrate the application of the ‘four-step materiality
process’ described in HKFRS Practice Statement 2.

Amendments to HKAS 8, Definition of Accounting
Estimates

The amendments introduce a new definition for accounting
estimates: clarifying that they are monetary amounts in the
financial statements that are subject to measurement
uncertainty. The amendments also clarify the relationship
between accounting policies and accounting estimates by
specifying that a company develops an accounting estimate
to achieve the objective set out by an accounting policy.

Amendments to 12, Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction

Amendments to HKAS 12 require entity to recognise deferred
tax on particular transactions that, on initial recognition, give
rise to equal amounts of taxable and deductible temporary
differences. The proposed amendments will typically
apply to transactions such as leases for the lessee and
decommissioning obligations. According to the amended
guidance, a temporary difference that arises on initial
recognition of an asset or liability is not subject to the initial
recognition exemption if that transaction gave rise to equal
amounts of taxable and deductible temporary differences.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE T _=F N NA=1HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BRMNEEBHHEREER (TFBME
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) WEER)) (&)
(b) Potential impact arising on HKFRSs not yet (b) MEAREMZEBUBREER 2B
effective (Continued) e 236 ),
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sale or BB HREEREI10EREEEST
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its ERZE285 (155T7)  REZHEE
Associate or Joint Venture ENAREErF¥ZHZEEHES
zE

The amendments clarify with situations where there is a sale ZEBEI AR E EEERE N A
or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate SEELECRACEELREIETEN
or joint venture. When the transaction with an associate or B EHEEAEREARNEZS A
joint venture that is accounted for using the equity method, AR EEDNEETIHE  BEXY
any gains or losses resulting from the loss of control of a TBE EB M E 2 7] #1251 i &=
subsidiary that does not contain a business are recognised in EMER RSB EENIFEBIEE
the profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ EEZBENARNEECENERS
interests in that associate or joint venture. Similarly, any gains RAEEZRPER - RN BEma
or losses resulting from the remeasurement of retained MEBAR(BKAKESNARINAZSDE)
interest in any former subsidiary (that has become an associate MRBEREZAFTEENTEMESE
or a joint venture) to fair value are recognised in the profit or RER S B - EAFEEBIEE
loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in ERFBMERNRNEELENERR
the new associate or joint venture. PRI-FEZEFER o
The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the RNARIESTEN - BEER LMEET
application of the amendments above in the future will have AT EHYPKEHRREXNEATE

material impact on the financial statements.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEXEHER
3.1 Statement of compliance 3.1 EHREH

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in RETBBRREBEBEESSMAE
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting ([BERESstmAS ) BH2MAER
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (‘"HKASs") and (CEAUSREER]) - (BFEGHER])
Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to as the ([EREHER D ERB(TXHAREIE
"HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified BB EZER ) AR EBCARIEGD)
Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and the disclosure ZHEBERTHEE - I 8 BH®R
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In RBEFEETCHFEAS ETRAN( E
addition, the consolidated financial statements include TRADBVEZEBRKE

applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”).
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)
3.

—Z

=

—=FANHA=THIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2

3.3

34

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost basis except for investment properties
and certain financial instruments, which are measured at fair
value, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30
June 2023 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”) and the Group's interest
in associates.

Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of the Company is Philippine Peso
("Peso”), the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the Company’s major subsidiaries operate. The
consolidated financial statements of the Group are presented
in Hong Kong Dollars (‘"HK$") as the directors of the Company
(the "Directors”) consider that it is an appropriate
presentation for a company listed in Hong Kong and for the
convenience of the shareholders of the Company.

Business combination and basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Group. Inter-company transactions and
balances between group companies together with unrealised
profits are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of impairment on
the asset transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the dates of acquisition or up to
the dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with
those used by other members of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE T _=F N NA=1HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEXRGHBE®)
(Continued)

34 EBEHREEREEE(E)

3.4 Business combination and basis of consolidation

(Continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for using
the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured
at the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of assets
transferred, liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by
the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed are principally measured at acquisition-date
fair value. The Group's previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss. The
Group may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, to
measure the non-controlling interests that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary either at fair value or at
the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other non-controlling interests are measured at fair
value unless another measurement basis is required by
HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed unless
they are incurred in issuing equity instruments in which case
the costs are deducted from equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquired entity, and
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in
the acquired entity over the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are
less than the fair value of the identifiable net assets of the
business acquired, the difference is recognised directly in
profit or loss as “gain on bargain purchase”.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at acquisition-date fair value. Subsequent
adjustments to consideration are recognised against goodwill
only to the extent that they arise from new information
obtained within the measurement period (@ maximum of 12
months from the acquisition date) about the fair value at the
acquisition date. All other subsequent adjustments to
contingent consideration classified as an asset or a liability are
recognised in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

34

3.5

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss
on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interest.
Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the
same manner as would be required if the relevant assets or
liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those interests at
initial recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s share of
subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is
attributed to such non-controlling interests even if this results
in those non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able to
exercise control. The Company controls an investee if all three
of the following elements are present: power over the
investee, exposure, or rights, to variable returns from the
investee, and the ability to use its power to affect those
variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any of
these elements of control.

In the Company's statement of financial position, investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment loss, if any.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.5

3.6

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Change in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group's relevant components of
equity including reserves and the non-controlling interests are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted after re-attribution
of the relevant equity component, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor a joint
arrangement. Significant influence is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but not control or joint control over those policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and thereafter,
their carrying amount are adjusted for the Group's share of the
post-acquisition change in the associates’ net assets except
that losses in excess of the Group's interest in the associate are
not recognised unless there is an obligation to make good
those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the Group
and its associates are recognised only to the extent of
unrelated investors’ interests in the associate. The investor's
share in the associate’s profits and losses resulting from these
transactions is eliminated against the carrying value of the
associate. Where unrealised losses provide evidence of
impairment of the asset transferred they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

3. EXT

3.5

3.6
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.

3.6

3.7

Associates (Continued)

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value of the
Group’s share of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and included in
the carrying amount of the associate. Where there is objective
evidence that the investment in an associate has been
impaired, the carrying amount of the investment is tested for
impairment in the same way as other non-financial assets.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss during the financial
period in which they are incurred.
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXEHEE#®)
(Continued)

3.7 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 3.7 ¥ - BERREE)

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to write
off their cost net of expected residual value over their
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The useful lives,
residual value and depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
The useful lives are as follows:

Buildings Over the shorter of the remaining
term of the land leases on which
the buildings are located, or
their estimated useful lives

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the remaining
term of the lease or land leases
on which the buildings are
located, or their estimated

useful lives
Machinery 3-15years
Furniture, fixtures and 3-15 years
equipment
Entertainment equipment 5-15 years
Computer hardware 3-5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sale proceeds
and its carrying amount, and is recognised in profit or loss on
disposal.
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BE T _=F N NA=1THIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
3.8 Investment property

3.9

Investment property is property held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation. Investment property is initially measured
at cost, including any directly attributable expenditure and
borrowing costs incurred during the construction period and
up to the date of completion of construction for the
investment properties. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment property is measured at its fair value. The Group’s
property interest held under operating leases to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation purposes is classified and accounted
for as investment property and is measured using the fair
value model. Gain or loss arising from change in the fair value
of investment property are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.

Leases
The Group as a lessee

All leases are required to be capitalised in the statement of
financial position as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, but
accounting policy choices exist for an entity to choose not to
capitalise (i) leases which are short-term leases and/or (ii)
leases for which the underlying asset is of low-value. The
Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for low-value assets and leases for which at the
commencement date have a lease term of less than 12
months. The lease payments associated with those leases
have been expensed on straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.9 Lease (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset is initially recognised at cost and would
comprise:

(i) the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability (see below for the accounting policy to account
for lease liability);

(i)  any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

(i) anyinitial direct costs incurred by the lessee; and

(iv) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in
dismantling and removing the underlying asset to the
condition required by the terms and conditions of the
lease, unless those costs are incurred to produce
inventories.

Except for right-of-use asset that meets the definition of an
investment property carried at fair value (see Note 3.8), the
Group measures the right-of-use assets applying a cost model.
Under the cost model, the Group measures the right-to-use at
cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liability
other than adjustments to lease liability resulting from
Covid19-related rent concessions in which the Group applied
the practical expedient.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.9 Lease (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value of the
lease payments that are not paid at the date of
commencement of the lease. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that
rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Group uses the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use the underlying
asset during the lease term that are not paid at the
commencement date of the lease are considered to be lease
payments:

(i) fixed lease payments less any lease incentives
receivable;

(i) variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at
commencement date;

(i) amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees;

(iv) exercise price of a purchase option, if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

(v)  payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to
terminate the lease.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXgHEBEK#E)

(Continued)

39 HE®#)

3.9 Lease (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liability (Continued)

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group measures
the lease liability by:

(i) increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the
lease liability;

(i) reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payments made; and

(i) remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any
reassessment or lease modification, or to reflect revised
in-substance fixed lease payments.

When the Group revises its estimate of the term of any lease
(because, for example, it re-assesses the probability of a lessee
extension or termination option being exercised), it adjusts
the carrying amount of the lease liability to reflect the
payments to make over the revised term, which are
discounted using a revised discount rate. The carrying value of
lease liabilities is similarly revised when the variable element of
future lease payments dependent on a rate or index is revised,
except the discount rate remains unchanged. In both cases,
an equivalent adjustment is made to the carrying value of the
right-of-use asset, with the revised carrying amount being
amortised over the remaining (revised) lease term. If the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is adjusted to zero,
any further reduction is recognised in profit or loss.

FEBEREBA ()

HEREHE)

RFt AR AEESGER T
A EHEARE -

() EMEEEARKREEAEGEZH

B
(i) RAOEREENRBMEELZEE
30 ®

(i) EFTETEMREEARRETAERS
KHEEEBN  ARREEETHE
ENRZERT -

EAEEER HEEREMNGEEE
(Bln - R EEFFEAE AT
RIbEFBRETEOARENE)  AleH
BEHEREMNEREE  ARBRRERE
FTHARAEH B 3R - XA EER]
RO EBEIR - EHURN A R HIFHE
REBE N R & B D BRI
HEABNREEMNERLUEET  #
MRERGEFIAE - EMEBRT Y
EREEENREEFELASIE
REEFTREERS T (BER)BHRA
B MEMABEENRAERERS
T AR B R REREME — IR -

Annual Report %%2022/23 163



International Entertainment Corporation BB IREEA R A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B R MR

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE T = NA=1HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.9 Lease (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liability (Continued)

When the Group renegotiates the contractual terms of a lease
with the lessor, if the renegotiation results in one or more
additional assets being leased for an amount commensurate
with the standalone price for the additional rights-of-use
obtained, the modification is accounted for as a separate lease,
in all other cases, where the renegotiated increases the scope
of the lease (whether that is an extension to the lease term, or
one or more additional assets being leased), the lease liability
is remeasured using the discount rate applicable on the
modification date, with the right-of-use asset being adjusted
by the same amount. With the exception to which the
practical expedient for Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
applies, if the renegotiation results in a decrease in the scope
of the lease, both the carrying amount of the lease liability and
right-of-use asset are reduced by the same proportion to
reflect the partial or full termination of the lease with any
difference recognised in profit or loss. The lease liability is then
further adjusted to ensure its carrying amount reflects the
amount of the renegotiated payments over the renegotiated
term, with the modified lease payments discounted at the rate
applicable on the modification date and the right-of-use asset
is adjusted by the same amount.

The Group as a lessor

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the leased assets to the lessee. All other leases
are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised as an expense on the straight-line
basis over the lease term.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEXRGHBE®)
(Continued)

39 HE#)

3.9 Lease (Continued)

The Group as a lessor (Continued)

Any changes in the scope of the consideration for a lease that
was not part of the original terms and conditions of the lease
are accounted for as lease modifications. The Group accounts
for a modification to an operating lease as a new lease from
the effective date of the modification, recognising the
remaining lease payments as income on a either a straight-
line basis or another systematic basis over the remaining lease
term.

3.10 Financial instruments

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a
significant financing component) is initially measured at fair
value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL"), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant
financing component is initially measured at the transaction
price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in
their entirely when determining whether their cash flows are
solely payment of principal and interest.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EAXEHEER®)
(Continued)

3.10 2@ I B (&)

3.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on
the Group’s business model for managing the asset and the
cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are two
measurement categories into which the Group classifies its
debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised
cost. Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest rate method. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on derecognition is
recognised in profit or loss.

FVTPL: Financial assets at FVTPL include financial assets held
for trading, financial assets designated upon initial recognition
at FVTPL, or financial assets mandatorily required to be
measured at fair value. Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely payments
of principal and interest are classified and measured at FVTPL,
irrespective of the business model. Notwithstanding the
criteria for debt instruments to be classified at amortised cost
or at FVOCI, as described above, debt instruments may be
designated at FVTPL on initial recognition if doing so
eliminates, or significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEXRGHBE®)

(Continued)

3.10 €@ T B (&)

3.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held
for trading, the Group could irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in other
comprehensive income. This election is made on an
investment-by-investment basis. Equity investments at fair
value through other comprehensive income are measured at
fair value. Dividend income are recognised in profit or loss
unless the dividend income clearly represents a recovery of
part of the cost of the investments. Other net gains and losses
are recognised in other comprehensive income and are not
reclassified to profit or loss. All other equity instruments are
classified as FVTPL, whereby changes in fair value, dividends
and interest income are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit
losses (“ECLs") on trade receivables, contract assets and
financial assets measured at amortised cost. The ECLs are
measured on either of the following bases: (1) 12 months
ECLs: these are the ECLs that result from possible default
events within the 12 months after the reporting date; and (2)
lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.
The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the
maximum contractual period over which the Group is exposed
to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
Credit losses are measured as the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted at
an approximation to the assets’ original effective interest rate.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXgHEBK#E)

(Continued)

3.10 2@ I B (&)

3.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances for trade
receivables and contract assets using HKFRS 9 simplified
approach and has calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The
Group has established a provision matrix that is based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are based on the
12-months ECLs. However, when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since origination, the allowance will be
based on the lifetime ECLs.

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of default occurring on the financial
instrument assessed at the reporting date with that assessed
at the date of initial recognition.

In making this reassessment, the Group considers that a
default event occurs when (i) the borrower is unlikely to pay
its credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by
the Group to actions such as realising security (if any is held);
or (ii) the financial asset is 90 days past due. The Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments, the
assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is performed
on either an individual basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics, such as past due status and credit risk ratings.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FTEUR ()

(Continued)

EXE

3.10 €@ T B (&)

3.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

In particular, the following information, but not limited to, is
taken into account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

failure to make payments of principal or interest on their
contractually due dates;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in a
financial instrument’s external or internal credit rating (if
available);

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to meet
its obligation to the Group.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect changes
in the financial instrument’s credit risk since initial recognition.
Any change in the ECL amount is recognised as an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss. The Group recognises an
impairment gain or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a
loss allowance account.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying
amount less loss allowance) of the financial asset. For non
credit-impaired financial assets interest income is calculated
based on the gross carrying amount.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXgHEBK#E)

(Continued)
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3.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Werite-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset, lease receivable
or contract asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is
generally the case when the Group determines that the
debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to
the write-off. Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a reversal of
impairment in profit or loss in the period in which the recovery
occurs.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending on the
purpose for which the liabilities were incurred. Financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially
measured at fair value and financial liabilities at amortised
costs are initially measured at fair value, net of directly
attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade and other
payables, bank borrowings and promissory note are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method. The related interest expense is recognised in
profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the amortisation
process and upon non-substantial modification of financial
liabilities.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEXRGHBE®)

(Continued)
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3.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

Convertible bond

Convertible bond issued by the Group that contain both the
debt and conversion option components are classified
separately into their respective items on initial recognition.
Conversion option that will be settled by the exchange of a
variable amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Company’s own equity instruments is classified
as an embedded derivative liability.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the debt component is
determined using the prevailing market interest of similar
non-convertible debts. Where a contract contains one or more
embedded derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be
designated as a financial liability at fair value through profit or
loss, except where the embedded derivative does not
significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear that separation
of the embedded derivative is prohibited.

In subsequent periods, the debt component of the convertible
bond is carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The embedded derivatives are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise, except for the gains and losses
arising from the Group'’s own credit risk which are presented
in other comprehensive income with no subsequent
reclassification to the statement of profit or loss. The net fair
value gain or loss recognised in the statement of profit or loss
does not include any interest charged on these financial
liabilities.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
bond are allocated to the liability and equity components in
proportion to the allocation of the proceeds. Transaction costs
relating to the equity component are charged directly to
equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the liability portion and
amortised over the period of the convertible bond using the
effective interest method.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXgHEBK#E)

(Continued)

3.10 2@ I B (&)

3.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments
through the expected life of the financial asset or liability, or
where appropriate, a shorter period.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual
rights to the future cash flows in relation to the financial asset
expire or when the financial asset has been transferred and
the transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in accordance
with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments to a
creditor to settle a financial liability in whole or in part as a
result of renegotiating the terms of that liability, the equity
instruments issued are the consideration paid and are
recognised initially and measured at their fair value on the
date the financial liability or part thereof is extinguished. If the
fair value of the equity instruments issued cannot be reliably
measured, the equity instruments are measured to reflect the
fair value of the financial liability extinguished. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability or part
thereof extinguished and the consideration paid is recognised
in profit or loss for the year.
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International Entertainment Corporation  BIBRIREEA R A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition (Continued)

When the Group exchanges with an existing lender one debt
instrument into another one with substantially different terms,
such exchange is accounted for as an extinguishment of the
original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial
liability. Similarly, the Group accounts for substantial
modification of terms of an existing liability or part of it as an
extinguishment of the original financial liability and the
recognition of a new liability. It is assumed that the terms are
substantially different if the discounted present value of the
cash flows under the new terms, including any fees paid net of
any fees received and discounted using the original effective
rate is at least 10 per cent different from the discounted
present value of the remaining cash flows of the original
financial liability. If the modification is not substantial, the
difference between: (1) the carrying amount of the liability
immediately before the modification; and (2) the present value
of the cash flows immediately after modification is recognised
in profit or loss as the modification gain or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs necessary
to make the sale.

3.12 Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.

A MR MR

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE T _=F N NA=1HIFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2023

)
3.

—E-CEAASHALFE

=

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
3.12 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that
apply to the contract, control of the goods or service may be
transferred over time or at a point in time. Control of the
goods or service is transferred over time if the Group's

performance:

provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls

as the Group performs; or

does not create an asset with an alternative use to the
Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time, revenue
is recognised over the period of the contract by reference to
the progress towards complete satisfaction of that
performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a
point in time when the customer obtains control of the goods

or service.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than
one year, revenue is measured at the present value of the
amounts receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
Where the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the Group, revenue
recognised under that contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For contracts where the period between the
payment and the transfer of the promised goods or services is
one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the
effects of a significant financing component, using the

practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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International Entertainment Corporation  BIBRIREEA R A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M HRRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE T _=F N NA=1HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEXRGHBE®)

(Continued)
3.12 WATER (&)

3.12 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Room revenue

Room revenues are recognised over time as the benefits
received and consumed simultaneously by the customer
during the stay in the hotel. The services are charged at a fixed
rate with no significant variable consideration. The Group
recognised revenue in the amount to which the entity has the
right to invoice, which is representative to the value service
being delivered. Invoices are issued upon check out and
payable immediately. No significant financing component
existed.

Food and beverage

The Group provides food and beverages service in the hotel.
The Group recognises revenue in the amount to which the
entity has the right to invoice, which is representative to the
service being delivered. Invoices for food and beverage service
are issued on upon customer check-out and payable
immediately. No significant financing component existed.

Live event income

The Group generates income from organising live event poker
events. The revenue are recognised over time as the benefits
received and consumed simultaneously by the customer. The
Group recognises revenue in the amount to which the entity
has the right to invoice, which is representative to the service
being delivered. Invoices for live poker events are issued on
upon the end of event and payable within 90 days. No
significant financing component existed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2023

)
3.

—EC=FANA=THIEFE
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
3.12 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Other income

Revenues from other hotel services are recognised over time
as the benefits received and consumed simultaneously by the
customer. The services are charged at a fixed rate with no
significant variable consideration. The Group recognised
revenue in the amount to which the entity has the right to
invoice, which is representative to the value of services being

delivered. No significant financing component existed.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues under the effective
interest method using the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset. For financial assets measured at amortised cost that are
not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is applied to the

gross carrying amount of the asset.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of revenue can be

measured reliably).

3.13 Contract assets and liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration
in exchange for services that the Group has transferred to a
customer that is not yet unconditional. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group's unconditional right to consideration,
i.e. only the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due. Contract assets are assessed for ECL in
accordance with the policy set out in Note 3.10 to the financial
statements and are reclassified to receivables when the right

to the consideration was become unconditional.

Contract asset is recognised when the Group recognised
room revenue before begin unconditional entitled to the
consideration under the payment term set out in the contract.
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International Entertainment Corporation  BIBRIREEA R A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M HRRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE T _=F N NA=1HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEXRGHBE®)
(Continued)

3.13 BHEERERE(A)

3.13 Contract assets and liabilities (Continued)

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or
services to a customer for which the Group has received a
consideration (or an amount of consideration that is due) from
the customer. If a customer pays the consideration before the
Group transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract
liability is recognised when the payment is made or the
payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract.

3.14 Income taxes

Income tax charge represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before taxation” as
reported in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income because of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted in the relevant jurisdictions by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

BHABREREFEEEMAREZ
BE - MAKERILREF WRR(E
(HEMNZRESR) - WEPRAE
B EmERBEETEF A MK
1B BURAVEH S SRS SRIRRS (JARR
RBERE)ERAVEE - GNAER
AEERTADBSERSLA

3.14 FRiB5%H

P15 35 32 th 15 B 28 e A< A5 08 SR AR A
B2 A0 o

ENEAE N BIRIZ F BRI A AT E
B E A F B 2 B SR AT HI A
HFAX AR BERBI AN 2 A
B BERTBNEGSEEKER
PO TRR B AT B A | AR o AR ANES
HIRB ERRE NHEAEE B EEEE R
FREBACDEMLER ECEMZH

Szl ey
S

EREMALGAVBERRTEERA
1B BRI (B B 51 B B SR & F B (R AR R
MERGZEERABROEMEM
HYE R ZRRERR o

EEFARE—RUAMBERRRE S
ZHRER EXHEEE—RIUMAE
AR B E R RERR - MDA SRAR AT
BEEUSERTL B MM < %5 Al HURE
RHERSNERZBERARR - IR
R (EBE RN TR ERRARA
NABF BN IR G ZEMBEERA
BREAERZHE UBAHEERAR
AT HER

Annual Report %%2022/23 177



International Entertainment Corporation BB IREEA R A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B R MR

For the year ended 30 June 2023
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXgHEBK#E)

(Continued)

3.14 fifEH (&)

3.14 Income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amounts of deferred tax assets are reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
in the relevant jurisdictions that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

An exception to the general requirement on determining the
appropriate tax rate used in measuring deferred tax amount is
when an investment property is carried at fair value under
HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless the presumption is
rebutted, the deferred tax amounts on these investment
properties are measured using the tax rates that would apply
on sale of these investment properties at their carrying
amounts at the reporting date. The presumption is rebutted
when the investment property is depreciable and is held
within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all the economic benefits embodied in the
property over time, rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXEHEE®
(Continued)
3.15 Foreign currencies 3.15 HpiE

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (i.e. foreign currencies) are recorded in
the respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated at
the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not re-translated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. HKS) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of
each reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in
which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of the exchange reserve (attributed to non-
controlling interests as appropriate).
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.16 Employee benefits

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries and annual leave) after deducting
any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee
benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated
future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in
respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting
date. Any changes in the liabilities’ carrying amounts resulting
from service cost, interest and remeasurements are recognised
in profit or loss except to the extent that another HKFRS
requires or permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset.

Retirement benefit costs in Hong Kong

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for those employees in Hong Kong who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in independently administered funds. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme. Prior to the MPF Scheme being
effective, the Group did not have any pension arrangements
for its employees.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXgHEBEK#E)
(Continued)
3.16 Employee benefits (Continued) 3.16 EEERI (&)
Retirement benefit costs in the Philippines FEEE Z R K F LA

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes
are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contribution. Contributions are
reduced by contributions forfeited by those employees who
leave the schemes prior to vesting fully in the contributions,
where applicable.

For defined benefit schemes, the cost of providing benefits is
determined using the projected unit credit method, with
actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each
annual reporting period. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial
gains and losses, is reflected immediately in the consolidated
statement of financial position with a charge or credit
recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in
which they occur.

Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income
is reflected immediately in retained profits and will not be
reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost is recognised in
profit or loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest
is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of
the period to the net defined benefit obligations or assets.
Retirement benefit costs are categorised as follows:

service cost (including current service cost, past service
cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and
settlements);

net interest expense or income; and

remeasurement.
The Group presents the retirement benefit costs (other than
remeasurement) in profit or loss. Curtailment gains and losses
are accounted for as past service costs.
The retirement benefit obligations recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position represents the
present value of the defined benefit obligations.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXgHEBK#E)

(Continued)

3.17 Share-based payments 317 ARG REBRNFR

Where share options are awarded to employees and others
providing similar services, the fair value of the options at the
date of grant is recognised in profit or loss over the vesting
period with a corresponding increase in the employee share
option reserve within equity. Non-market vesting conditions
are taken into account by adjusting the number of equity
instruments expected to vest at the end of each reporting
period so that, ultimately, the cumulative amount recognised
over the vesting period is based on the number of options
that eventually vest. Market vesting conditions are factored
into the fair value of the options granted. As long as all other
vesting conditions are satisfied, a charge is made irrespective
of whether the market vesting conditions are satisfied. The
cumulative expense is not adjusted for failure to achieve a
market vesting condition.

Where the terms and conditions of options are modified
before they vest, the increase in the fair value of the options,
measured immediately before and after the modification, is
also recognised in profit or loss over the remaining vesting
period.

Where equity instruments are granted to persons other than
employees and others providing similar services, the fair value
of goods or services received is recognised in profit or loss
unless the goods or services qualify for recognition as assets.
When the entity cannot estimate reliably the fair value of
goods or services received, they are indirectly measured by
reference to the fair value of the equity instruments granted. A
corresponding increase in equity is recognised. For cash-
settled share based payments, a liability is recognised at the
fair value of the goods or services received.

When the option is exercised, the amount recognised in the
share-based compensation reserve is transferred to share
premium account. When the option lapses, the amount
recognised in the share-based compensation reserve is
released directly to retained profits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M HRRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE T _=F N NA=1HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEXRGHBE®)
(Continued)

3.18 FERMEERE

3.18 Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-
generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and
then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying amount
of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss
that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is
allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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)
3.

—E_ = FANHA=THIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.18 Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss

is recognised in profit or loss.

3.19 Capitalisation of borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. All other borrowings
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which

they are incurred.

3.20 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount

of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value
of those cash flows (where the effect of time value of money is

material).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR MR

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.20 Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)

3.21

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, the existence of which will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination
which are present obligations at the date of acquisition are
initially recognised at fair value, provided the fair value can be
reliably measured. After their initial recognition at fair value,
such contingent liabilities are recognised at the higher of the
amount initially recognised, less accumulated amortization
where appropriate, and the amount that would be
determined in accordance with HKAS 37.

Related parties
(@)

A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iif)

is a member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Company’s parent.

For the year ended 30 June 2023
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

3.21 Related parties (Continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions apply:

(i)

(if)

(iif)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of the employees of the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a party, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group's parent.
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International Entertainment Corporation  BIBRIREEA R A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.21 Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group'’s accounting policies, the Directors
are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods. The estimates and
assumptions that have significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below:

A MR MR

For the year ended 30 June 2023
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HE T =FNA=1HIFE
4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

The Group estimates the useful lives of its property, plant and
equipment based on the period over which the assets are expected
to be utilised by the Group. The Group reviews their estimated useful
lives based on factors that include technological changes, the
existing circumstances, prospective economic utilisation as well as
physical condition of the assets on a regular basis. The results of the
operations of the Group could be affected by changes in these
estimates brought about by the changes in the factors mentioned.
The management of the Group regularly reviews these factors in
determining the estimated useful lives of the assets.

A significant change in the expected pattern of consumption of the
future economic benefits embodied in these assets would result in a
change to the estimated useful lives to reflect the changed pattern.
A reduction in the estimated useful lives of the assets would
decrease the depreciation period of the assets and increase
depreciation provided to write off the cost of assets, while an
increase in the estimated useful lives of the assets, opposite impact
on depreciation period and depreciation would be resulted.

Deferred tax assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused tax losses
arising from certain companies within the Group that are suffering
from losses for years amounted to approximately HK$149,243,000
(2022: HK$142,539,000) (details disclosed in Note 25). No deferred tax
assets have been recognised and offset against deferred tax liabilities
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams from these
companies within the Group. The unused tax losses not recognised
may be crystallised if the actual future profits generated are more
than expected.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax liability on the undistributed profits earned by the
subsidiaries of the Company in the Philippines have been accrued at
a tax rate of 15% on the expected dividend stream of not less than
70 % of the yearly profit in both years which is determined after
taking into consideration of the current dividend policy of the
relevant subsidiaries of the Company.

The dividend policy is subject to the financial and market conditions,
the availability of funding and reserves available for distribution of
relevant subsidiaries of the Company in the Philippines. If the
dividend policy of the relevant subsidiaries of the Company has
changed, the deferred tax in relation to withholding tax of
undistributed earnings would be changed accordingly.

Investment properties

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs that are not
based on observable market data to estimate the fair value of
investment properties. Note 15 provides detailed information about
the valuation techniques, inputs and key assumptions used in the
determination of the fair value of investment properties. The carrying
amount of investment properties as at 30 June 2023 was
HK$989,000,000 (2022: HK$993,000,000) as set out in Note 15.
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—E_ = FANHA=THIEFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. The
recoverable amounts have been determined based on the higher of
value-in-use calculations or fair value less costs of disposal
calculations. The calculations require the use of judgements and
estimates. Management judgement is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has
occurred that may indicate that the related asset values may not be
recoverable; (i) whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount, being the higher of fair value
less costs of disposal and value-in-use calculations; (iii) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in assessing the
recoverable amount, including cash flow projections, discount rates
etc. ; and (iv) appropriate determination of cash generating units and
allocation of related expected future cashflows; Changing the
assumptions selected and judgements made by management in
assessing impairment, including the discount rates or the growth
rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could affect the net
present value used in the impairment test and as a result affect the
Group's financial position and results of operations.

A more detailed information in relation to the impairment
assessment of these assets are disclosed in Note 14.

Businesses recovery from COVID-19

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the directors of
the Company consider the hotel and casino business has been
under recovery from COVID-19 since the Philippines government
reopened the border to foreigners from February 2022. Management
has been closely monitoring the recovery of hotel and casino
business and considered that, save as disclosed, there is no other
matters that would result in a significant adverse impact on the
Group’s results and financial position as at the reporting date as
result of the COVID-19.

Taxation

Certain subsidiary of the Company operating in the Philippines
currently has significant tax disputes with Bureau of Internal Revenue
in the Philippines (“BIR"). The ultimate outcome of the tax disputes
cannot be presently determined. The estimate of potential additional
tax liabilities of the Group in respect of those tax disputes as at 30
June 2023 was approximately HK$1,080,000,000. The details are set
outin note 11.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT REPORTING
Reportable segments

The Group determines its operating segments based on the reports
reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker that are used to
make strategic decisions. The chief operating decision-maker has
been identified as the executive directors of the Company.

An operating segment is a component of the Group that is engaged
in business activities from which the Group may earn revenue and
incur expenses, and is identified on the basis of the internal
management reporting information that is provided to and regularly
reviewed by the Group's directors in order to allocate resources and
assess performance of the segment.

The executive directors have determined that the Group has the
following reportable segments:

—  the "Hotel Operation” segment represents the operation of
hotel business in the Philippines;

— the “Gaming Operation” segment represents leasing of
investment properties equipped with entertainment
equipment to PAGCOR and participation in the gaming
operation;

—  the "Live Events” segment represents the operation of live
poker events business.
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
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SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

5.

(a)

Business segment

Segment information about these reportable segments is

presented below:

Year ended 30 June 2023 BE-_Z-_=FX"A=1+HLEE
Hotel Gaming Live
Operation Operation Events Consolidated
BEEE BREE RigEE o)
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TET TET THET TERT
Revenue — external WA — MR 73,677 133,542 - 207,219
Segment results NEEE (13,511) 74,247 (411) 60,325
Unallocated other income AABEMEA 8,427
Exchange gain fE 5 Uz 1,920
Change in fair value of financial BATER AR
assets at fair value through ([BDEEFAER])
profit or loss ("FVTPL’) JERHEENTERS (3,127)
Change in fair value of BATEGFABRL
financial liabilities at FVTPL CREENTEES (4,258)
Share of loss of associates DGEE N EBE (1,058)
Auditor’s remuneration ZER I & (1,730)
Legal and professional fees REIES 3= (4,378)
Salaries and allowances e ke (9,885)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ {FFIEEEE (1,003)
Finance costs VBER (22,739)
Unallocated expenses AOBHZ (1,393)
Profit before taxation for the year £ RIBR Bt AT K 21,101
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SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(@) Business segment (Continued)

At 30 June 2023

ASSETS
Segment assets
Unallocated assets
Bank balances and cash
Financial assets at FVTPL

Interest in associates
Others

Consolidated total assets

LIABILITIES

Segment liabilities

Unallocated liabilities
Promissory notes
Convertible bond
Others

Consolidated total liabilities

BE
NEEE
AOBEE
RiTEFLRASE
BAFER ABRm®
ZEREE
REE D E 2 s
Hit

afE
NEAE

ADERAE
AR
AR &S
Hit
e R fEa

B

/

it
!

A MR MR

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE T _=F N NA=1HIFE
5. EBERE (&)
(@ =Ko (E)
R-ZBZ=fFXA=*1H

Hotel Gaming Live
Operation Operation Events Consolidated
EIEEE BREE REED Fe)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THEx THEx FTEx
285,369 1,222,115 16,781 1,524,265
320,753
5,302
42,479
5,428
1,898,227
65,368 143,444 2,202 211,014
416,312
51,648
12,294
691,268

Annual Report % 2022/23 193



International Entertainment Corporation

B RAR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B R MR

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE T _=F N NA=1THIEFE

SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

5.

(a)

Business segment (Continued)

Other information

Year ended 30 June 2023

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Depreciation of
right-of-use assets
Addition to property,
plant and equipment
Provision for expected
credit losses
Change in fair value of
investment properties
Change in fair value of
financial assets at FVTPL
Change in fair value of
financial liabilities at FVTPL
Share of loss of associates
Interest income
Income tax expense/(credit)

0% BERAANE
ERRAENE
FENE  BERES
BREEERER
BENEZ DTES

BRFEAREZ
SRAENTEE
BAFEFAREZ
SRABRATERD
HMEBER B
MEBA
Friagims/ (B%)

Hotel
Operation
BEEE
HK$'000
TER

24,954

2,986

4,015

2,407

(52)
3,040

5. ERERE#®)
¥R &)

(a)

Gaming
Operation
BREE
HK$000
T

11,272

355

12,588

459

(2,962)

(2,149)
(221)

HttEH

BE-—Z-_=FXA=1+HLEFE

Live
Events
RSED
HK$'000
TET

Unallocated Consolidated

KAAE )
HK$'000 HK$'000
TRR TRR
5 36,231
1,003 4,344
7 16,610
540 3,406
- (2,962)
3,127 3,127
4,258 4,258
1,058 1,058
(8,005) (10,206)
- 2,819
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE T _=F N NA=1HIFE

Annual Report %% 2022/23

5. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 5. SERERE ()
(a) Business segment (Continued) (a) EBDIB(E)
Year ended 30 June 2022 BE-E-_—_FAA=1+THLEE
Hotel Gaming Live

Operation Operation Events  Consolidated

BIE&E BreaE BRI EE e

HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET FHET FHET

Revenue — external WA — SR 32,633 52,892 = 85,525

Segment results NEEE (47,154) (101,476) (929) (149,559)

Unallocated other income KOBE MU A 792

Exchange gains P 5 e (24,829
Change in fair value of BATEGARRZ

financial assets at FVTPL TREENTEE (40,949)
Change in fair value of BRATEFARRZ

financial liabilities at FVTPL SRAEATEE 3,176

Share of loss of associates D& N R R (6,445)

Auditor's remuneration SR B & (1,846)

Legal and professional fees FENEEE (4,408)

Salaries and allowances ¥ Moegh (13,030)

Depreciation of right-of-use assets & FAtE & E T & (1,003)

Finance costs &R (21,678)

Unallocated expenses AOMAE (3379

Loss before taxation for the year 4 R i i 518 (263,158)
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For the year ended 30 June 2023

o

= FNH=1HILFE

5. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(a)

Business segment (Continued)

At 30 June 2022

ASSETS
Segment assets
Unallocated assets
Bank balances and cash
Financial assets at FVTPL

Interest in associates
Others

Consolidated total assets

LIABILITIES

Segment liabilities

Unallocated liabilities
Promissory notes
Convertible bond
Others

Consolidated total liabilities
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BE

NEEE

AOBEE
RITHEFLRASE
BAYEFABRSZ
THEE

N NI

a8
NEsAE
ADEARE
A RE
AR A
Hit

maeREs

ER}

B

5. ERERE#®)
(a) ¥B23(&)
R-EBE-—FxXA=1+H

Hotel Gaming Live
Operation Operation Events
RS E BreE B5RE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
199,626 1,267,717 16,434
64,417 158231 2,203

Consolidated
o)
HK$'000
FHT
1,483,777
335,549
8,212

43917
3321

1,874,776

224,851
404,336

42,998
6,693

678,878
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(a)

Business segment (Continued)

Other information

Year ended 30 June 2022

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

Depreciation of
right-of-use assets

Addition to property,
plant and equipment

Addition to investment
properties

Provision for expected
credit losses

Change in fair value of
investment properties

Change in fair value of
financial assets at FVTPL

Change in fair value of

financial liabilities at FVTPL

Share of loss of associates
Interest income
Income tax credit

nE  BERRENE
EREAESE
FENE  BERRE
FREENE
BHEREBEE
BENE ATES
BATEABRSY
SHAEATES
AT AR
SHARATES
SEBE AT

MEHA
FEmEs

A MR MR

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE—F_=—F A=1HILFE
5. SEBERE ()
(a) EBIIW(E)
HttEH
BE_B-__FXRA=tHLEE

Hotel Gaming Live
Operation Operation Events  Unallocated  Consolidated
BEZE  BYEE SER I ) ADE e
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T THET TR THEL FAT
29,281 15,746 - 12 45,039
3,255 387 - 1,003 4,645
2474 2,073 = 1 4,558
- 1,837 - - 1,837
13 142 = 1,580 1,735
= 120,731 = = 120,731
- - - 40,949 40,949
_ - - (3,176) (3,176)
= = = 6,445 6,445
(5) (3418) = (©15) (4,038)
(4,308) (2459) = = (6,767)
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE T = NA=1HIFE

5. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 5. SEBEHRE (40
(b) Disaggregation of revenue (b) WADIF
In the following table, revenue is disaggregated by primary TRHFIIZTEHWETS TE2EM
geographical market, major products and service lines and MR IE B A R WA TEREE DT 2
timing of revenue recognition. The table also includes a WA o TRIFE D HF WA BKEE
reconciliation of the disaggregated revenue with the Group’s A 23R 5 2P 2 ¥R -

reportable segments.

Year ended 30 June 2023 BE—Z-_=FXA=1+HLEFE
Hotel Gaming Live
Operation Operation Events Consolidated
BEEE BEEE BRBER =E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET THERT THET

Primary geographical market ~FEMET S
The Philippines FEEE 73,677 133,542 - 207,219

Timing of revenue recognition  I§ A B3 i [

Transferred over time FEbF 182
Room revenue FERE%A 49,747 = = 49,747
Food and beverages B 22,269 - - 22,269
Other hotel service income H b B E ARISUA 1,661 - - 1,661
73,677 - - 73,677
Other source of income B A TR
Leasing of investment properties &R B IREERE 2
equipped with entertainment KEYEHRETT
equipment for gaming operation 187 & & - 133,542 - 133,542
73,677 133,542 - 207,219
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5. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(b) Disaggregation of revenue (Continued)

A MR MR

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE T _=F N NA=1HIFE

5. ERERE#®)
(b) WADIF(E)

Year ended 30 June 2022 BE-Z_—_§XA=1THLFE
Hotel Gaming Live
Operation Operation Events  Consolidated
BIEEE B eE R L) e
HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHAT TAT
Primary geographical market ~FEMET
The Philippines JERE 32,633 52,892 = 85,525
Timing of revenue recognition A &35 [
Transferred over time FErF EI#E R
Room revenue ERWA 24,261 - - 24,261
Food and beverages B 7,145 = = 7,145
Other hotel service income Ho A8 15 RFS WA 1,227 = = 1,227
32,633 - - 32,633
Other source ofincome BMRA KR
Leasing of investment properties T &R B IRLLR 1 2
equipped with entertainment BEYEMRETT
equipment for gaming operation 1B & & - 52,892 - 52,892
32633 52,892 - 85,525
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For the year ended 30 June 2023

o

=FENA=THILFE

5. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Geographic information

The following table provides a geographical analysis of the
Group's non-current assets other than financial instruments,
deferred tax assets and post-employment benefit assets
("Specified non-current assets”).

5.

DERERE (&)
() HEER

TEREHAKERASHTE BT
MABENBERENEE (HEER
BEE | NI SERBEEZ RN -

At 30 June At 30 June
2023 2022
R=-E== P ——
ANA=T1H ~NA=+H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx T
The Philippines JEEE 1,199,720 1,229,800
Others HAih 10 1,012
1,199,730 1,230,812
Information about major customers d) EFHEEZERFz2EH

Included in the revenue generated from gaming operation
segment of approximately HK$133,542,000 (2022:
HK$52,892,000) were contributed by the Group's largest
customer and the aggregate revenue from this customer
represented approximately 64% (2022: 62%) of the total
revenue of the Group. There are no other single customer
contributing over 10% of the Group's total revenue.
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AEBRAEFER  MABZEF
2B AE R EEBUAL 64% (—F
TTF %) WMERME-—FPAE
ANEBBEIASEL10% A 2 Tk -



International Entertainment Corporation  BIBRIREEA R A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M HRRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE T _=F N NA=1HIFE

OTHER INCOME 6. HfthltA
2023 2022
—F—-= —F-_—
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Interest income MBI A 10,206 4038
Sundry income (Note) WA (FraE) 1,732 603
11,938 4,641
Note: HtaF -
Sundry income mainly includes rental income of approximately HK$954,000 (2022: HMIBWATFEREREBMINIATHREERHFE /N
HK$231,000) from leasing of insignificant portion of the Group's spare hotel units HOBEBREEMEARAEMEBHEEST WAL
as office, currently classified as property, plant and equipment, to external parties 95400078 7L ( —Z T = — 4 : 231,000/87C) ' W H A
on a short-term basis. R - BB RS -
OTHER GAIN/(LOSSES), NET 7. Hftikizs ~ (B548) /958
2023 2022
=== —F-—
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Net foreign exchange gain/(losses) fE s (B51R) JF 4 1,653 (17,968)
FINANCE COSTS 8. HI%EMR
2023 2022
—E-= -
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Interest on promissory notes A Z IR B 18,316 18,302
Interest on bank borrowings RITHBERE 247 3752
Interest on lease liabilities HEBENE 3,519 4,163
Interest on convertible bond AR ESFE 4,392 3,293
26,474 29,510
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A MR

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE T = NA=1HIFE

9. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION 9. FKRREMIERF) (B8
2023 2022
—E-= —ZE=-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Profit/(loss) before taxation has been arrived at KA AT & A/ (E518) 2%~
after charging/(crediting): (Gt A) T3I&E -
Directors’ emoluments (Note 10) EEME (FE10) 4,914 4,718
Staff costs (excluding directors’ emoluments): B LKA (TNEIEEEME) ¢
Salaries and allowances e MoERL 26,398 26,497
Retirement benefits scheme contributions R FIET IR 2,517 1,810
Total staff costs B8 TR 33,829 33,025
Depreciation e
— Depreciation of property, — W - BERRETE
plant and equipment (included in (BT ASHE AL K
cost of sales and general and —MRITEAR)
administrative expenses) 36,231 45,039
— Depreciation of right-of-use assets —(ERREERE
(included in general GTA—REITHRFAL)
and administrative expenses) 4,344 4,645
Total depreciation weERs 40,575 49,684
Change in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL I AF AT ABZRZ & MEE
(Note 19) RNHERE (At 19) 3,127 40,949
Change in fair value of financial liabilities % &$Tﬁﬁ7\?§ s 2 EAR
at FVTPL (Note 31) NEEE (HE31) 4,258 (3,176)
Change in fair value of investment properties R & W 2 N EES) (HiE15)
(Note 15) (2,962) 120,731
Auditor's remuneration Z BB <
— Audit services — BZRB 2,017 2,100
— Non-audit service — IEEIZARTE 210 200
Cost of inventories recognised as expense WRBRAZ 2 FEKRA 330 755
Short-term lease payment SRR -ANEN 62 62
Provision for expected credit losses of TH&EIB 2 FEEMEEBERE
— Trade receivables — FEURERTR 2,432 155
— Other receivables — H bW FIB 974 1,580
Legal and professional fees EEMBEER 6,304 6452

202 Annual Report € #§ 2022/23



International Entertainment Corporation ~ BIFR IR 245 BR A &)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE T _=F N NA=1HIFE

10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE 10. EEMERTLRSIHFATL
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

2023 2022
=FT== - =S
HK$’000 HKS$'000
T FHIT
Directors' fees EEHE
— Executive directors —HITESE 2,208 2,838
— Independent non-executive Directors — BN IERITEE 675 720
Basic remuneration, allowances and HEAF - ZEE R EYHIZ=
benefits in kind 2,017 1,139
Retirement benefits scheme contributions IROKE AT B 5R 14 21
4,914 4,718
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the six (2022: seven) ENHEMNANEG(CE-—F  +R)EER
directors were as follows: BzMemT
Year ended 30 June 2023 BE-_Z-_=FXA=1+HLEE
Basic
remuneration, Retirement
allowances benefits
and benefits scheme
Fees inkind contributions Total
HEAREH -
BER  OBRAEF
we EMFIz= Bl At
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FET FET
Executive directors HITESE
Mr. HO Wong Meng HO Wong Meng 7t & 1,848 789 7 2,644
Mr. Aurelio Jr. Dizon TABLANTE Aurelio Jr. Dizon
TABLANTE 5t & 360 1,228 7 1,595
Independent non-executive Y& E#HTES
directors
Mr. LAU Ka Ho RZEE 240 - - 240
Mr. CHENG Hong Wai iR (2 et 240 - - 240
Mr. CHUNG Dan* SER 4 185 - - 185
Mr. Leung Wai Tai® IS IR e A 10 = - 10
2,883 2,017 14 4,914
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE T = NA=1HIFE

10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE 10. EEMEeRAAREFALE)
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued)
Year ended 30 June 2022 BE_E-_—_FXA=1THLEE
Basic
remuneration, Retirement
allowances benefits
and benefits scheme
Fees inkind  contributions Total
ERFMH -
=R RIREAR
we BEWAE EEGEN a5
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FAT FAT FHTT
Executive directors HTES
Dr. CHOI Chiu Fai Stanley! B 900 = 14 914
Mr. HO Wong Meng HO Wong Meng %t 4 1,848 798 6 2,652
Mr. Aurelio Jr. Dizon TABLANTE? Aurelio Jr. Dizon
TABLANTE 5t 42 90 341 1 432

Independent non-executive Y& E#HTES

directors
Mr. HA Kee Choy Eugene’ EHASAES 180 - - 180
Mr. LAU Ka Ho BRTELE 240 - - 240
Mr. CHENG Hong Wai (e ot 240 - - 240
Mr. CHUNG Dan* SER S 60 - _ 60
3,558 1,139 21 4,718
Notes: Htat -

! BHEEN _S-_—_F=-A=+—A#F-
The director was appointed on 1 April 2022. 2 EREEN T _—_FNHA—HEZF-

The director was resigned on 31 March 2022. 3 ERESEN T -_—_F=A=+—H#§FE-
The director was appointed on 1 April 2022 and passing away on 7 April ¢ EHREEFN _T__FNOA—HEZFEIN=
2023. T_=FNACHEEE -

The director was appointed on 16 June 2023. s EHEEN T _=F A+ HEZ{T-

The director was resigned on 31 March 2022.

A e oo -
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE T _=F N NA=1HIFE

10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE 10. EEMERALTRRFALT(®)
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued)
Five highest paid individuals EEZBEHEAL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, AEERAERRFATE ME(ZE==
two (2022: two) were directors of the Company whose emoluments F:MEI)ATANATES  EME 2t
are included in the disclosures above. The emoluments of the ANt ED  c HBR=%2(=ZF ==
remaining three (2022: three) individuals, of which one (2022: one) of F:=ZZ)AT(BER—FZ(ZZE=_—F: —
individuals was senior management of the Group, were as follows: BIATEAASESRERAB)MESWT ¢
2023 2022
—g=-= —F-—
HK$’000 HKS'000
TET FET
Basic salaries and allowances HARFr & MoER 3,681 4474
Retirement benefits scheme contributions ROKE AT B FR 54 47
3,735 4,521
The emoluments were within the following bands: Me&BRMT :
2023 2022
—E-= - ————
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A A
HK$1,000,000 or below 1,000,000 B TT AT 1 =
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 ZETTZ 1,500,000 7T 1 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7 7T 2 2,000,000 45 7T 1 2
3 3
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A MR

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE T = NA=1HIFE

10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued)

Five highest paid individuals (Continued)

The emoluments of the senior management of the Group, whose
biographical details are set out in the “Board of Directors and Senior
management” section of this annual report, were within the
following bands:

10. EEMMERAAEDIHALTE)

REBRBHFAL (R
ARESREEAR(HEEABIHNAF
RIEFERRREEAR| —f)zME®
BT

2023 2022
—E-= —_=F-=

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

A ANEX

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7 7T 2 2,000,000 75 7T 1 1

The discretionary or performance related incentive payments are
determined by reference to the individual performance of the
employees of the Group.

During the year, no emolument was paid by the Group to the
Directors or any of the five highest paid individual as inducement to
join or upon joining of the Group or as compensation for loss of
office. No director waived any emoluments during the year ended
30 June 2023 and 2022.
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11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT)

The amount of income tax recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income represents:

A MR MR

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE T _=F N NA=1HIFE

11. PRI~ (%)

RiFE 2E WS RER Z AR TS

2023 2022
—=—-= —E_—

HK$'000 HK$'000
TE T FH&TT

Current tax BNVEATS I8
— Current year — RFE - 9
Deferred tax expense/(credit) ELERIBRAY (ER) 2,819 (6,776)
Income tax expense/(credit) Frsgifs (%) 2,819 (6,767)

Hong Kong profits tax for the qualifying group entity is calculated at
8.25% on the first HK$2 million of the estimated assessable profits
and 16.5% on the estimated assessable profits above HKS2 million
for the years ended 30 June 2023 and 2022. Hong Kong profits tax
for other group entities is calculated at 16.5% on the estimated
profits. No provision for taxation in Hong Kong was made in the
financial statements for the current year as the Group's operations in
Hong Kong had no assessable profits.

The Group's subsidiaries in the Philippines are subject to the
Philippines profits tax rate of 25% for the year ended 30 June 2023
(2022: 25%). The withholding tax rate in respect of a dividend
distributed by a subsidiary of the Company operating in the
Philippines to its overseas immediate holding company is 15% for
the years ended 30 June 2023 and 2022. No provision for taxation in
the Philippines was made in the financial statements for the current
year as the Group's operations in the Philippines had no assessable
profits.

The Group's subsidiary in Macau is subject to Macau profits tax rate
of 12% for the years ended 30 June 2023 and 2022. No provision for
taxation in Macau was made in the financial statements for the
current year as the Group’s operations in Macau had no assessable
profits.

HE T =FF-_T-—FXA=+HIt
FE AERSEER2EANEH NG
2,000,000 7% 7T {ih 51 3% Bt 28 FIl 32 B K 8.25%
I 38 2,000,000 7 7T 2 {51 FE SR AR & M 2 FR
KI165%5H - HtEEERBMNESHER
Tz st B RM165%:E - R AEER
BB FEFWMERTIBF - B mNAF
EWBEHREANGTIRE BRIBARE -

HE_ZT-_ZFA=Z1+THLFE £A£H
ZIHEEEMB AR AZEME N (ZETEZ
& 25%) BAMSERE NG - RARINIER
EREEBRZHBRAIREE_E-_=ZFK
fjffi/\ﬂ T HIEFEREEGINESE

EIRARIRT 2R EF R 2 AN E A
15% ° R AEBERIERE 2 EH I EER
TREF - M ER AT SRR AT HRIF
BEIRREE -

HEZZ-_=FRk-_FT-_FA=+HL
FE - AEEZBPINEB AT EIERE12%
BHRFIFEHR - AR AEBINRA ZES
WEERHEN - WL ERRFEYERE
WEHHERPI T TE R -
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A MR

Forthe year ended 30 June 2023

BE—T = NH=1THIFE
11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) (Continued) 11. FRfFMRMAZ (%) @)
2023 2022
—ZFE== B S—
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Profit/(loss) before taxation BREBTER,(E5E) 21,101 (263,158)
Taxation at the principal tax rates applicable  Z B BB EAR AN 2
to profits in the country concerned Exffdf FE2HIE 5,275 (65,790)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries REMBEERESEEL 2
operating in other jurisdictions L ipEENI RN R R 237.5. 3,770 48,103
Tax effect of expenses not deductible PAB A 2 B &
for tax purpose 3,291 3,124
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose H7B =2 5 Ug A 2 Tt 15 57 28 (2,185) (1,839)
Tax effect of net income derived from leasing @ PAGCOR HFAMIZEFTESE
of properties to PAGCOR not taxable AR FRE 2 B2
for tax purpose (33,085) (13,043)
Tax effect of tax losses and deductible RERRIBEE &T?Di)ﬁi%ﬁﬁ%
temporary differences not recognised ERBBRE 25,753 22,678
Income tax expense/(credit) for the year FRAERAY(ER) 2,819 (6,767)

At 30 June 2023 and 2022, there are tax dispute cases between
Marina Square Properties, Inc. (‘“MSPI"), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company principally engaging in the business of
leasing of properties with gaming equipment in the Philippines, and
Bureau of Internal Revenue (“BIR") in the Philippines for the calendar
years of 2008, 2012, 2014, and 2015 of around Pes03,676,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$520,936,000 (2022:
HK$524,610,000)) which were pending for final decision of BIR or
Court of Tax Appeal (“CTA"). Based on the advices of the
independent tax and legal advisors of the subsidiary, the directors of
the Company believe that MSPI has valid legal arguments to defend
the tax disputes and concluded that the possibility of additional tax
liabilities for these calendar years is remote.
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)‘5/\\\7 S —FRZZTZZFAA=FTH R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) (Continued)

On 4 May 2022, MSPI received a formal letter of demand from BIR for
alleged deficiency taxes covering the calendar year of 2018
amounting to approximately Peso767,633,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$108,771,000 (2022: HK$109,544,000)) inclusive of
penalties and interest.

On 3 June 2022, MSPI filed an administrative protest with BIR and
Large Taxpayers Service (‘LTS") against the formal letter of demand
for 2018 and request for reinvestigation of the formal letter of
demand for calendar year of 2018, in accordance with the relevant
laws, rules and regulations of the Philippines.

MSPI submitted its supporting documents to BIR and LTS on 2
August 2022, but the BIR failed to act on MSPI's request for
reinvestigation despite the lapse of 180 days period from 2 August
2022. During 2023, MSPI filed a petition for review with CTA and
subsequently on 16 August 2023, BIR requested the CTA to affirm its
assessment on MSPI on calendar year 2018. The CTA has now
scheduled a pre-trail conference on 9 November 2023.

On 13 June 2023, MSPI received a preliminary assessment notice and
subsequently on 14 August 2023 received a final assessment notice
from BIR for alleged deficiency taxes covering the calendar year of
2019 of amounting to approximately Peso536,953,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$76,085,000) inclusive of penalties and interest.

On 13 September 2023, MSPI filed an administrative protest with BIR
and LTS against the formal letter of demand for 2019 and requested
for reinvestigation of the formal letter of demand for calendar year of
2019, in accordance with the relevant laws, rules and regulations of
the Philippines.

11.

A MR MR

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE T _=F N NA=1HIFE

PRSI (IB%R) (&)
MR_ZT - _FH APMH - MSPI# # 7K & BIR
ZIEREFL A - ESRMSPIE —F— )\ F
B F Z = 18 I8 = 88 4767,633,000 8 &
(FER#108771,0008 T (=T = —F:
109 544000/%75))(WEETJ‘?K&%\JM

RZZEZ_FNA=H MSPIRRIEIEEER
BEE  EREBRMB =T - N\FEASH
Bk {4 1A BIR K Large Taxpayers Service ([LTS )
RETBRBEERERAE—ZS—/\FE
FZIERBI L -

MN-ZE-—F)\A=H » MSPI[ABIR & LTS 12
THIE XM MBIRA BEREMSPI &) & #73
BEEXRERTE BEAT=-—_F/\A=
B#stE@E180H - R = a—::i MSPI
MCTARRKREZEZR  HERZZ_=FN
A+7<8 B|R;<*CTA1‘:EW,\BA_§E N\F
B FEHMSPIR)FEfE - TAIRE THER =
—=F+—AhB8ITE

RZEZ=ZFXA+=H ' MSPIZEBRH
METEBE EER T _=FN\A+KHm
BREASRKTGHERN  $R_T—hEFE
F 75 R EZ F 47536953000 & (HE
R #976,0850007870) (BIEEIF R FB) o

R-ZE-=FHLA+=H " MSPIIREIERE
HERE  EZBR BRI T AFERAH

LM BIR R LTS TR 1T » WEKE
FRE_Z—NEBFZERBFL LM -
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For the year ended 30 June 2023

HE—F =

11.

12.

SFNA=THILFE
INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) (Continued)

Based on the advices of the independent tax and legal advisers of
MSPI, the Directors believe that MSPI has valid legal arguments to
defend the above tax disputes. Accordingly, no provision has been
made for the tax disputes in the consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 30 June 2023 and 2022. However, as
there is at present a possible obligation (existence of which can only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of such
subsidiary) which may or may not require an initial outflow of
resources, the directors of the Company consider it prudent to
estimate that as at 30 June 2023, the contingent liabilities in respect
of the alleged deficiency taxes covering the calendar year of 2018
and 2019 that may be assessed by BIR for the taxable year 2018 and
2019 which are not yet barred by prescription under the relevant
laws, rules and regulations of the Philippines as being a total of
approximately Peso1,304,800,000 (2022: Peso767,633,000)
(equivalent to approximately HK$184,900,000 (2022:
HK$109,544,000)) as a possible outflow of resources.

The potential exposure to the Group for the alleged tax disputes in
relation to calendar year 2008, 2012, 2014, 2015, 2018 and 2019
inclusive of potential accrued interest, surcharge and penalties up to
30 June 2023 amounted to approximately Peso7,605,000,000 (2022:
Pes06,410,000,000) (equivalent to approximately HK$1,080,000,000
(2022: HK$914,700,000)).

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 30 June 2023 (2022: nil).
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE T _=F N NA=1HIFE

13. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 13. 8REH) (&)
The basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share attributable to the RAEEE ANELEREARBERT, (&
owners of the Company are calculated as follows: 1B) HRE TSR E
2023 2022
-—g== —F-=
HK$’000 HKS$'000
TE T FH&TT
Profit/(loss) for the year FREF,(EE) 18,282 (256,391)
2023 2022
—E-= —E-—4F
‘000 ‘000
T A% TR
Number of shares RO E
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ~ FRAGHEGIREAR M #EE ),
for the purposes of basic and (E518) 2 EmA% hnkE 152X
diluted earnings/(loss) per share 1,369,157 1,369,157
2023 2022
—ZE_= —F-—
HK Cents HK Cents
Al AL
Earnings/(loss) per share BRAEF,(EHE)
Basic B 1.34 (18.73)
Diluted e 1.34 (18.73)
The computation of diluted earnings/(loss) per share for the year HEEE - E R -TE-__F A=+
ended 30 June 2023 and 2022 does not assume the exercise of the BItFEzEREERT,(EE) T ERE
Company’s outstanding share options as the exercise price of those TERARMAITEZEBRE  BERAZSES
options was higher than the average market price for shares for the BREZTEEBENERNKRN ZFEHHIE -
year.
The computation of diluted earnings/(loss) per share for the year HEEE TSGR FARA=T
ended 30 June 2023 and 2022 does not assume the conversion of AitFEzSREERATN(EB]R) L RRE
the Company’s outstanding convertible bond since their assumed BIRA DR ARITE 2 AR ES - RER
exercise would have anti-dilutive effect. HBSATEME S RESEE
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE—F_=—FNA=THIFE

14.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. . BEMRE

Furniture,
Leasehold fixturesand Entertainment Computer Motor
Buildings improvements Machinery equipment equipment equipment vehicles Total
R £E
BF HEEE e &L IRERE ERE AE @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT T T THT FHT FHL FHT T
Cost B
At 1 July 2021 R-T-_—F
+A—-B 488,212 9,866 101,228 101,181 163,647 98 1920 866,152
Additions RE 78 = 1463 946 2,060 11 = 4558
Exchange adjustments [ 5 735 (50321) (868) (10,526) (10485) (16997) = (198) (89,395)
At 30 June 2022 NZZ-—F
~NA=TH 437,969 8,998 92,165 91,642 148,710 109 1,722 781,315
Additions RE 763 - 3,068 184 12,588 7 - 16,610
Exchange adjustments (B} 5% (3,037) (93) (628) (675) (894) - (12) (5,339)
At 30 June 2023 RZZZ=F
~NA=1H 435,695 8,905 94,605 91,151 160,404 116 1,710 792,586
Accumulated depreciation Z5HHTE RRERE
and impairment loss:
At 1 July 2021 NZZE-_—F
+A—A 315,381 8,002 93,808 93,308 130,795 89 1439 642,822
Provision for the year FREE 21628 161 3228 4366 15,405 12 239 45039
Exchange adjustments [ 5 5% (33,900) (690) (9876) (9,894) (14475) = (164) (68,999)
At 30 June 2022 R-E_—F
~NR=+H 303,109 7,473 87,160 87,780 131,725 101 1,514 618,862
Provision for the year FRRME 19,745 126 1,837 3,447 10,910 5 161 36,231
Exchange adjustments  [& i F3 % (1,810) (124) (602) (577) (794) - 9) (3,916)
At30June 2023 R-E-=F
~A=tH 321,044 7,475 88,395 90,650 141,841 106 1,666 651,177
Carrying amount: FREE
At30 June 2023 NZT-_=F
~NA=1H 114,651 1,430 6,210 501 18,563 10 44 141,409
At30 June 2022 R-Z-_—F
~A=tH 134,860 1525 5,005 3862 16,985 8 208 162453
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Impairment tests for Hotel operation CGU

The group of non-financial assets included in Hotel operation
segment (“Hotel operation CGU") is tested for impairment as the
hotel operation segment recorded a segment loss during the years.
For the purpose of impairment testing, gross carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment of HK$150,744,000 (2022:
HK$173,300,000) and right-of-use assets of HK$18,642,000 (2022:
HK$21,818,000) of the hotel operation segment were allocated to
the Hotel operation CGU. The recoverable amount of the Hotel
operation CGU has been determined by fair value less costs of
disposal (“FVLCOD") with reference to the valuation prepared by
Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited (“JLL"),
an independent professional valuer not connected to the Group.
The fair value of the Hotel operation CGU were measured using
income capitalisation approach with use of significant unobservable
inputs and hence were classified as Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.
There were no transfer into or out of Level 3 during the year. Key
assumptions used in calculating the recoverable amount are as
follows:

Long term growth rate of revenue WA REAIE £ R
Discount rate TExX
Capitalisation rate BAAL &

14.

A MR MR

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE T _=F N NA=1HIFE

M. BE KRR E)
HEEBERESEABE NN 2RERR
AABEEENS([EEEERESELES
f]) HIESBEEMEREITRERN - I
B G & E D HRE NS D EE - BHR
BARME  BEEEDBWE - WE KK
45 85 TH 4218 150,744,000 T (—Z T - =
173,300,000 70) R A EEEREARE
18,642,000/ TT( —ZFE = =4 : 21,818,000} 7T)
PREBELERCEAEMN o BIEEER
& BE A BB A] UK Bl b R AR 4R B 7N & B I 4
Er B EEMEMPEHITEETGERE
AAERAR ([EET) BR 2 HEEATF
BEREERA(AFEREERE])ET -
IR EBIR e EEBMNRAFETERKA
BERLEETHE  WFEREATIERE
ABUE MO BAATFEEREZN - F
NE=RIWHmAEAEANE L o FTE (G
SEMEANERERERNT

At 30 June At 30 June

2023 2022
R-E—-=F R-TE——

AA=+H ~A=+A

3.5% 3.0%

12.0% 12.5%

9.0% 9.5%

Base on management’s assessment in impairment test of Hotel
operation CGU, no impairment loss is recognised or reversed in profit
orloss in 2023 and 2022.

BIEEEERBELERSCELEM A
BTG R =FR T - —F1
EHMES P IER S B O E RS 18 -
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For the year ended 30 June 2023

=
14.

15.

—E-CEAASHALFE

=

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
Impairment tests for Gaming operation CGU

In 2022, the group of non-financial assets included in Gaming
operation segment (‘Gaming operation CGU") with gross carrying
amount of HK$31,840,000 is tested for impairment as the segment
recorded a segment loss during the year. The recoverable amount of
the Gaming operation CGU has been determined base on FVLCOD
with reference to the valuation prepared by JLL. The valuation was
derived using income capitalisation approach with use of significant
unobservable inputs and hence were classified as Level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy. Base on management’s assessment in impairment
test of Gaming operation CGU, no impairment loss is recognised or
reversed in profit or loss.

14. . WBEMNEREE)

BEEERESEAE N 2RERR
RZBE-—F ARFADBESHIE
B HGEABEEES B ((BYEERESE
By |) BIRTEE 431,8400008 L2 — 48
FEMEECIERENR - BYEERSE
EBMAIRESE2EMRERTRE 2
B BATFEREERAET o BRI
ABREFA(ERERERTATHRREA
BB WO BEAFZHALFEBE -
BEEEEREVEERCELSBNZRE
B AR - WENIBE T R R A
18 o

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. REWE
Total
et
HK$'000
THT
FAIR VALUE NF{E
At 1 July 2021 RZZE-_—F+HA—H 1,231,000
Addition RE 1,837
Fair value loss N EEE (120,731)
Exchange adjustment PE 5, 58 % (119,106)
At 30 June 2022 R-ZE-_—_F,"A=+H 993,000
Fair value gain N EWE 2,962
Exchange adjustment PE 5 (6,962)
At 30 June 2023 R-EBE-=FXA=+H 989,000

The above investment properties are located in the Philippines. The
Group's property interest held to earn rentals is measured using the
fair value model and is classified and accounted for as investment
property.

The fair value of the Group's investment properties at 30 June 2023
was approximately HK$989,000,000 (30 June 2022: HK$993,000,000).
The fair value has been arrived at based on a valuation carried out by
Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited (“JLL"),
independent professional valuer not connected with the Group. JLL
is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors.
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE T _=F N NA=1HIFE

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 15. #EWE )

The fair values were determined based on the income approach, NEEURAEET  EF2EHEHEE
where capitalising the estimated net income derived from the RIREMEMG WA FEERN L - Wit
investment properties with reference to the lease agreement and RARERES  ERRXEFFERABAE
taking into account the future growth potential with reference to WABREREFTN - TEEXKL2EBEFERE
historical income trend achieved in previous years and latest market X% E 2 E AR Z N ERKAE
condition. The discount rate was determined by reference to TE o FTAMMERITEBEBBLES A - 5t
weighted average cost of capital of the listed companies with similar EANFEMBETE/EZNT :

business portfolio. There had been no change from the valuation
technique used in the prior period. Key assumptions used in
calculating the fair value are as follows:

At 30 June At 30 June
2023 2022
R=-B=-= i S
AA=+H ANA=+A
Long term growth rate of revenue AR RX 3.5% 3.0%
Discount rate WHEX 13.5% 13.5%
Capitalisation rate BEAR(ELE & 7.5% 7.5%
The fair value of the investment properties at 30 June 2023 and 2022 EMENR _—_E_=—FR T - —FxH
were measured using valuation techniques with significant =+ B AT EIRFEREAT I ERGAS
unobservable inputs and hence were classified as Level 3 of the fair EEERNEE o EAATLEELRSE
value hierarchy. There were no transfer into or out of Level 3 during =4 o FNB =MW E(TAEE AsEE L o
the year.
The fair value measurement is based on the above properties’ NEFEHENN LY E L SE RaERE
highest and best use, which does not differ from their actual use. (BFE s ERARER) AHE
In addition, significant judgement is required when evaluating the AN FE AT EAS SR ASIEREE
inputs used in the fair value measurement. Reasonably possible EHERHE - RREBE  TAABRE
changes at the reporting date to any of the relevant assumptions S IEN e S B B EYEN A FEE -
would have affected the fair value of the investment properties as Z25)mT -

presented below:

At 30 June At 30 June
2023 2022
N-—T== A, ——

AA=+H NA=TH

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAET
Discount rate increased by 1% FEEEIMN1% (19,000) (50,000)
Rental growth rate decreased by 1% HEBBREFD 1% (29,000) (44,000)
Capitalisation rate increased by 1% B AL N 1% (33,000) (31,000)
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VY —

=FNA=THILFE

16. LOAN RECEIVABLES

As at 30 June 2023 and 2022, the Group's loan receivables represent
three loans to associates as below:

A loan advance with principal of Peso 338,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$47,929,000 (2022: HK$48,269,000)) was granted in prior
years to Harbor View Properties and Holdings, Inc. (‘"HVPHI"),
which is an associate of the Company. The loan is interest
bearing at 3.5% per annum and the whole principal amount is
repayable on 3 August 2032.

The loan was secured by parcels of land owned by HVPHI.
Management considered that the estimated fair value of these
collaterals was not less than the carrying amount of the
respective loan receivable as at 30 June 2023 and 2022.

The Group additionally granted Peso 92,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$13,036,000 (2022: HK$13,129,000)) in prior years to HVPHI.
The loan is interest bearing at 3.5% per annum, repayable on
demand and unsecured. The Group does not intend to
request for repayment within twelve months after the end of
the reporting period.

A loan advance with principal of Peso 55,000,000 was granted
in prior years to Pacific Bayview Properties, Inc. (‘PBPI"), which
is the wholly owned subsidiary of Blue Marine Properties, Inc.,,
and is an associate of the Company. The loan is interest
bearing at 3.5% per annum and repayable on demand. As at
30 June 2023 and 2022, PBPI has repaid Peso 37,000,000 to the
Group with principal amount of Peso 18,000,000 (equivalent of
HK$2,551,000) outstanding at 30 June 2023 (2022: Peso
18,000,000 equivalent to HKS$2,569,000). The Group does not
intent to request for repayment within twelve months after
the end of the reporting period.

The loan was secured by condominium properties owned by
PBPI. Management considered that the estimated fair value of
these collaterals was not less than the carrying amount of the
respective loan receivable as at 30 June 2023 and 2022.
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(a)

AR BEFERARAZ
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Holdings, Inc. (THVPHI ) I H AN £ 58 &
338,000,000 # 2 (18 E 72 47,929,000 4 7T
(T = —4F 1482690008 7L)) 2 &
HER o ZERIRFFE3I5%E B
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AEE -
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE T _=F N NA=1HIFE

17. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES 17. REFERT 2L
At 30 June At 30 June
2023 2022
N=-T== A, ——
ANA=1+H ~NA=+H
HK$’ 000 HKS$'000
FHET FAT
Share of net assets DEEEFE 42,479 43917
Particulars of the Group's associates are as follows: NEBE 7S NT ZHBWOT -
Place of
incorporation Percentage
Name of associates Principal activities and operations held by the Group
Ef R B rEE
- NCIEY FEXEK FES—$:ih 0 A DL
%
Harbor View Properties and Holdings, Inc. Property developer the Philippines 40
Harbor View Properties and Holdings, Inc. VIZEBERY JEREE
Blue Marine Properties, Inc. Investment holdings the Philippines 40
Blue Marine Properties, Inc. BB JERE
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BE T = NA=1HIFE
17. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 17. REHSNTI 2L ()

(@) Harbor View Properties and Holdings, Inc. (@) Harbor View Properties and
Holdings, Inc.

At 30 June At 30 June
2023 2022
R=ZTE== A S
ANA=T1H ~NA=+H
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FET
Current assets mEEE 53,691 46,148
Non-current assets EREEE 177,068 185,253
Current liabilities mEBE (99,175) (97,107)
Non-current liabilities IEREHEaE (64,123) (64,576)
Net assets EEFE 67,461 69,718
Net assets attributable to owners EZEEARLKEESE
of the equity 67,461 69,718
Group’s share of the net assets AEBHEHEATNEERE
of the associate 26,984 27,887
Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2023 2022
BE H=E
—E_=F —=E_—
~NB=1+H ~NAZ=+H
IEEE WFE
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FETT
Revenue WA 1,541 1,391
Loss for the year FRNEE (1,825) (10,826)
Total comprehensive loss FHEIBEE (1,748) (10,988)
Dividends received from the associate [BALEHENE s = -
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BE T _=F N NA=1HIFE

17. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 17. REFERFZ &R (&)
(b) Blue Marine Properties, Inc. (b) Blue Marine Properties, Inc.
At 30 June At 30 June
2023 2022
R-ZE—= N-ZE -
~NA=1+H ~NA=1+H
HK$’000 HKS'000
TET FET
Current assets MENEE 8,748 9,987
Non-current assets FERBEE 88,161 92,617
Current liabilities mEAE (37,752) (39911)
Non-current liabilities IEREEaE (20,420) (22,618)
Net assets EERE 38,737 40,075

Net assets attributable to owners EZEEARMKEESE

of the equity 38,737 40,075
Group’s share of the net assets AEEMEHE AT EEFE
of the associate 15,495 16,030
Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2023 2022
BZ H=E
—E_=F - g
NA=+1H NA=1+H
IEFE IHFE
HK$’000 HKS$'000
TET FET
Revenue WA 4,584 5,346
Loss for the year FAEE (1,044) (5125)
Total comprehensive loss FHEIBEE (1,044) (5,125)
Dividends received from the associate [EALE NG = -
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HE—F =

SENA=ZTHIEFE
17. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 17. REAERTFI 2R (2)
The summarised movements of interest in associates during the year FRRBENT 2 EREHFENT -
are as below:
Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2023 2022
Bz HE
—==-= —E-C
~NE=1+H ~A=1H
LFE WEFE
HK$’000 HKS'000
F#&x FHIT
At beginning of the year REA]) 43,917 55,686
Share of loss of associates SihEEE N R EE (1,058) (6,445)
Exchange adjustments VE W A% (380) (5.324)
At end of the year RER 42,479 43917
18. LEASE 18. A&
During the year, the Group leases various offices, land and staff FR - AEBEHELZENAE tHRKET

quarters for its operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed
term of 2 to 36 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. In
determining the lease term and assessing the length of the non-
cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a contract and
determines the period for which the contract is enforceable.

Right-of-use assets

The analysis of the net carrying amount of leased properties

EEHEELH BHORBETEFH2E0F
RIS MAOGFIRERNELEE 28— &

IENEEE 37954 Lt

B E T H R AT S N AT B

HHMEE RN ARBERBANZERLE

BRRMITHIR

EREEE

HRRERREECHEMEREFEDT

recognised as right-of-use assets is as follows: PN
Land Properties Total
L it LYE S HE
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
FAET FAT T
At 1 July 2021 R=-TB=-—FtHA—H 13,487 24,248 37,735
Depreciation for the year FRITE (387) (4,258) (4,645)
Addition e - 2,006 2,006
Exchange adjustments PE 57, 8 (1,365) (2,289) (3,654)
At 30 June 2022 R-B=-=—#XHA=+H 11,735 19,707 31,442
Depreciation for the year FRITE (355) (3,989) (4,344)
Exchange adjustments B b, 3 B (87) (169) (256)
At 30 June 2023 R=Z=-=%/,:A=+H 11,293 15,549 26,842
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BE T _=F N NA=1HIFE

18. LEASE (Continued) 18. fHE (&)
Lease liabilities HEasE
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during FAHEGEERAREZHNOT :

the year are as follows:

Land Properties Total
T ith L st
HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
FHIT T FHIT
At 1 July 2021 N—=TB-_—F+H—H 14,994 29,869 44,863
Addition VN1 = 2,006 2,006
Lease payments MENK (1,062) (6,443) (7,505)
Interest expenses FERAX 960 3,203 4163
Exchange adjustments PE 5 = (1,539) (2,934) (4,473)
At 30 June 2022 R-ZE--FXA=+H 13,353 25,701 39,054
Lease payments HERR (975) (5,998) (6,973)
Interest expenses FEFHX 875 2,644 3,519
Exchange adjustments PE H % (94) (204) (298)
At 30 June 2023 R-ZE-_=%xA=1+H 13,159 22,143 35,302
At 30 June At 30 June
2023 2022
R==== MN-_E—_—%F
~A=+H ANA=+A
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Current E 2,742 3,501
Non-current JETE 32,560 35,553
35,302 39,054
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18. LEASE (Continued)

Operating lease commitments — The Group as lessor

As announced by the Company on 18 December 2015, MSPI as
lessor, entered into the Lease Agreement with PAGCOR as lessee for
the renewal of the lease of certain premises of the Group for a term
commencing from 1 April 2016 and expiring on the earlier of 31
March 2031 or upon the total rent accruing against and/or payable
by PAGCOR to MSPI under the Lease Agreement reaching an
aggregate of Peso24.5 billion. The monthly rental is based on a
certain percentage of net gaming revenue of the casino operated by
PAGCOR or a fixed amount of Peso100,000, whichever is higher.
Rental income arising from such agreement during the year end 30
June 2023 was approximately HK$ 133,542,000 (2022: HK$52,892,000),
representing contingent rental income recognised base on certain
percentage of net gaming revenue. The entering into the
corporation agreement and joint establishment of management
committee with PAGCOR on 9 August 2021 has no change on the
substance of the Lease Agreement.

The total future minimum lease payment to be received are as
follow:

18. A& #®)

REHOEE —TEEEAEHBEA
BUARBR—E—RAF+-A+N\BFRA
i+ MSPI (fE& I FE A ) B2 PAGCOR (1E &4
NGV HER:SE WEEASEETYE
A FHEZZE—RFNA—HE I
RZZE=—%F= A =+—H®NKPAGCORIR
BREWHEAN K REMNTMPIZ 25
% #8584 F 3 24,500,000,000 F R 2 B (A
FER%E)EIH] o AL PAGCOR 48 & 1R 44
SEBEYRAFBEETES LSBT
100000 RV BaEEE HE_T-=F
NAZTRHIEFE B FEZ%E%LI&
A #9133542000% m( = T = =
52,892,000/ 70) + HHE RIBIEER Hﬂz)\/ﬂﬁ
ZATEDHERHIAESWA - RZZ
——FNANH " KAREPAGCOREIMY A&
AR EREEES  HEHEL
ERGEEEEEY -

AERSERENKERBERAT :

At 30 June At 30 June
2023 2022
R=ZT== WZZTE——
NBE=1+H ~NAZ=1H
HK$'000 HK$'000
F&T FH&TT
Within one year to fifth year inclusive —ERF (RREEEMF) 840 856
Over five years BiBEAF 462 642
1,302 1,498
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19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include the

A MR MR

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE T _=F N NA=1HIFE

19. BRFEFARBZEHEE

BAFEFABGSZEREERRNATS

following: 1g :
At 30 June At 30 June
2023 2022
R=B-=fF WN-_T_—
NA=+H ~NA=1+H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT T
Unlisted investment fund (Note) FEmIREES (Ht) 5,302 8,212
Note: Btat -
The unlisted investment fund represented approximately 48% (2022: 48%) 5F b & & & & ¥ 7 Hontai Capital Fund Il Limited

interests in Hontai Capital Fund Il Limited Partnership (the “Hontai Fund").

This Hontai Fund was established principally to achieve long-term capital
appreciation primarily through privately-negotiated investments in companies
and/or its affiliates which is/are engaged in the production and distribution of the
sports events and entertainment content and sports media rights market. The
Group is a limited partner in this Hontai Fund and does not have control nor
significant influence in the Hontai Fund's operational and financing decisions.

The directors of the Company have determined the fair value of its interest held in
the Hontai Fund as at 30 June 2023 with reference to the valuation report issued
by, an independent professional valuer who has professional qualifications and
relevant experience. The fair value of the Hontai Fund is determined by NAV
summation method with fair value of underlying investment determined by
market approach, with references to comparable companies benchmark multiples.
During the year ended 30 June 2023, the Group recognised a fair value loss of
HK$3,127,000 (2022: HK$40,949,000) in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Par‘mership((Hontm Fund|) 9 #4)48% (=T ==
48%) HE s

X Hontai Fund 2 F Z B ABR R A ALE -
FEEBILTEERENREEERDHEREE
IRERNANEEBRSHEEERE AR R KHEE
Na) e NEB AHontai Fund ZBRAEBA - iTHoma|
Fund 2 BB RV ERRIW BITHIRNERTEN

RARERELBAEEEERRIBBAER 2 BIE
EGEMEL ZEERS - B F H R Hontai Fund #
BZRZN-_ZE-_=FA=1+HZAFE ° Hontai
Fund 2 A FERABEEFELIZEHBAREZA
FEKRATSELSBAIELRARZEEZHET -
BHE-_Z-=FA=1+HLFE  AEEREGFES
AR AER A FEEIE3127008T(ZE =2
£ 140,949,000 7T ) °
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BE—F_=—FNA=THIFE

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES

20. FEURERIA

At 30 June At 30 June
2023 2022
R=-2Z-= R-T——

/\H :+ =| / \)EJ :+ H

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FAT

Trade receivables JE Uk BR T8 17,293 13,475
Less: provision for expected credit losses B TEAREEBEEE (2,953) (494)

14,340 12,981
The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables net of LTaRRENREEREEZEA(HEAE

allowance for doubtful debts presented based on invoice date which

R AER B IR ) 251 2 FRUARIE (kR

approximate the respective revenue recognition date at the end of REREEE) 2 BRIR AT o
the reporting period.
At 30 June At 30 June
2023 2022
R=-®BZ-= i
ANA=1+H ~NA=1H
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FAT
0-30 days 0230H 13,682 11,875
31-60 days 31260 H 161 32
61-90 days 61290 H 497 203
Over 90 days oo H - 871
14,340 12,981
The Group has a policy allowing its customers credit periods NEBZERELTFTERP—MNF0E0
normally ranging from 0 to 90 days. The Group does not hold any Bz {EEH - Zlié,%jﬁﬁ%ﬁfﬂﬂﬁﬁﬂf}&ﬁ
collateral as security. G -
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BE T _=F N NA=1HIFE

21. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 21. HipEWEIE, R NFaftaIa
PREPAYMENTS
At 30 June At 30 June
2023 2022
R-—E=-= A= S
ANA=t+H ~NA=1+H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FAT
Deposit e 3,911 6,969
Other receivables H A e IR 1,384 2,996
Prepayment — acquisition of plant and AN RIE — BEME REE
equipment 11,934 =
Prepayment — others TEfTRIE — HA 31,134 24,580
Interest receivables FE USRI B, 11,521 9,772
59,884 44317
Represented by: 5
Non-current portion IEMBNEL D 32,464 15,351
Current portion mENE 27,420 28,966
59,884 44317
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B2 T —FNNA=F+HIFFE
22. TAX RECOVERABLE 22. AJK[EIFRIE

On 15 June 2022, the Group received a warrant of distraint and/or
levy (“WDL") from BIR which directed its collection and enforcement
team to distrain and/or levy on MSPI’s properties in relation to
alleged deficiency tax for calendar year of 2015 (Note 11). MSPI filed
an Urgent Motion to Quash WDL (“Motion to Quash”) to Court of
Tax Appeals (“CTA") on 23 June 2022. During the year, bank balances
of approximately Peso 426,000,000 have been garnished by the BIR
upon receipt of warrants of garnishment by certain of MSPI's banks.
MSPI filed a Motion for Reconsideration (“MR”) on 19 January 2023 in
response to rejection from CTA on MSPI's Motion to Quash dated 19
December 2022.

On 5 April 2023, MSPI received the CTA’s resolution which granted
the MSPI's MR and resolved that the WDL is being cancelled and the
warrants of garnishment are lifted. Further collection by BIR or refund
of garnished amount is suspended pending on judicial resolution of
the case.

Based on the advice of the independent tax and legal adviser of
MSPI, the directors of the Company believe that MSPI has valid legal
arguments to defend the tax disputes (including the alleged
deficiency tax for calendar year of 2015) with right to request for
refund of the garnished amounts when the judicial review complete.
Alternatively, the garnished amounts would be utilized to settle tax
payable if MSPI lose in the tax dispute. The amount is classified as tax
recoverable with no impairment loss recognised as management
consider the effect of expected credit loss is immaterial.
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BE—ET - =—F NA=1THIFFE
23. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 23. SHEENRGHEE
LIABILITIES
(a) Contract assets (a) BHEE
At 30 June At 30 June
2023 2022
R=E== W-—ZTE——
~NA=+H ~NAZ=1H
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET FAT
Current contract assets relating to HRRIERBE R
provision of hotel services MBEHEE 545 224
In case of room revenue, the guest pays the room charge MEBBRAME @ BARR R
based on the payment schedule. If the services rendered by REMERWE - (Wl 5Tt RS
the Hotel exceed the payment, a contract asset is recognised. ZRNR BIERENEE - WIS
If the payments exceed the services rendered, a contract SRR - AEREaNEE

liability is recognised.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses.
The provision rates for the measurement of the expected
credit losses of the contract assets are based on those of the
trade receivables as the contract assets and the trade
receivables are from the same customer bases. The provision
rates of contract assets are based on days past due of trade
receivables appropriately grouped by similar loss pattern. The
calculation reflects the probability weighted outcome, the
time value of money, and reasonable and supportable
information that is available at the reporting date about past
events, current conditions and forecast of future economic
conditions.

After applying the expected credit loss rate to gross amount
of contract assets, the management considered that the
provision of impairment loss of contract assets is immaterial
and no expected credit loss has recognised.

REHmE B HRAREREETRE
ok Mﬁ&%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁéﬂaf’ﬁ%é
MEBEEZTRBEEBERMABRERD
NEYRR  BEXREE  REAR
BHEEREBYIRETNREHEREP
B AHEBEZREXRDERKRES

Fﬁ?@*%ﬁL”‘"* ZJE%ZEEIEZ?EBLQ
B - ARt ERREEENELR

iéiﬁ%ﬁ%?aﬁ{é‘-‘i@u&ﬁ%&iﬂﬁﬂ—lﬁﬁ
BRABEEMN - BRI R RREE
RRTER 2 BB RBBAIKZEF -

HANEERERARAGEEERX
% EEER/ANEEZRERER
BEBMIREAYEBREREE
B8 -
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23. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES (Continued)

(b) Contract liabilities

23. EHEEREHNEE®)

(b) EXNEME

At 30 June At 30 June
2023 2022
R-—E=-= A= =S

ANA=t+H ~NA=1H

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FET FAT

Contract liabilities relating to provision BIEMHERSERE 2

of hotel service aHaE 1,493 184
As at 30 June 2023, contract liabilities mainly represents A—TB-—=FXA=+H 5486
receipts in advance from customers of the Hotel operation. TERBEWBEEBELRE - &4

The balance of the contract liabilities are expected to be

utilised within a year.

Movements in contract liabilities:

BEHREENN—FAHA -

BRREESHWT :

Hotel
service
B S R
HK$'000
FHET
Balance as at 1 July 2021 RZZE_—Ft+tH—Hz&#% 19
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of FRNABRTAFVNEHNEEZ
recognising revenue during the year that was WMl B & adEmd
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning
of the year (18)
Increase in contract liabilities during the year FREXHEEEM 196
Exchange difference e H =58 (13)
Balance as at 30 June 2022 R-ZEBE-__FA=1H &% 184
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of FRNEABRTAFTYEHAaEZ
recognising revenue during the year that was WammslBeEHaERD
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning
of the year (180)
Increase in contract liabilities during the year FRELHEEEM 1,493
Exchange difference fE H =58 (4)
Balance as at 30 June 2023 RIBZ=FA=1TH &R 1,493
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24. TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND 24, FEfTERIE, HMEMIBNRIERE

ACCRUED CHARGES H
Trade payables, other payables and accrued charges comprise JETBRIE - EMER B R ETERaER
amounts outstanding for the purchase and ongoing costs. BRFEKNRN LRS-
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented based LT ARmEHEAEEBREREHEY 2
on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period. JETBRIRRRER D AT o
The average credit period on purchase of goods is 90 days. HEERFHEESAEW0R -
At 30 June At 30 June
2023 2022
R=ZT== i
AA=+H ~NA=+A
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FHET
0-30 days 0&30H 1,754 1,800
31-60 days 31260 H 146 119
61-90 days 61 %290 H 18 9
Over 90 days Hidmoo B 2 160
1,920 2,088
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25. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 25. REREE(E
Details of the deferred tax liabilities recognised and movement FANERZELEHRIEEFEUANEEEFET
during the year are listed as follow: REATR ¢
Fair value
adjustments Fairvalue  Withholding
Accelerated  onproperty,  adjustments taxon Unrealised
capital plantand oninvestment undistributed foreign
allowance equipment properties earnings exchange gain Total
V¥ BER
REz REVEZ RDREHZ RER
MEEARE AVERE  ATVESRER BB B 5 s st
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
THER T TERT T THERT TET
At1 July 2021 NZE-—%F
+A—H 39 8,179 110,246 14,134 19,657 152,255

Credited to profit or loss FARBRETA

for the year - (1,506) (3934) - (1,336) (6,776)
Exchange adjustments [ R - (745) (10966) = (1939) (13,650
At 30 June 2022 R-ZE-—F

~A=18 39 5928 95,346 14,134 16,382 131,829

(Credited)/charge to profit ~ ERMIEZ (3t A),/

or loss for the year Mk - (1,381) (4,187) - 8,387 2,819
Exchange adjustments B 5, 32 - (59) (725) - 1,855 1,071
At30 June 2023 RZZ_=F

~NA=tH 39 4,488 90,434 14,134 26,624 135,719
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BE—F-—=FNA=1HIFE
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Continued) 25. EERIERGE (B)
At 30 June 2023, the Group had estimated unused tax losses of RZZEZ=F-A=+H ' A&EEEHR
approximately HK$149,243,000 (2022: HK$142,539,000) and AR IEE 18 47149,243 0008 (=T = =
deductible temporary differences of approximately HK$5,770,000 F 1142,5390008 70 ) REAEEE T ZF
(2022: HK$8,690,000) arising from certain companies within the SISEBIE AT ARSI Bz Al AR R A
Group that are suffering from losses for years available for offset 2 BT 05 E B = RE 49 5, 770 0008 L (=&
against future profits. At 30 June 2023 and 2022, no deferred tax ::¢ 8690000/ 7T) c RZTZ=F K
assets was recognised for such losses due to the unpredictability of —E__FXA=+8H" Hﬂb”\%%ﬁu‘f’ﬁ’%
future profit streams from these companies within the Group. Tax EETZERGZARREBFRR - Bl 5
losses amounting to approximately HK$95,099,000 (2022: ZEEEBRRAELERIBEE - HIEEBY
HK$93,596,000) may be carried forward indefinitely. The remaining 95,099,000/ 7T ( — & = =4 : 93,596,000/ JT)
tax losses will be expired as follows: AR BRAEEE - THIAE RSN AT 1
ZIH -
At 30 June At 30 June
2023 2022
R-—EB=-= A= S
ANA=1+H ~HA=1H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Year 2022 —E-_F - 10,114
Year 2023 —E=F 13,054 5444
Year 2024 :%:E F 22,158 10,741
Year 2025 —ZERF 16,214 22,644
Year 2026 ZERF 2,718 -
54,144 48,943
RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS 26. BIREFIHA
The retirement benefit costs of the Group recognised in consolidated Rér e 2 HE SR ER 2 A& BERREF K
statement of comprehensive income are as follows: AREAT ¢
Year ended Year ended
30 June 2023 30 June 2022
BZE HE
—E-= —E_—
AA=+H ~NA=+H
LFE 1EFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FHT
Hong Kong B8 146 203
The Philippines JEEE 430 511
576 714
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26. RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS (Continued) 26. BIAEFIRLA (&)

Pursuant to Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter
485, Laws of Hong Kong), the Group participates in a defined
provident fund retirement benefit scheme in Hong Kong.

Under the relevant law in the Philippines, it provides a benefit to
qualified employees but it does not require minimum funding of the
plan. In the absence of any pension plan in the entity, the relevant
law requires a provision for retirement pay to qualified employees.

Defined contribution scheme in Hong Kong

The Group participates in a mandatory provident fund retirement
benefit scheme in Hong Kong. The relevant scheme assets are held
separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control of the
trustee. Under that scheme, the Group is required to make
contributions pursuant to the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (Chapter 485, Laws of Hong Kong).

The Group's contributions to the retirement benefit scheme in Hong
Kong charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year ended 30 June 2023 was approximately
HK$ 146,000 (2022: HK$203,000).

Defined benefit scheme in the Philippines

Net defined benefit obligations AEBMNEEFEE

RIBCRFIE LB BRI (BAEDIF
485%)  ARENFEL2E-—ARAELESR
BIRENETE -

REBEFRBHEBEDN - HERSERERR
HEd - BAERTEAS < REHER - HE
BHETARAKSHE  HEAEMRERS
BREEREERNRS -

EHRREMHRTE

AEERBFB2E-RRHIELTRSRKE
FEtEl - ARAGTEIEENI ARG ZES
A BAKEZEESREBRE - RE
AR  ARBEARB(RBIEATE S
BNRBIN(EEEDIF485F ) Z R EMEH MR -

BHE-_Z-_=F~A=1HILEEZHEE2
AR RINR 2 AEEREBRAEF T2
2 A B14600008 T( — T = —
203,000 7T) °

FRERERATE

At 30 June At 30 June

2023 2022
R=B-=% R_T__

NA=T1H ~NA=1+H

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

1,249 890

The Group operates a funded defined benefit plan for the qualified
employees of its subsidiary in the Philippines.
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26. RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS (Continued)

Defined benefit scheme in the Philippines (Continued)

The defined benefit plan is administrated by trustee appointed by
the respective subsidiary of the Company and is legally separated
from the subsidiary. Under the plan, the qualified employees are
entitled to retirement benefits equivalent to final plan salary for
every year of credit service at the normal retirement age. There are
no unusual or significant risks to which the retirement benefit
obligations expose the relevant subsidiary of the Company.
However, in the event a benefit claim arises under the retirement
benefit scheme and the retirement fund is not sufficient to settle the
obligation, the unfunded portion of the claim shall immediately be
due and payable by the relevant subsidiary of the Company to the
retirement fund.

(@  The amount included in the consolidated statement of

26. &

A MR MR

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE T _=F N NA=1HIFE

RtEFIRL A (&)
FERERERBAFTE (2
RERAEBADDIEENHBARMEE
TFIEATE - BB EE R B
A FAEE - RIBZEE  AERESEE
BIRINERE SRR E ARG EEE
B A %ﬁﬂ%iZLWhﬂ RS
FETETESARFEENBARAEZR

EENEAMB o AT - WARERKEF
£I38 IR R TRAE S R R IAS (5
£ BIZRERBNES 2 BH BT
H 36 AN A A BN B A B FIRAK
2o

@ AEEREAERMAEZEMERE

financial position arising from the Group's obligation in EBEEFEMERARZ SO ¢
respect of its defined benefit plans is as follows:
At 30 June At 30 June
2023 2022
R-T== S
ANB=+H NA=t1H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FHET
Present value of defined benefit obligations FE @ F| & EIRE 1,249 890
Fair value of plan assets FEEEATE - =
Net liability arising from defined RERMEBEEEECABFE
benefit obligations 1,249 890
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26. RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS (Continued) 26. BIKBRIAA (4)

Defined benefit scheme in the Philippines (Continued) §E?$EQE‘?~E?E$U?‘I'§H (&)

(b) Movements in the present value of the defined benefit by #H=ZE —FERNZFEZ_FKAH
obligations for both years ended 30 June 2023 and 2022 are as =+H Jtﬂﬂl FE  RERNEER
follows: (ERE IO

At 30 June At 30 June

2023 2022

R-EE—-=F N-_T——

ANA=1+H ~NA=+H

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FH&xT FHET

At beginning of the year REFEH] 890 1,007
Service costs ARFE AKX AN 310 387
Interest cost SN D#N 120 124
Actuarial gains FEE U (307) (525)
Exchange realignment FE H 32 236 (103)
At end of the year REK 1,249 890

() Movements in the fair value of the plan assets for both the @) ?Z EZT_=FRZIFZFANA

years ended 30 June 2023 and 2022 are as follows: =tRIEMEFE r84dEATE
ZET
At 30 June At 30 June
2023 2022
R=-B== S
ANA=1+H ANA=1+H
HK$’000 HKS$'000
F#&xT FHIT
At beginning of the year REH] - 8
Actuarial losses BEEE - (8)
Atend of the year L - -
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26. RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS (Continued)

Defined benefit scheme in the Philippines (Continued)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income in respect of these defined benefit
plans are as follows:

26.

A MR MR

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE T _=F N NA=1HIFE
BIREFIBLA ()
FEREREEAE (E)
d) REar2ERSRERETEZERT
BB ZBAT

Year ended Year ended
30 June 2023 30 June 2022
BZE HZE
—E-= g
NA=T1H ~NA=1+H
LEE IEFE
HK$’000 HKS$'000
T FHIT
Service cost: ARG R A :
Service costs PR 755 A 2N 310 387
Net interest expense B FgE 120 124
Components of defined benefit costs RIB=ER 2 A ERF
recognised in profit or loss P& 430 511
Remeasurement on the net defined ENTtERERNBEFE
benefit liability:
Actuarial gains BE WS 307 517

The defined benefit cost of HK$430,000 (2022: HKS$511,000)
has been included in the administrative expenses. The
remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability is included
in other comprehensive income.

The Group has also made provision for estimated liabilities for
retirement benefit obligations, in the absence of any pension
plan, covering the qualified employees of its another
subsidiary in the Philippines. There are no unusual or
significant risks to which the retirement benefit obligations
expose the relevant subsidiary of the Company. However in
the event a benefit claim arises, the obligations shall
immediately be due and payable by the relevant subsidiary of
the Company.

RERAK A 4300008 L (ZE ==
F 1 511000870 FTATTHAY - &
AERATEMaEFEFAEMER
WS o

AEBTEREGERREFEZBERT
SLRRNREZ e B EFLEE -
BENFREHMCHBRARZAER
BE - RRABHNEEALTESALE
BERNBRRAAZI TS EHEANRR
A iR BMEBER - ZEETHR
REIH - WERMARRERENMEARF
At e
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BE T = NA=1HIFE

26. RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS (Continued)

Defined benefit scheme in the Philippines (Continued)

(d)  (Continued)
The most recent actuarial valuation of plan assets and the
present value of the defined benefit obligations at 30 June
2023 were carried out by E.M. Zalamea Actuarial Services, Inc.
and Institutional Synergy, Inc. (members of the Actuarial
Society of the Philippines), the independent actuaries.

The present value of the defined benefit obligations, and the
related current service cost and past service cost, were
measured using the projected unit credit method.

(e)  The principal assumptions used for the purpose of the
actuarial valuation were as follows:

Discount rate FrE=E
Expected rate of salary increase TEHH g REK

BIREHIBLA ()
T&ﬁﬁmﬁﬂ*gﬁﬂ

(d)

(&)
AEIEESOIHBEAERAERMN
EER=_ZE_=FNA=+HZHRE
i J8 3 5 & BEM. Zalamea Actuarial
Services, Inc. &2 Institutional Synergy, Inc.
( & Actuarial Society of the Philippines 2
BXB)HEAT ©

AERAMNET2REKREBAIRE RS
FCR R 3B 1 AR 7S A AN Th R AR T AT BB AL
FTAEETE ©

IEEMEERCE2/RAOT ¢

At 30 June At 30 June

2023 2022
R=-ZT== JrA S

NA=1+H NA=1H

6.18%-6.26% 5.01%-6.63%
6.5% 4.00%-5.00%

The discount rate assumption is based on the spot yield curve
calculated from the market yields by striping the coupons
from government bonds to create theoretical zero-coupon
bonds as of the valuation date as at 30 June 2023 and 2022.

The actuarial valuation showed that the fair values of the
above unit investment trust funds are determined based on
mark-to-market valuation.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit
obligations is 15 years (2022: 18.11 years).
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28.
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A MR MR

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE T _=F N NA=1HIFE

SHARE CAPITAL 27. X
At 30 June At 30 June
2023 2022
R=-ZT== =S
~NB=1H NAZ=TH
HK$'000 HKS$'000
TH T FH&TT
Ordinary shares of HK$1 each BREE BT BBk
Authorised: EE
2,000,000,000 ordinary shares 2,000,000,000 % & A% 2,000,000 2,000,000
Issued and fully paid: OERTRHRE :
Ordinary shares at end of year FRZEBK 1,369,157 1,369,157

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

On 1 November 2017, the shareholders of the Company approved
and adopted a new share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”). The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Company to grant share options to selected eligible participants as
incentives or rewards for their contribution or potential contribution
to the Group. In determining whether a person has contributed or
will contribute to the Group, the Group will take into account,
among other things, whether contribution has been made to or will
be made to the Group in terms of operation, financial performance,
prospects, growth, reputation and image of the Group.

Under the Share Option Scheme, the directors may, at their
discretion, invite any eligible participants to take up options to
subscribe for shares in the capital of the Company. The exercise price
for the share options shall be determined in accordance with the
Share Option Scheme and the relevant provisions of the Listing
Rules.

28. DUBRIRSEBRIR

R-Z—tF+—HA—H ARRRRLLE
ﬁﬁﬁé%w%ﬁ,ﬁﬁ%%%iﬂ(Hﬁﬂi%*‘l‘;ﬂ) ° FBRX
RS E EEARFREMEE A ERS R
EREBRAE LA%M%JI%#H FHAREE
ﬁﬁf’ﬁﬁiT“W’EHﬂZﬁ%ﬁ cEBE—BALR
ERRBEHAREELERE - AKE
ﬂﬂ%ﬁé(ﬁiﬂﬂ@%)% EREKEEAEE
2B MBRE AR BE BERER
HEHANEEFELEE -

REBRESS ESAUREBFELIFNEE
R2EERNBRERBEAR 7Hx$EPZHx
o BERETTEEREEIRET 8 R LR
ARG CERE o
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28.

29.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (Continued)

The terms and conditions and movements in the number of share
options under the Share Option Scheme during the year were as
follows:

28.

At 1July 2021,30 June 2022 and 30 June 2023 MKR-_ZE—_—F+H—AQH -
—TFXA=THRK

—E-=FXA=TH

ARG {7 BT TR (2
B AT BT T2 (R M DA TR B AR K
HERZBHMT

Weighted
average
exercise price Number
hnEEFH
THEE A
‘000
T
1.87 68,458

The weighted average exercise price of options outstanding for the
year ended is HK$1.87 (2022: HK$1.87) and their weighted average
remaining contractual life was 4.55 years (2022: 5.55 years).

No share options were exercised or lapsed during the year ended 30
June 2023 and 2022.

PROMISSORY NOTE

The promissory note (the “2016 PN") was issued on 3 October 2016
by Fortune Growth Overseas Limited (‘Fortune Growth"), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company and the holder is an independent
third party (the “Holder"). The 2016 PN carries interest which accrues
on the outstanding principal amount of HK$350,000,000 from its
issue date until repayment in full of the principal amount at the fixed
rate of 4% per annum. The promissory note shall become due and
payable in full on the business day immediately preceding the fifth
anniversary of its issue date and is unsecured and guaranteed by the
Company.
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AREE
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29. PROMISSORY NOTE (Continued)

On 31 March 2021, Fortune Growth issued 6 promissory notes (the
“2021 PNs’") to the Holder in exchange for the 2016 PN. The 2021
PNs in the principal amount of HK$64,150,685 each and totalling
HK$384,904,110 represented the principal amount and the accrued
interest of the 2016 PN. The 2021 PNs carry interest which accrues on
the outstanding principal amount of HK$384,904,110 from its issue
date until repayment in full of the principal amount at the fixed rate
of 4% per annum. The 2021 PNs shall become due and payable in
full on the business day immediately preceding the first anniversary
of its issue date and is unsecured and guaranteed by the Company.

On 31 March 2022, Fortune Growth issued for 6 new promissory
notes (the “2022 PNs") to the Holder in exchange for the matured
debt under the 2021 PNs. No default for repayment of 2021 PNs
before the exchange of 2022 PNs for 2021 PNs. The 2022 PNs in
principal amount of HK$66,716,712 each and totalling
HK$400,300,272 represented the principal amount and accrued
interest of the 2021 PNs. The 2022 PNs carry interest which accrues
on the outstanding principal amount of HK$400,300,272 from its
issue date until repayment in full of the principal amount at the fixed
rate of 4% per annum. The 2022 PNs shall become due and payable
in full on the business day immediately preceding the first
anniversary of its issue date and is unsecured and guaranteed by the
Company.

On 30 March 2023, Fortune Growth issued for 6 new promissory
notes (the “2023 PNs") to the Holder in exchange for the matured
debt under the 2022 PNs. No default for repayment of 2022 PNs
before the exchange of 2023 PNs for 2022 PNs. The 2023 PNs in
principal amount of HK$69,385,381 each and totalling
HK$416,312,285 represented the principal amount and accrued
interest of the 2022 PNs. The 2023 PNs carry interest which accrues
on the outstanding principal amount of HK$416,312,285 from its
issue date until repayment in full of the principal amount at the fixed
rate of 6% per annum. The 2023 PNs shall become due and payable
in full on the business day immediately preceding the first
anniversary of its issue date and is unsecured and guaranteed by the
Company.

The above promissory notes are denominated in HKS which is the
foreign currency of the relevant group entity (where functional
currency is Peso).

29.

A MR MR

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE T _=F N NA=1HIFE

ﬁﬁ%ﬁcg)
RZZE=-——F=FA=+—8 ' Fortune Growth
m%EA%ﬂﬂfﬂﬁﬁﬁUzgz—iﬁ
REE|)NBERM - — R FREEE -
:—E%E%ﬁm$i%ﬁmw%%%m
4REE /384,904,110 70 * HERZZ—RF
EEEBRN RS R ERTFIE _;_*E%
HEBRAEEARSEE3849041108BTEHE
BITAHREE E AL BEERSEE MR
BEEFFRIAEZRFFE - ZT=—FiH
EREREEEETHERE —EBFIHN
EEBIBARARESN - BAEEBT A
RATELR o

R-ZZE-—%F=F=+—H - Fortune Growth
MFEEABRTADIALER( =82

BRRER]) FA-T-—FAHZEEET
FHEBORSG - R T - —FRAEE N
Mo —FEEERR - WEEBBREES
T —FEEER ZT - ZFEAEERN
K& E 5667167127870 * #2584 400,300,272

B MER T —FEAAEBNAEAS R
EETFIE c ZE - FREEERREER
S FE400300272 BT EHETHEREER
CTHEZHEE IPRREEFENE4ER
FE s CEZ—HFARERBREEHE
THHRE —ERAFIINEXHIBRES
HXT - BABEBWRARRAER -

RZ-ZZT-_=F=H=-+H ' Fortune Growth
MEFFABRTAGHEARER(ZE==

AHERE]) ¢%—g——¢%R%EET
FHEBHORR - RZE=FALEER
MOT - FAHERR  WEBREES

TIFAEER T =FAAERD
AR50 569,385381 87T #BRA/5416312,285

BT HER -_S - _FALRBNAER
EETAE « —T_=FALEBAAEEN

iﬁMWNN%@EQﬁ% BHEIEEEA
% Xuﬁﬁﬁtﬁﬁ&lmiﬂféri

ﬁﬂw ToFAREBERREAR
TTEHmEE ﬂﬂim%M%EU%&ﬁA

A - BAREERY HARRBELR o

BitA R BRI TTEHE - BT ISR
ER(HNEEBE/WR) 2N -
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HE—

TE_=FN HA=FTHIFE

30. BANK BORROWINGS

Bank loan due for repayment within one year

—FAEHAER 2 IRITIEE

30. W|WITREE

At 30 June At 30 June

2023 2022
R=-—EB=-= P = ——

~NAE=1+H NA=1H

HK$'000 HKS$'000

TET FH&TT

- 31,216

Note:

On 4 March 2019, a banking facility had been granted to a subsidiary of the Group
of Peso 1,500,000,000, of which Peso 218,750,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$31,216,000) had been utilised and outstanding as at 30 June 2022. Interest was
charged at a fixed rate of 8.53% per annum in respect to this banking facility.

The bank loan was secured by the subsidiary’s investment properties (Note 15).
During year ended 30 June 2022, the subsidiary breached a covenant related to
the debt service coverage ratio of the subsidiary which the lender had the right to
demand immediate payment of the entire outstanding loan balance. Temporarily
waiver for compliance with the debt service coverage ratio was granted by the
lender during the financial year. Management had classified the bank loan as
current liability at 30 June 2022 because such waiver did not provide the subsidiary
right to defer settlement of the bank loan for at least twelve months after 30 June
2022. In August 2022, the entire outstanding balance of bank borrowing was
settled.
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31. CONVERTIBLE BOND

Pursuant to the share purchase agreement (the "Agreement”) for
the acquisition (the “Acquisition”) of 100% interest in Oriental-
Invest Properties Limited entered into by a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, Baltic Success Limited (“BSL") on 5 July 2019, BSL
issued a 5 years zero coupon convertible bond with principal
amount of HK$53,000,000 on 5 July 2019 (the “Bond"). The Bond
entitled the holders to convert them into ordinary shares of the
Company at a conversion price of HK$1.01 as set out in the
Company's announcement dated 30 April 2019.

Based on the terms of the Agreement, the Bond contain two
components, (i) the host debt and (i) the conversion derivatives. The
Group recognised both components as liability as the conversion
derivatives of the bond did not meet the “fixed for fixed” test under
HKAS 32. At the issue date, the fair value of both components of the
Bond were determined based on a valuation report issued by JLL.
Subsequently, the host debt component is classified as “financial
liabilities at amortised cost” and measured at amortised cost, the
conversion derivatives is classified as “financial liabilities at fair value
through profit and loss” (“Financial liabilities at FVTPL") and
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit
orloss.

The fair value of the host debt of the Bond upon issuance were
calculated at the present value of the estimated coupon interest
payments and principal amount. The discount rate used in the
calculation is 10.01%. The fair value of the conversion derivatives of
the Bond upon issuance and end of each reporting period is
determined using the Binomial Option Pricing Model. The key inputs
used in the Binomial Option Pricing Model were as follows:

Stock price (HK$) f&E (BoT)
Exercise price (HKS) TEE(BT)
Expected life T8 HAF HA
Expected volatility LA
Expected dividend yield TE AR AR B a3
Risk free rate I B ) 2

31.

A MR MR

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE T _=F N NA=1HIFE

IR (B2

BIFEAR QA 22 & W B A AlBaltic Success
Limited ((BSL]) A —Z—h4F+ B A BFFE]
S R YRR (T UK B8 = 18 ) Oriental-Invest
Properties Limited100% 1& # 2 & A% 9 &% ([ &%
WEl) BSLRZ=ZZE—NFELARBETAE
© 88 43530000008 T 2 AEEE B A #AR
BE5(EH]) - MOARTBEHAE=-ZT—N
FOA=FTHZ2AEME  EFETHEA
EFIZBRE 10 B THESE R ARNQR]

RIBZ e FK - BEFEEMERS 0
BEBM)BRITETE - XEBKHRED
DHEABF/AE  RAREFERITETAD
MaBEGTERIE2RE T BEEREE ]
AR - NETHY EFMERS 2AFE
DiREBEHEMITER 2 HERSETE - £
& EZBEBHIELBS [LHEHKAG
EZEMEBE] RRBHEKAE - MER
TETARESBA [RAFEFABEL
cREEI((RAVEFABSZERHEE])
MRAFEFE  MAFEZESHERER
R

REBETRESTBEBZATERGTER
FENZRASEZIRETE - sTEFTEA
FEEE1001% - REITRERE RS ERE
FERTETAZ AFERBZEASETE
EEMNET - —EREEEMRAE
DEAZBRNT

30 June 30 June

2023 2022
—E-= g

NA=1+H ~A=ETH

0.890 0.199

1.01 1.01

1year 2 years

15 24

109.20% 85.97%

0% 0%

4.12% 2.56%
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31. CONVERTIBLE BOND (Continued) 31. AlRR{ES (@)
The movement for the convertible bond during the year is as below: FRARESFZEHOT
Financial Financial
liability at liability
amortised cost at FVTPL Total
TR 88 R A RATE
FEZ FABEZ
SRIBE SRIEE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FH&T
At 1 July 2021 R-Z2-—-FtH—H 39,370 3,511 42,881
Amortised interest for the year FRNEHA S 3,293 = 3,293
Fair value adjustments N EFHE = (3,176) (3,176)
At 30 June 2022 R-ZBE-—FxXHA=1+H 42,663 335 42,998
Amortised interest for the year FREHETE 4,392 = 4,392
Fair value adjustments N ERAE - 4,258 4,258
At 30 June 2023 R-B-—=®#XA=+H 47,055 4,593 51,648
32. COMMITMENTS 32. &I
Capital commitments BEAREIE
Capital expenditure contracted for but not yet accounted for at the RIEHEAEE BRI LB M AR BHRER
end of the reporting period in the financial statements is as follows: ABRZEARFRAZIAT :
At 30 June At 30 June
2023 2022

R-EE—-=F NW-—E—-—
~NA=+1H ANAZ=1H

HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Property, plant and equipment L E Y 41,984 4,904
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33. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 33. FEALTEHBEER
(a) In addition to the transactions disclosed elsewhere in these (a) BRUEFFHHRREMBOABEERS
financial statements, the Group entered into the following Oh s REBRFRNEIMIATEKEE
material related party transactions during the year: ALERG
Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2023 2022
BZE H=E
—E-=F —F-—
NA=1H ~NA=1+H
IEFE IEFE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Biat THET FHIT
Interest income from associates REBE QR ZFEWA (i 2,103 2,490
Lease payment to associates 1Bk 8 A B2 A 2 E TR (if) (5,724) (6,392)
Notes: Htet -
0) The interest income from associates represented the interest 0) REHE AT 2B ATERE B
income from loan receivables with principle amount of Peso HVPHI & PBPI A & %8 9 Bl & 430,000,000
430,000,000 to HVPHI and Peso 18,000,000 to PBPI respectively. % % 18,000,000 &= 2 B Z F 24
A °
(ii) Lease payment to associates represented the lease agreements (ii) MEE & N B 2 B 5K IE B HVPHI
entered with HVPHI and PBPI for the land, staff accommodation RPBPIET . v M EHZE - NABBLR
and parking lot situated in the Philippines. FREREZ L  BIEBRERE -
(b) Compensation of key management personnel (b) BAREEASHM

The remuneration of the Directors and other members of key
management of the Group are disclosed in Note 10. The
remuneration of the Directors and key management personnel
of the Group is based on the performance and experience of
individuals and is determined with reference to the Group's
performance, the remuneration benchmark in the industry
and the prevailing market conditions.

EERALEIEERFAMKEH
AT 5 104 75 - % AR (B R
FEABHMIEBAAREREHE
pEAEBRE  TEFWEERE
AR -
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34. NOTES SUPPORTING CASH FLOW 34. ZIFHERERZMEH
STATEMENT
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a) BERBLEZEYWERE
At 30 June At 30 June
2023 2022
R-—E=-= A= =S
ANA=+H ~NA=1H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Cash available on demand AIIRESKRE Z2HE 484,169 70,472
Short-term deposits (Note) TR (K7 EE) 8,282 441,632
492,451 512,104
Note: Kt -
The balance represents short-term bank deposits with an original maturity EREBERTIHA A =AU ANZEH
of three months or less. The Group’s bank balances deposited in the banks RITFER - AEBGFEREBRITZIRITHEFIR
in Hong Kong carry prevailing market interest rates of 4% (2022: 0.45% to BITMBFENRIB(ZF_—F : 045F =083
0.83%) per annum. E)stE -
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34. NOTES SUPPORTING CASH FLOW 34. TRFRERERZME 2

STATEMENT (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b) BMETEFELEEB/ YK :
activities:
Convertible Bank  Promissory
Lease bond borrowings notes
liabilities (Note 31) (Note 30) (Note 29)
AERES  ROTEE  AIRE
HESE  (WaE31)  (KiE3e)  (BfE29)
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THET THET FHET
At 1July 2021 R-B-_-%+H—H 44,863 42881 54,690 382,196
Repayment of borrowings BEEE - - (19,072) =
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHESE (7,505) = = =
Interest paid BFE = = (3752) =
Total changes from financing cash flows B3R & R ELEEE (7,505) = (22,824) =
Other changes: Hin &)
Interest expenses accrued eI BRI 4163 3,293 3752 18302
Addition of lease liabilities MEAEEM 2,006 - - -
Change in fair value NS = (3176) = =
Exchange difference R E (4473) = (4,402) (198)
At 30 June 2022 R-B-_—_HxXA=+H 39,054 42,998 31,216 400,300
Repayment of borrowings BEEE - - (30,619) =
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHEEERE (6,973) = =
Interest paid BRHE - - (247) -
Total changes from financing cash flows B &R & i E L ENE T (6,973) - (30,866) =
Other changes: Hith g :
Interest expenses accrued FEFFIE X 3,519 4,392 247 18,316
Change in fair value N EES - 4,258 - =
Exchange difference BE 5 =8 (298) - (597) (2,304)
At30June 2023 R-BZ=%XA=1+H 35,302 51,648 - 416,312
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE T = NA=1HIFE

35. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries at 30 June 2023

35. B TS
R-E-=FAXA=+AZAARATEHE

were as follows: NAFBEAT
Issued and fully
Place of paid share
Form of incorporationand  capital/ Percentage held by
Name of subsidiary business operations registered capital the Company Principal activities
MR LR ERITRAR
WEARER ES5 N Ed-piik B/ ERBEA ARRFRESL  TEER
Directly Indirectly
B &
% %
Lucky Genius Limited Corporation BVI Usst 100 - Investment holding
Lucky Genius Limited =E BEEARES 1ETL REER
Success Gold Holdings Limited Corporation BVI Usst 100 - Investment holding
Success Gold Holdings Limited =B BEEARES 1ETL REER
Fortune Growth Overseas Limited  Corporation BVI Usst 100 - Investment holding
Fortune Growth Overseas Limited /%2 EBERREHE 1= REER
Maxprofit International Limited Corporation BVI US$100 - 100 Investment holding
(‘Maxprofit’)
Maxprofit International Limited EE EEERREE 10X REZR
(I Maxprofit )
Flexi-Deliver Holding Limited Corporation BVI Usst - 100 Investment holding
Flexi-Deliver Holding Limited =E EBARREE 1ET REER
CTF Hotel and Entertainment, Inc. ~ Corporation Philippines Pes010,468,600 - 100 Investment holding
CTF Hotel and Entertainment, Inc. 4 SFHEE 10,468,600 = REER
CTF Properties (Philippines), Inc. Corporation Philippines Pes010,468,600 - 100 Investment holding
CTF Properties (Philippines), Inc. EE FEE 10,468,600 & REER
Marina Square Properties, Inc. Corporation Philippines Pes02,722,930,653 - 100 Property investment
("MSPI")
Marina Square Properties, Inc. =E FEE 2722930653 R MERE
(Tmsp1))
New Coast Hotel, Inc. ("NCHI") Corporation Philippines Peso621,444.867 - 100 Hotel owner, operation
of hotel business
New Coast Hotel, Inc. (NCHIJ) B JEE 621,444,867 R BIEBEBA
BEBEER
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A MR MR

Name of subsidiary

WELARER

Future Growth Limited

ERERAT

eall]

East Fortune Holdings Limited
REREERNRA

IEC Live Events Macau Limited

ECRBEER—ABRAT

IEC Investment Limited
IEC Investment Limited

Oriental-Invest Properties Limited
Oriental-Invest Properties Limited

Future Success International
Holding Limited

Future Success International
Holding Limited

Saved as disclosed in Note 29 and Note 31, none of the subsidiaries
had any debt securities outstanding at the end of the year or at any

time during the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results for the year
or formed a substantial portion of assets and liabilities of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the

Form of
business

33170

Corporation

]

Corporation

%

Corporation

|

Corporation

%

Corporation

#H
Corporation

%

35. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of
incorporation and
operations
AR R

F ik

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
B

Macau

R

BV
RBEARES

BV
RBEARES

Samoa

RED

Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

For the year ended 30 June 2023

—E - =FANA=FHIFFE

35. MEBRTEIFFE &)

Issued and fully

paid share
capital/ Percentage held by
registered capital the Company Principal activities
BRITRAR
B/ ERBEA APAfBAESL  EEEE
Directly Indirectly
B &
% %
HKS2 100 - General administration
for the Group
VBT REE—RITRER
HKS1 - 100 Investment holding
187 REER
MOP25,000 = 100 Live Events
25,000 27T B5Ee
(lass B: US$9,500 100 - Investment holding

BB : 9500% T

Class A: US$500 100
A8 1 500%ETT

USs2 -
2ET

US$1 =

EV

% -

Bk B TE 20 e Y AE 31 B ER & D
ML - BB A REERAREEREE
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RERK

100 Investment holding
REER

100 Investment holding

RERK

RERHEF

ERINFEZRRUAKEFEREEAEKX
TEABRAEEEEXRBEERBOZA
RAMBAR - EFERRIIREMHERE
FBERTREBNILE
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BE T = NA=1HIFE

36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 36.
RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE COMPANY

KRB BFR AR R E

(a) Statement of financial position of the Company (@) AT ZEBRRE
At 30 June At 30 June
2023 2022
R-EE-=H ;‘5@:2::
NBE=1+H ~A=+H
Notes HK$’000 HKS$'000
BaE FET FET
Non-current assets EMBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RWB AR ZIKE 472,588 472,588
Other receivables, deposits HAb W FKIE « 12e
and prepayments TR RIE 4,305 =
Amount due from a subsidiary in JE U — BT /B A )
form of promissory note SRIA (VA B R
=) 423,432 381,465
Amounts due from subsidiaries e = NGIE S 683,652 230,666
1,583,977 1,084,719
Current assets MBNEE
Other receivables, deposits HE g Ros - e
and prepayments KIERRIE 648 852
Bank balances RITHETF 319,468 334,050
320,116 334,902
Current liabilities RENAE
Other payables and accrued charges /H@FEHW\IE&
fEETE A 3,805 3518
Non-current liabilities EREBEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTI B A R FIA 682,553 245228
Convertible bond AR E S 51,648 42,998
734,201 288,226
NET ASSETS BEFE 1,166,087 1,127,877
Equity attributable to owners ZiN/NIEZE DN
of the Company FEML R
Share capital & 7 27 1,369,157 1,369,157
Reserves G 36(b) (203,070) (241,280)
TOTAL EQUITY AR 1,166,087 1,127,877
The statement of financial position of the Company was KATTHBEHRRER-—"E—=EN
approved by the Board of Directors on 28 September 2023 A=+ /H Z%§$A?tt/§ I%T?)ﬂj
and was signed on its behalf by: ATREZES
Mr. HO Wong Meng Mr. Aurelio Jr. Dizon TABLANTE
HO Wong Meng %4 Aurelio Jr. Dizon TABLANTE %4
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
4 S
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36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND  36. AX\F 2B REREEEH &)
RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)
(b) Reserves movement of the Company (b) EATZHEELE
Share- Retained
based profits/
Share Merger Exchange compensation (accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve losses) Total
UROREHR RERFH/
R EE Aot ERifE <BRRE (RHER) #st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT THT FAT FAT TAT
At 1 July 2021 RZBZ-f
+A—A 170,289 53,022 (104,043) 5433 (123,925) 776
Exchange difference BERZIEE
arising on translation EfvERER
to presentation currency N N (110942) - N (110:942)
Total comprehensiveloss ~ ERZEEEEAE
for the year - - - - (131,114) (131,114)
At 30 June 2022 R-B__%
SA=+H 170,289 53,022 (214,985) 5433 (255,039) (241,280)
Exchange difference BERZIEH
arising on translation EECERER
to presentation currency . . 48,490 . - 48,490
Total comprehensiveloss ~ FRZHEEELAE
for the year - - - - (10,280) (10,280)
At30 June 2023 R-B_=%
~A=TH 170,289 53,022 (166,495) 5,433 (265,319) (203,070)
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE T = NA=1HIFE

37. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 37. BERE D ERMEEREHMEE
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY BE
The carrying amounts of the financial assets and financial liabilities REEHRAEReREERERBERT
recognised at the end of reporting period were categorised as EIREEREI ST ¢
follows:
At 30 June At 30 June
2023 2022
R-E=-= R4
~NA=1+H ~NA=1TH
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FE&TT
Financial assets ERMEE
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFAEZZEREE 5,302 8212
Financial assets at amortised costs HEBERAINE eREE 584,121 603,980
589,423 612,192
Financial liabilities sRas
Financial liabilities at FVTPL BAFEFABRZZEHERE 4,593 335
Financial liabilities at amortised cost RESHA AT Bz e B E 539,314 541,811
543,907 542,146
The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are TREENEREBEZATEEATIE
determined as follows: JE -

—  the fair value of investments held for trading with standard
terms and conditions and traded on active liquid markets are
determined with reference to quoted market price; and

— the fair values of other financial assets and financial liabilities —
are determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis, binomial
option pricing model or market comparable multiples as
appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

37. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY
(Continued)

HKFRS 13 requires disclosures for financial instruments that are
measured at fair value by level of the following fair value

measurement hierarchy:

Level 1:

Level 2:

Level 3:

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities;

Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
or indirectly; and

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data.

37.

A MR MR

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE T _=F N NA=1HIFE

RENEDZEeHEERESHEE
BE®)

BB RS 3F R TR TIIATE
HEERZSRREATEIEZSMIA
YRI5

F—&: EEMS LHEREEXBBEZR
B CRERE) :

F_H: REENRBEERXEELAH
RZBAEH (E-RMBERE
BRON) + &

£ WHEERABEDSEBECEE
KB BEHABIE -
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A MR

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE T = NA=1HIFE

37. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 37. HENEDZERMEERSHEE

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY
(Continued)

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments
carried at fair value by level of fair value hierarchy:

BE )

TREGEATEERZ SRS EATE
I 2 &M TAN -

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E— EH E=M st
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
TET TFET FET TET
At 30 June 2023 R-E-=%XA=1H
Financial assets at fair value BAFEABEZ
through profit or loss cRIEE
Unlisted investment fund (Note) ~ 3E F TR EES (ff:T) - = 5,302 5,302
Financial liabilities at fair value ZAF @t AE#H >
through profit or loss cRaE
Conversion derivative s sTA T B - - 4,593 4,593
At 30 June 2022 R-ZE--FXA=1+H
Financial assets at fair value BAFEABEZ
through profit or loss TREE
Unlisted investment fund (Note) ~ 3F F 1R &EE S (A/7%) - = 8212 8,212
Financial liabilities at fair value ZAF @t AEH >
through profit or loss cRAE
Conversion derivative BEWMOTAET A = = 335 335
Note: HtaF -
For the unlisted investment fund, the fair value is arrived at based on a valuation MIELTIREESMS @ A FENIBEERERE W E

carried out by an independent professional valuer not connected to the Group.
The fair value was determined based on NAV summation method with fair value of
underlying investment determined base on market approach with references to
comparable companies’ benchmark multiples.
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A MR MR

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE T _=F N NA=1HIFE

37. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 37. HENEDZEMEERSMEE

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

BE®)

(Continued)
Note: (Continued) Bfet - (&)
Significant unobservable inputs ERFUHEW AR

At 30 June At 30 June
2023 2022
R=-Z== i == =
~NA=1+H ~NA=+H
Market multiples of comparable companies adopted FrER &N Al B L EA Al 2 IS S 8K
— EV/EBITDA ratio —EEEHERAE  BHE - TER
B B & 5.37 592
Discount for lack of marketability Rz S RBEZ LR 14.78% 19.64%

Had the EV/EBITDA ratio of comparable companies adopted increased by 5%, it

would increase the fair value of the unlisted investment by approximately
HK$516,000 (2022: HK$721,000). Had the EV/EBITDA ratio of comparable
companies adopted decreased by 5%, it would decrease the fair value of the
unlisted investment by approximately HK$516,000 (2022: HK$721,000).

The following table shows the reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurement of

the unlisted investment fund:

i FT RN AT B LL B A B 2 R R EEHRFLS - B -
e REHAT AN L RIE 5% RIBEETIRE 2 12

FAEIEAN4)5160008TT(— T - —

£ 1 721,00087T) °

METERAN A ELL B AR 2 D EEEYRFEL - FiE -
TERBHEMBMEERD5%  BIEETREZA
AR A 495160008 T ( Z B = Z4 : 721,00087T) °

TRETFLTREAESFE=AL

T8 2 Y5

At 30 June At 30 June

2023 2022

R-B-=%F RN-TE——4F

NA=1+H ~A=+H

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHT

At beginning of the year REY] 8,212 51,856
Change in fair value NEEZE) (3,127) (40,949)
Exchange adjustment [ 5, 217 (2,695)
Atend of the year RER 5,302 8212

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial

liabilities carried at amortised cost in the financial statements approximate to their

fair values.

=R/ UEBRRANRBHERAIEZEREER

SREEZREEEEL AT ERE

o
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)
38.

—EFNA=THIEFE
CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's objectives of managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce cost of capital. There
was no change in capital management policies and objectives from
prior periods.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position
and makes adjustment to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its capital
structure on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as
net debt divided by total capital (not applicable under net cash
position). Net cash or debt is calculated as total borrowings
representing outstanding promissory notes, outstanding bank
borrowing and outstanding convertible bond as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position less cash and bank
balances. Total capital is calculated as equity as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position, plus net debt (minus if
net cash), as appropriate.

During the year ended 30 June 2023, the Group's strategy was to
maintain a zero or minimal gearing ratio.
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38.

39.

International Entertainment Corporation  BIBRIREEA R A A
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The gearing ratio as at 30 June 2023 and 2022 were as follows:

A MR MR

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE T _=F N NA=1HIFE

38. EXEMGEEE#)
MN-E_=FK_T-_—_FA=1+HZE&

EAELERDT :

At 30 June At 30 June
2023 2022

R=-ZEE== RZE_
NA=1+H ~NA=1+H
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHBxT T
Total borrowings EE®E 467,960 474,514
Less: Bank balances and cash B IRTEERRS 492,451 512,104
Net cash REF5E 24,491 37,590
Total capital BARBE 1,182,468 1,158,308
Gearing ratio BEBELE N/A TE A N/A 73

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include loan receivables,
financial assets at FVTPL, trade receivables and contract assets,
deposits and other receivables, amounts due from associates, bank
balance and cash, trade payables, other payables, promissory notes,
convertible bond and bank borrowings.

Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risk associated with these financial instruments and the
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management of the Group manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

39. MBAREERIRRBER

AEETIZoMTABEEBRER  RAT
B ABRZEREE - BRERBARSOE
E e REMBYTIR - BUEE QR
B RITEFRAS - BARE - EMEM
IR ANER - IRREFARRITER -

HEEBMTAZFBERABMERE - 1tF
TR T A Z AR R LR EEERR
BRERTX - AREEEBEELERZ
FRkE - BERLEARRIVEEREG
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o

=FENA=THILFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade
receivables, contract assets, deposits and other receivables,
bank balance and cash, amounts due from associates and loan
receivables. Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing
basis.

Trade receivables and contract assets

In respect of trade receivables and contract assets, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all customers. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the customers as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customers operate. Normally, the Group does not obtain
collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables and
contract assets at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is
calculated using a provision matrix. To measure ECLs, trade
receivables and contract assets have been grouped by
segments based on similar credit risk characteristics and
assessed on a collective basis. No individual ECLs assessment
for the debtors has performed. As the Group's historical credit
loss experience indicates significantly different loss patterns
for different customer segments, the grouping for trade
receivables and contract assets for the assessment of ECLs is
by customer segments. For contract assets, management
applied the expected credit loss rates calculated using
provision matrix to different customer segments,
management considered the ECLs is immaterial and no
provision for lifetime ECLs has recognised.

For trade receivables, management has categorised debtors
into 5 customer groups for ECLs assessment with Group E
represents the customers with significant risk of default.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 39.

International Entertainment Corporation  BIBRIREEA R A A
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AND POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued)

The following table provides information about the Group'’s
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables as at 30
June 2023 and 2022:

At 30 June 2023 N-—ZE-= Group A

A<A=tH S|
Expected credit loss rate TEAEEBEX 2.28%
Gross carrying amount BREAE(FAT)

(HKS'000) 14,317
Loss allowance (HK$'000) B iERE (T8 327
At 30 June 2022 R-8—— Group A

AH=1H BRAE
Expected credit loss rate EEEEEEX 1.85%
Gross carrying amount REAE(FAET)

(HK$'000) 11,257

Loss allowance (HK$'000) EEEE (TET) 208

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience over
the past 3 years. These rates are adjusted to reflect differences
between economic conditions during the year over which the
historic data has been collected, current conditions and the
Group's view of economic conditions over the expected lives
of the receivables.

A MR MR

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE T _=F N NA=1HIFE

MHEEREEREBIRRER @)

(a) FERRE)
BRBRBERENEE (&)

T%%WJEE%$EIEA_”:E¢&
R —FRNA=Zt+HEGREER
B R EWIRIE Z FHEEEBEZER

GroupB GroupC GroupD GroupE
z# A4 T# R

2.20% 2.35% 6.14% 100%

292 - 68 2,616
6 - 4 2,616

Group B Group C  Group D Group E
24 k! T4 |

1.75% 4.95% 3.43% 33.65%
405 = 688 1,125
7 = 24 255

BHEREEDRIBEBEIFZERER
RBEH ZFELXSELHBUR
R F PR A VIR 0 S AT U SR R SR BB 2
Z 8 - BN KA B EWRIA
BHFHALERRZEE -
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A MR

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE T = NA=1HIFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 39. BAFREMEEBEIZEREEK &)

AND POLICIES (Continued)
(@) Creditrisk (Continued)
Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued)

The below table reconciled the movement in the allowance
for doubtful debts of trade receivables for the year:

(a)

FERER(#)
BEWRAREHEE ()

TRAEFNEBRERREG 2EF
R -

At 30 June At 30 June

2023 2022
R=ZB-=F R-ZT_—

NB=1+H NA=1H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

At beginning of year REFEH] 494 390

Provision for expected credit losses, net EHEEEERETSE 2,432 155

Exchange adjustments B 5 38 B 27 (51)

At end of year RER 2,953 494
Deposits and other receivables BEREMEBWE

As at 30 June 2023, deposits and other receivables mainly
represent receivables from the hotel operation, gaming
operation and live events segment.

For hotel and gaming operation segment, as at 30 June 2023,

lifetime ECLs of approximately HK$434,000 (2022: Nil) on
deposits and other receivables was recognised.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)
Bank balances and cash

Management considered the credit risk is limited as the
counterparties are banks and financial institutions with high
reputation.

Loan receivables and amounts due from associates

Loan receivables and amounts due from associates represent
loans and funding to associates (Note 16). Management
considered the amounts due are low credit risk of default as
the associates have strong capacity to meet the contractual
cash flow obligations, and therefore the impairment provision
is determined as 12 months expected credit losses. As at 30
June 2023 and 2022, the management assess that the effect of
applying the expected credit risk model on loan receivables
was immaterial.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management of the Group to finance the
Group's operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in
cash flows.

The following table details the Group of remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. The maturity dates for non-
derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows.

A MR MR

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE T _=F N NA=1HIFE

39. R EEBENRBE &)

(a)

(b)

FEREE)

RITHREFREZ

ERERS ARHFITHR/EER
HRThkeBEE REERRA
BR -

FEREZRERBE N GHE

JE LB 3R K FE LA BS: 5 A B SR IE $8 1A B
ERRIERKEHES (H5E16) o M
REERRABHEEENUNEITAELN
BeERBEZER  EEERARKK
HABEEEENRRE - #ubizi2(E
AEHREEBEETRERE K=
E=FRZTZ=FRA=1A8H"
EEENAEAEREERRER Y
BRERCZENTERX -

EBERBESEARE  NEBERY
HBASEEEBAARHCRER
ReBZEYWKT  UAXEEEER
HRESRREREREKRD 2 TE -

TRAVAREITESRABZH
TEMHR - TRREBEAREAIHE
KX z&FAEH BEBABZR
BHRERESH - FNTLELRAE
ZEHBEREME<EEAR - T
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE T = NA=1HIFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 39.

AND POLICIES (Continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

MHEEREEREBIRRER (@)

(b) REBEZEERE)

The Group KEHF
Total Morethan  More than
contractual Within 1year 2years
Carrying undiscounted 1year or but less butless  More than
amount cashflow ondemand than2years than5 years 5years
BHNRFE —FRx%  BBE-F BBmF
REE RERELH REX BIRAWE EIREE BBIF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FAT AT AT AT AT
At 30 June 2023 R-B-=&
~A=1H
Non-derivatives: JEATAE -
Trade payables JERTBRIE 1,920 1,920 1,920 - - -
Other payables and HA R HIE R
accrued charges [t ER 38,725 38,725 38,725 = = =
Promissory notes EERE 416,312 435,063 435,063 - - -
Convertible bond AR ES 47,055 53,000 - 53,000 - -
Lease liabilities HEAE 35,302 63,959 5,987 5,987 17,961 34,024
539,314 592,667 481,695 58,987 17,961 34,024
At 30 June 2022 R-BZZ%
~A=1H
Non-derivatives: JEATAE -
Trade payables FE(TBRIE 2,088 2,088 2,088 - - -
Other payables and HiERFIER
accrued charges [ ER 26490 26,490 26,490 = = =
Promissory notes 2R 400,300 412320 412320 - - -
Convertible bond AARER 42,663 53,000 - - 53,000 -
Bank borrowings BITEE 31216 33827 33827 - - -
Lease liabilities HEERE 39,054 71,502 7,088 6,030 18,089 40,295
541811 599,227 481813 6,030 71,089 40,295
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises from its financial assets at
FVTPL (Note 19) and variable-rate bank balances (Note 34(a))
and promissory notes (Note 29), bank borrowings (Note 30)
and convertible bond (Note 31). Financial assets at FVTPL and
promissory notes, bank borrowings and convertible bond at
fixed interest rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate
risk. Bank balances at variable rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk.

The Group does not have interest rate hedging policy.
However, the management of the Group monitors interest
rate exposure and will consider appropriate hedging policy
when necessary.

Sensitivity analysis

The Company is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate bank balances including bank
balances deposits in the banks in Hong Kong and the
Philippines. The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to interest rates for
variable-rate time deposits at the end of the reporting period.
The analysis is prepared assuming these bank balances
outstanding at the end of the reporting period are
outstanding for the whole year/period. A 50 basis points (2022:
50 basis points) in variable-rate time deposits in the banks in
the Philippines is used in estimating the potential change in
interest rate and represents the assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates made by the management of
the Group. If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant, the Group's
post-tax profit for the year would increase/decrease by
approximately HKSNil (2022: HK$518,000). A 30 basis points
(2022: 30 basis points) in variable-rate time deposits in the
banks in Hong Kong is used in estimating the potential
change in interest rate and represents the assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates made by the
management of the Group. If the interest rates had been 30
basis points higher/lower (2022: 30 basis points higher/lower)
and all other variables were held constant, the Group's post-
tax profit for the year would increase/decrease by
approximately to HK$7,000 (2022: HK$57,000).

A MR MR

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE T _=F N NA=1HIFE

MHEEREEREBIRRER @)

(c)

FI == 2 B
KE@Z%JXHA%E%E@H?@%
)\ia s emEE (W19 REE

17 #6517 (K 5E 34 )&7%?@%%(511%
29) RITIEE (FisE30) M AR (&5
(B¥5E31) o ABE I RIZ A FEFTA
BRZEREERARLERE - BT
BERABBRESFSAEBAZAFE
FMERR - FBRITETSAEEE
THEREFNRER

REBI EAREREEK o A - &
SEHEREERMNXER XNEH
2R EBEEHPEEK -

HBEEDT

ARAMZRBRITET (BEFRRE
BRIFRERITZRITER) AXRE
MENRER o Tl U E DT IR

ﬁ@m%ﬁm%ﬁiﬁﬁ & H P&
ZFERBETE - DM RETIRE

RFEHREE A 2 ZSRITEFR
BEFE/HPHENATEE - FEFEER
TZEEERERN0EER(ZF
::fﬁ SOflﬁﬁ)Fﬁﬁwan‘f%'Jﬂ—/a

Aﬁ @JZ.:HE ﬂiﬁlfb’%/ﬂ%
SOMEELRE - MATAE K& S g
AR SE @B F AT E AR AN, R
LPRITHET(ZFT ZZF 5180008
T0) o BERITZEEEHEFERH30ME
R (T —F :30@E) ARG
SRR EBEEES  TAAEEETIEE
R RATERBEB) 27T o WA=
ERTRRI0EEZ (T =——F: L
Ft/TEE30EESE) - MATAHMEH
HEAE AIREBFERNBRIRERET
I, A #7000 T (—E = =
£ 1 5700078 7T) °
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For the year ended 30 June 2023

HE—F =

=FNA=THILFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to its long-term bank borrowings. At 30 June 2023, it is
estimated that a general increase/decrease of 50 basis points
(2022: 50 basis points) in interest rates, with all other variables
held constant, would decrease/increase the Group's profit
after income tax and retained profits by approximately HKSNIil
(2022: HK$167,000). Other components of equity would not
be changed.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at the end of
the reporting period and had been applied to the exposure to
interest rate risk for both derivative and non-derivative
financial instruments in existence at that date. The 100 basis
point increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest rates
over the period until the next annual reporting period.

Other price risk

At 30 June 2023, the Group is exposed to price risk through its
financial assets at FVTPL in respect of the investment in Hontai
Fund (2022: Hontai Fund). The management of the Group has
performed analysis of the nature of market risk associated with
the investments, including discussion with the investment
advisors, and concluded that the price risk is more prominent
in evaluating the market risk of this kind of investments. The
management of the Group monitors this exposure and will
consider appropriate hedging policy when necessary.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

A MR MR

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE T _=F N NA=1HIFE

MHEEREEREBIRRER @)

Currency risk (e) EMmE
The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through the AEETEMHNBEERERZI
financial assets at FVTPL, other receivables, bank balances and BEE B INE BT E IR A FEEET A
cash, other payables and convertible bond that are BE7omEE  HiEUzaa - R
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency THEEERES - {ﬂgﬁﬁ I8 & A
of the operations to which they relate. The currencies giving J]ﬁ%%ﬁfrf‘if‘f%ﬂ R o B A M AR
rise to this risk are primarily United States dollars (“USD") and ZEBFTEAETT((ER]) RETT -
HKS.
The carrying amounts of monetary assets and monetary EMEENEEEGBEZEREN RS
liabilities are denominated in foreign currencies of the relevant SRR EEEE (EES
group entities whose functional currency is Peso at the end of MAERR) 2IINEHEWNT ¢
the reporting period are as follows:
Liabilities Assets
=N BE
At 30 June At 30 June At 30 June At 30 June
2023 2022 2023 2022
N-EBE-=F N-—E—— R=-ZTE== N-_TE——
~NA=1H ~NAZ=+H ~NA=1H ~NAZ=+H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT FHET FHET
usb ET - - 11,415 11,569
HKS BT 480,814 453,089 336,507 351,088
EUR BT - - 5,302 8,431

REE B AT EINEEPER -

AEEERERSEBH DB %ﬁé’%?l\ﬂ%

R EpitE cHE  XRNE
% R REE PR

The Group currently does not have foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management of the Group monitors
foreign currency exposure for each business segment and
reviews the needs of individual geographical area, and will
consider appropriate hedging policy when necessary.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

MHEEREEREBIRRER (@)

(e) Currency risk (Continued) (e) E¥EPEE)
Sensitivity analysis HEEDH
As HK$ is pegged to USD, the Group does not expect any AR THEE T E - MAEETER
significant foreign currency exposure arising from the Aliﬁiiﬁﬁ&i’éﬁ%%ﬁ,zt
fluctuation of the USD/HKS and HK$/USD exchange rates. As a ROR B i 2= A T {a] 2 K INEE LB o
result, the management of the Group considers that the I REBRETIERBAESNE Iﬂ%ﬂ:
sensitivity of the Group's exposure towards the change in HATRBITHETLZBZINEER
foreign exchange rates between USD/HKS and HK$/USD is R s HREBE -
minimal.
The currency risk is mainly arising from exchange rate of Peso E¥EBRETEREBRAEZETLEE T
against USD and HKS. ZIER o
The following table details the Group’ sensitivity to a 10% TRV AE l%’ﬂﬁ%%%ﬁ&%ﬁ
(2022: 10%) increase and decrease in Peso against USD and MBI 10% (B = —F 1 10%) 2
HKS. 10% (2022: 10%) represents the assessment of the BRE - 10%(ZF == 10%) J5 7K
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates made EEEIEE H N E K 7] gb/.:.\ 13
by the management of the Group. The sensitivity analysis ZEHE e IRESIERERAEE
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated ZINED|[EE®EIAR - T%”E/T\fﬁﬁ
monetary items. The table below indicates the impact on RAINERZEI10%(ZFE = —F : 10%)
post-tax profit for the year where the Peso weaken 10% (2022: HERNBRMEBFNZZE  RZINA -
10%) against foreign currencies, and vice versa. For a 10% WRRAINEABEI0%(ZTEZZF -
(2022: 10%) strengthening of Peso against foreign currencies, 10%) * FARTERNEXEEFENE
there would be an equal and opposite impact on the post-tax RIMM RN 22 -
profit for the year.
HKS$ impact USD impact
BLEE EY-4
At 30 June At 30 June At 30 June At 30 June
2023 2022 2023 2022
R=FB-=F R-T-_—F R=B|-=F R-T-_—F
~NA=TH NAZ=1H A~NA=TH NAZ=1H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHT FHET FHT
(Decrease)/increase in FAKRTEZN
post-tax profit for the year R,/ 38 (14,448) (10,217) 841 856
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(e) Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The following table details the Group’ sensitivity to a 10%
(2022: 10%) increase and decrease in EUR against HKS. 10%
represents the assessment of the reasonably possible change
in foreign exchange rates made by the management of the
Group. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items. The table
below indicates the impact on post-tax profit for the year
where the EUR weaken 10% (2022: 10%) against HKS. For a
10% (2022: 10%) strengthening of EUR against HKS, there
would be an equal and opposite impact on the post-tax profit
for the year.

Increase in post-tax profit for the year G BR Fi 1 22 FI|18 A0

A MR MR

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE T _=F N NA=1HIFE

39. R EEBENRBE &)

(e)

EME b (E)

BREDH (E)
TRFAEEH BT LB TNk
A% (ZE = —F  10%) 2 B
& o 10% 5 AN E B & 18 B S /NS IE X
AR EE T 2 FTE - MREDITE
BREMREE ZIINEDEEKIER -
TRETEB T B TRE 0% (=ZF
TF 10%) HFRBRBRERFZE
Z o BT BT AEIN(ZE ==
F:10%)  FRAKRBERBFEZE
FHEEMARAR 2L -

EUR impact
B E
At 30 June At 30 June
2023 2022
R-—E=-= A= S

ANA=1+H ~A=1H
HK$’000 HKS$'000
TE T FH&TT
530 843

40. MATERIAL INTEREST OF DIRECTORS IN
TRANSACTION, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which
the Company was a party and in which the directors of the Company
or an entity connected with the directors had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of the
financial year.

40. %%ﬁ’ii% TRHEHNZEXE

BERARARRILAARREEHEESSH
B ERERNEENETRAEAER
ZEAERRS  ZHFHAHRPBEERN
IV BEREEATE -
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HE_ZE_=F A=+HIFE
41. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF REPORTING

42.

PERIOD

On 11 August 2023, the Company obtained order and approval from
the Grand Court of the Cayman Islands for the Company’s proposals
to implement (1) the capital reduction involving the reduction of the
par value of each issued share from HK$1.00 to HK$0.01 by cancelling
the paid up share capital to the extent of HK$0.99 per issued share;
and (2) the sub-division, immediately following the capital reduction
becoming effective, each authorised but unissued share will be sub-
divided into a hundred (100) unissued new shares with a par value of
HKS$0.01 each. The management consider the capital reduction and
sub-division of the Company's share would not result in significant
impact to the Group's financial performance.

On 27 September 2023, the Group entered into a provisional license
agreement (the “Provisional License Agreement”’) pursuant to
which PAGCOR has granted the provisional license (the “Provisional
License”) to two group companies to establish and operate a casino
and the development of an integrated resort in the City of Manila,
the Philippines. PAGCOR shall issue the regular casino gaming
license (the “Regular Casino Gaming License”) for the project
upon (i) completion of the establishment and operation of the
casino and the development of an integrated resort in the City of
Manila; and (ii) upon approval by PAGCOR of the licensee’s
compliance with the implementation plan in relation to the actual
total project cost. The effectivity or term of the Provisional License
and the Regular Casino Gaming License shall be co-terminus with
the franchise of PAGCOR which shall be effective from the date of
the Provisional License Agreement until 11 July 2033. The Regular
Casino Gaming License is renewable subject to the same terms and
conditions of the provisional license. Details of the terms of
Provisional License Agreement are set out in the announcement of
the Company dated 27 September 2023. Based on preliminary
assessment by management, the Group would change the use of its
properties interest held for rental income to held for own use under
the Provisional License Agreement, the “investment properties” will
be reclassified as “property, plant and equipment” with
corresponding deferred tax liabilities related to the investment
properties will also be derecognized at the date of change in use.
After reclassification, the properties will depreciate according to the
accounting policy of the Group.

Except for above, the Group did not have any material subsequent
event need to disclose or adjust.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were reviewed by the Audit Committee and
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28
September 2023.
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Financial Summary

B ¥ E

RESULTS 4
For the
fifteen months For the For the For the For the
ended year ended year ended yearended =~ year ended
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

“T-NF ZT-TF T —T--F CZEBZ=fF
~NA=1H ~NA=TH NA=TH NA=TH ~NA=1H

E+Aa@EA LEE HEE IHEE LFE
(Re-presented)
(&E5)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FHAT THET
Revenue A 375,982 226,965 64,900 85,525 207,219
Profit/(loss) for the year/period &/ BAR4 F,/ (E518) (93,293) (305,332) (242,040) (256,391) 18,282
Profit/(loss) attributable to: ~ JA TN AL FE(S
w5,/ (E8)
Owners of the Company ARAEAA (77,527) (279,564) (242,040) (256,391) 18,282
NET ASSETS BEE
As at As at As at As at As at
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
—?—ﬂi —EoTF T T F ZBZZF
~NA=1+H NA=TH ~NAZ=TH ~NAZ=T+H A~NA=TH
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$’000
FAT FHAT THT FHT FTERT
Total assets BEE 2,797,372 2,538,669 2,301,154 1,874,776 1,898,227
Total liabilities Bwar (763,686) (750,189) (709,545) (678,878) 691,268
2,033,686 1,788,480 1,591,609 1,195,898 1,206,959
Equity attributable to: IARAL LR :
Owners of the Company VNI 2SN 2,023,267 1,788,480 1,591,609 1,195,898 1,206,959
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Particulars of Principal Properties

Location Existing use

Ho ik REAR

1588 M.H. Del Pilar Hotel operations and leasing of properties
cor. Pedro Gil, Malate Manila (equipped with entertainment equipment)

The Philippines

1588 MH. Del Pilar TS R R GRAIRERE)
cor. Pedro Gil, Malate Manila
The Philippines
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Lease term

HEFH

Medium-term lease

AR
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